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Easterly Government Properties, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets (unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands, except share amounts)

June 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
Assets
Real estate properties, net $ 1,254,368  $ 1,230,162
Cash and cash equivalents 147,505 12,682
Restricted cash 6,330 3,519
Deposits on acquisitions 15,750 750
Rents receivable 14,074 12,751
Accounts receivable 8,198 9,347
Deferred financing, net 3,753 945
Intangible assets, net 132,477 143,063
Interest rate swaps 6,552 4,031
Prepaid expenses and other assets 10,405 8,088
Total assets $ 1,599,412 $ 1,425,338
Liabilities
Revolving credit facility — 99,750
Term loan facilities, net 99,271 99,202
Notes payable, net 173,727 173,692
Mortgage notes payable, net 211,164 203,250
Intangible liabilities, net 33,937 38,569
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 25,285 19,786
Total liabilities 543,384 634,249
Equity
Common stock, par value $0.01, 200,000,000 shares authorized,
60,376,466 and 44,787,040 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2018
and December 31, 2017, respectively 604 448
Additional paid-in capital 1,008,615 740,546
Retained earnings 10,086 7,127
Cumulative dividends (107,573) (83,718)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 5,692 3,403
Total stockholders’ equity 917,424 667,806
Non-controlling interest in Operating Partnership 138,604 123,283
Total equity 1,056,028 791,089
Total liabilities and equity $ 1,599,412 $ 1,425,338

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Easterly Government Properties, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations (unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Revenues
Rental income
Tenant reimbursements
Other income
Total revenues
Operating expenses
Property operating
Real estate taxes
Depreciation and amortization
Acquisition costs
Corporate general and administrative
Total expenses
Operating income
Other expenses
Interest expense, net
Net income
Non-controlling interest in Operating Partnership
Net income available to Easterly Government
Properties, Inc.
Net income available to Easterly Government
Properties, Inc. per share:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted-average common shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted
Dividends declared per common share

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

For the three months ended June 30,

For the six months ended June 30,

2

2018 2017 2018 2017
32,459 $ 27501 $ 64,748 53,521
4,089 2,974 7,572 6,602
424 128 626 367
36,972 30,603 72,946 60,490
7,223 5,837 13,783 12,186
3,845 2,979 7,545 5,714
14,588 13,272 29,222 26,141
499 456 723 988
3,623 3,142 7,082 6,586
29,778 25,686 58,355 51,615
7,194 4,917 14,591 8,875
(5,475) (3,714) (11,057) (6,131)
1,719 1,203 3,534 2,744
(279) (221) (575) (525)
1,440 $ 982§ 2,959 2,219
002 $ 003 $ 0.05 0.06
002 $ 002 § 0.05 0.05
47,531,128 37,408,603 46,276,125 37,151,527
49,124,886 39,845,314 47,845,560 39,534,993
026 $ 025 $ 0.52 0.49



Easterly Government Properties, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands)

For the three months ended June 30, For the six months ended June 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Net income $ 1,719 $ 1,203 $ 3534 $ 2,744
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swaps,
net 662 (694) 2,521 (586)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 662 (694) 2,521 (586)
Comprehensive income 2,381 509 6,055 2,158
Non-controlling interest in Operating
Partnership (279) (221) (575) (525)
Other comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interest 141 221 (232) 209
Comprehensive income attributable to Easterly
Government Properties, Inc. $ 2,243  $ 509 % 5248  $ 1,842

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Easterly Government Properties, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited)

(Amounts in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization
Straight line rent

Amortization of above- / below-market leases

Amortization of unearned revenue
Amortization of loan premium / discount
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Non-cash compensation
Net change in:

Rents receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Real estate acquisitions and deposits
Additions to operating properties
Additions to development properties
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of deferred financing costs
Issuance of common shares
Credit facility draws
Credit facility repayments
Term loan draws
Issuance of notes payable
Issuance of mortgage notes payable
Repayments of mortgage notes payable
Dividends and distributions paid
Payment of offering costs

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in Cash and cash equivalents and Restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents and Restricted cash, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents and Restricted cash, end of period

For the six months ended June 30,

2018 2017
3534 $ 2,744
29,222 26,141
(3,073) (493)
(4,518) (4,218)
(52) (55)
(42) (42)
605 516
1,576 1,467
1,742 787
1,149 (923)
(1,988) (1,698)
459 318
28,614 24,544
(20,576) (249,492)
(2,425) (901)
(21,125) (3,911)
(44,126) (254,304)
(3,070) (3,225)
297,805 1,886
19,000 108,000
(118,750) (252,167)
— 100,000
— 175,000
— 127,500
(1,560) (1,473)
(29,196) (22,564)
(11,083) (24)
153,146 232,933
137,634 3,173
16,201 6,491
153,835  $ 9,664

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Easterly Government Properties, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information is as follows:

Cash paid for interest, net of capitalized interest
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash information
Additions to operating properties accrued, not paid
Additions to development properties accrued, not paid
Financing costs accrued, not paid
Offering costs accrued, not paid
Deferred asset acquisition costs accrued, not paid
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swaps, net
Debt assumed on acquisition of operating property
Exchange of Common Units for Shares of Common Stock
Non-controlling interest in Operating Partnership
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Total

For the six months ended June 30,

2018 2017

10,766 $ 5,149
652 $ 229
7,419 11
137 173
246 —
256 —

2,521 (586)
9,414 —

(3,039) $ (19,866)
2 13
3,037 19,853
— % —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Easterly Government Properties, Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

The information contained in the following notes to the consolidated financial statements is condensed from that which would appear in the annual
consolidated financial statements; accordingly, the consolidated financial statements included herein should be reviewed in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, and related notes thereto, included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Easterly
Government Properties, Inc. (the “Company™) for the year ended December 31, 2017 filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
on March 1, 2018.

The Company is a Maryland corporation that has elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) under the Internal Revenue Code, as
amended (the “Code”) commencing with its taxable year ended December 31, 2015. The operations of the Company are carried on primarily through Easterly
Government Properties LP (the “Operating Partnership”) and the wholly owned subsidiaries of the Operating Partnership. As used herein, the “Company,”
“we,” “us,” or “our” refer to Easterly Government Properties, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries and partnerships, including the Operating Partnership,
except where context otherwise requires.

We are an internally managed REIT, focused primarily on the acquisition, development, and management of Class A commercial properties that are
leased to U.S. Government agencies that serve essential functions. We generate substantially all of our revenue by leasing our properties to such agencies,
either directly or through the U.S. General Services Administration (“GSA™). Our objective is to generate attractive risk-adjusted returns for our stockholders
over the long term through dividends and capital appreciation.

As of June 30, 2018, we wholly owned 47 operating properties in the United States, including 45 operating properties that were leased primarily to
U.S. Government tenant agencies and two operating properties that were entirely leased to private tenants, encompassing approximately 3.7 million square
feet in the aggregate. In addition, we wholly owned three properties under development that we expect will encompass approximately 0.3 million square feet
upon completion. We focus on acquiring, developing, and managing U.S. Government leased properties that are essential to supporting the mission of the
tenant agency and strive to be a partner of choice for the U.S. Government, working with the tenant agency to meet its needs and objectives.

The Operating Partnership holds substantially all of our assets and conducts substantially all our business. The Company is the sole general partner of
the Operating Partnership. The Company owned approximately 86.9% of the aggregate limited partnership interests in the Operating Partnership (“common
units”) at June 30, 2018. We believe that we have operated and have been organized in conformity with the requirements for qualification and taxation as a
REIT for U.S federal income tax purposes commencing with our taxable year ended December 31, 2015.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of the Company, Easterly Government Properties TRS, LLC, Easterly
Government Services, LLC, the Operating Partnership and its other subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation.

Basis of Presentation

The condensed consolidated financial statements included herein are unaudited; however, they include all adjustments (consisting only of normal
recurring adjustments) which, in the opinion of management, are necessary to state fairly the consolidated financial position of the Company at June 30, 2018,
and the consolidated results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 and the consolidated cash flows for the six months
ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. The year-end condensed
consolidated balance sheet data was derived from audited financial statements but does not include all disclosures required by GAAP. The results of
operations for the interim periods presented are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the balance sheet and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.



2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Revision of Previously Reported Consolidated Financial Statements

In connection with the preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company identified
an error in the estimated useful life utilized to amortize certain assets associated with three properties contributed at the time of the Company’s initial public
offering in the first quarter of 2015. As a result of the error, Depreciation and amortization expense had been overstated and thereby Real estate properties,
net, Intangible assets, net and Equity were understated. The Company concluded that the amounts are not material to any of its previously issued consolidated
financial statements. However, to maintain proper comparability between our financial statements we have elected to revise prior periods. Accordingly, the
Company revised these balances in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017. The effects of this revision to
the consolidated financial statements are as follows (in thousands, except for per share data).

As Previously

Effect of Revision For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2017 Reported Adjustment As Revised

Total revenues $ 30,603 $ — % 30,603
Depreciation and amortization 13,462 (190) 13,272
Total expenses 25,876 (190) 25,686
Net income 1,013 190 1,203
Net income available to Easterly Government Properties, Inc. 827 155 982
Net income available to Easterly Government Properties, Inc. per share (basic) 0.02 0.01 0.03
Net income available to Easterly Government Properties, Inc. per share (diluted) 0.02 — 0.02
Comprehensive income 319 190 509

As Previously

Effect of Revision For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2017 Reported Adjustment As Revised

Depreciation and amortization $ 26,522 $ (381) $ 26,141
Total expenses 51,996 (381) 51,615
Net income 2,363 381 2,744
Net income available to Easterly Government Properties, Inc. 1,911 308 2,219
Net income available to Easterly Government Properties, Inc. per share (basic) 0.05 0.01 0.06
Net income available to Easterly Government Properties, Inc. per share (diluted) 0.05 — 0.05
Comprehensive income 1,777 381 2,158

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). Please refer to Note 10 for more
information pertaining to our adoption of this guidance.

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted ASU No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230), which provides classification guidance for
certain cash receipts and cash payments including payment of debt extinguishment costs, settlement of zero-coupon debt instruments, insurance claim
payments and distributions from equity method investees. The guidance should be applied retrospectively, however the implementation of this update did not
have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted and retrospectively applied ASU No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230), which requires that
the statement of cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or
restricted cash equivalents. The Company now reconciles both cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash in the accompanying Statements of Cash Flows
for all periods, whereas under the prior guidance the Company explained the changes during the period for cash and cash equivalents only.

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted ASU No. 2017-05, Other Income-Gains and Losses from the Derecognition of Nonfinancial Assets
(Subtopic 610-20): Clarifying the Scope of Asset Derecognition Guidance and Accounting for Partial Sales of Nonfinancial Assets. This ASU clarifies the
scope and accounting of a financial asset that meets the definition of an “in-substance nonfinancial asset” and defines the term “in-substance nonfinancial
asset.” This ASU also adds guidance for partial sales of nonfinancial assets. The Company adopted this ASU using the modified retrospective method and
the implementation of this update did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted ASU 2017-09, Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification Accounting, which provides
updated guidance about which changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award would require an entity to apply modification accounting
under the topic. The guidance should be applied prospectively to an award modified on or after the adoption date, however, implementation of this update did
not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases, which sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract (i.e., lessees and lessors). The new standard requires lessees to apply a dual approach, classifying leases as
either finance or operating leases based on the principle of whether or not the lease is effectively a financed purchase of the leased asset by the lessee. This
classification will determine whether the lease expense is recognized based on an effective interest method or on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. A lessee is also required to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases with a term of greater than 12 months regardless of their
classification. Leases with a term of 12 months or less will be accounted for in the same manner as operating leases today. As of June 30, 2018, the Company
had a sublease for office space in Washington D.C. expiring in June 2021 and a lease for office space in San Diego, CA expiring in April 2022. The
remaining contractual payments under the Company’s lease and sublease for office space aggregate $1.6 million.

The new standard requires lessors to account for leases using an approach that is substantially equivalent to existing guidance for sales-type leases,
direct financing leases and operating leases. In connection with the new revenue guidance, we believe that the new revenue standard may apply to executory
costs and other components of revenue deemed to be non-lease components, even when the revenue for such activities is not separately stipulated in the lease.
In that case, we would need to separate the lease components of revenue due under leases from the non-lease components. Under the new guidance, we would
continue to recognize the lease components of lease revenue on a straight-line basis over our respective lease terms as we do under prior guidance. However,
we would recognize the non-lease components under the new revenue guidance as the related services are delivered. As a result, while the total revenue
recognized over time would not differ under the new guidance, the recognition pattern could be different. The Company is currently in the process of
evaluating the significance of the difference in the recognition pattern that would result from this change.

Additionally, ASU 2016-02 will require that lessees and lessors capitalize, as initial direct costs, only those costs that are incurred due to the execution
of a lease. Under ASU 2016-02, allocated payroll costs and other costs that are incurred regardless of whether the lease is obtained will no longer be
capitalized as initial direct costs and instead will be expensed as incurred.

ASU No. 2016-02 is effective for reporting periods beginning January 1, 2019, with modified retrospective application for each reporting period
presented at the time of adoption. Early adoption is also permitted for this guidance. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of this new
guidance.

In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging: Targeted Improvements to Accounting for Hedging Activities. The purpose
of this updated guidance is to better align a company’s financial reporting for hedging activities with the economic objectives of those activities. The
transition guidance provides companies with the option of either adopting the new standard early using a modified retrospective transition method in any
interim period after issuance of the update, or alternatively adopting the new standard for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018. This adoption
method may require the Company to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the ASU as an adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as of the beginning of the fiscal year that an entity adopts the update.
While the Company continues to assess all potential impacts of the standard, we do not expect the adoption of this guidance to have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.



3. Real Estate and Intangibles

During the six months ended June 30, 2018, we acquired one operating property, VA — Golden, in an asset acquisition for a purchase price of $14.9
million. We allocated the purchase price of the acquisition based on the estimated fair values of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities as follows
(amounts in thousands):

Total

Real estate

Land $ 4,080

Building 7,718

Acquired tenant improvements 1,215
Total real estate 13,013
Intangible assets

In-place leases 1,752

Acquired leasing commissions 383
Total intangible assets 2,135
Intangible liabilities

Below-market leases (280)
Total intangible liabilities (280)
Purchase price 14,868

Less: Mortgage note assumed (9,414)
Net assets acquired $ 5,454

The intangible assets and liabilities of VA — Golden has a weighted average amortization period of 8.24 years as of June 30, 2018. During the six
months ended June 30, 2018, we included $0.2 million of revenues and less than $0.1 million of net income in our consolidated statement of operations
related to VA — Golden.

During the six months ended June 30, 2018, we agreed to acquire a 1,479,762-square foot portfolio of 14 properties (the “Acquisition Portfolio”) for a
purchase price of approximately $430.0 million, including a $15.0 million non-refundable deposit paid in connection with the execution of the purchase
agreement and the end of the due diligence period. The completion of the portfolio acquisition is subject to customary closing conditions.

During the six months ended June 30, 2018, we incurred $0.7 million of acquisition-related expenses including $0.5 million of internal costs
associated with property acquisitions.

Consolidated Real Estate and Intangibles

Real estate and intangibles consisted of the following as of June 30, 2018 (amounts in thousands):

Total

Real estate properties, net

Land $ 138,243

Building 1,109,671

Acquired tenant improvements 48,718

Construction in progress 42,997

Accumulated amortization (85,261)
Total Real estate properties, net $ 1,254,368
Intangible assets, net

In-place leases $ 161,872

Acquired leasing commissions 38,847

Above market leases 9,455

Accumulated amortization (77,697)
Total Intangible assets, net $ 132,477
Intangible liabilities, net

Below market leases $ (63,136)

Accumulated amortization 29,199
Total Intangible liabilities, net $ (33,937)



The following table summarizes the scheduled amortization of the Company’s acquired above- and below-market lease intangibles for each of the five
succeeding years as of June 30, 2018 (amounts in thousands):

Acquired Above-Market Lease Intangibles Acquired Below-Market Lease Intangibles

2018 $ 394 $ 4,494
2019 743 6,905
2020 609 6,208
2021 608 4,385
2022 608 2,850

Above-market lease amortization reduces Rental income on our Consolidated Statements of Operations and below-market lease amortization increases
Rental income on our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

4. Debt

At June 30, 2018, our consolidated borrowings consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

Principal Outstanding Interest Current
Loan June 30, 2018 Rate (1) Maturity
Revolving credit facility:
Revolving credit facility (2) $ — L + 130bps June 2022 3)
Total revolving credit facility —
Term loan facilities:
2016 term loan facility 100,000 3.17% (4) September 2023
2018 term loan facility — L + 125bps June 2023
Total term loan facility 100,000
Less: Total unamortized deferred financing fees (729)
Total term loan facilities, net 99,271
Notes payable:
Senior unsecured notes payable, series A 95,000 4.05% May 2027
Senior unsecured notes payable, series B 50,000 4.15% May 2029
Senior unsecured notes payable, series C 30,000 4.30% May 2032
Total notes payable 175,000
Less: Total unamortized deferred financing fees (1,273)
Total notes payable, net 173,727
Mortgage notes payable:
CBP - Savannah 13,856 3.40% (5) July 2033
ICE - Charleston 19,227 4.21% (5) January 2027
MEPCOM - Jacksonville 10,349 4.41% (5) October 2025
USFS 1II - Albuquerque 16,739 4.46% (5) July 2026
DEA - Pleasanton 15,700 L + 150bps (5) October 2023
VA - Loma Linda 127,500 3.59% (5) July 2027
VA - Golden 9,404 5.00% (5) April 2024
Total mortgage notes payable 212,775
Less: Total unamortized deferred financing fees (1,930)
Less: Total unamortized premium/discount 319
Total mortgage notes payable, net 211,164
Total debt $ 484,162

(1) At June 30, 2018, the one-month LIBOR (“L”) was 2.09%. The current interest rate is not adjusted to include the amortization of deferred
financing fees or debt issuance costs incurred in obtaining debt or any unamortized fair market value premiums. The spread over the applicable
rate for the Company’s senior unsecured revolving credit facility and senior unsecured term loan facility is based on the Company’s consolidated
leverage ratio, as defined in the respective loan agreements.
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(2)  Available capacity of $450.0 million at June 30, 2018 with an accordion feature that provides additional capacity of up to $250.0 million, for a
total facility size of not more than $700.0 million.

(3)  Ourrevolving credit facility has two six-month as-of-right extension options subject to certain conditions and the payment of an extension fee.

(4)  The interest rate is calculated based on two interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional value of $100.0 million, which effectively fix the
interest rate at 3.17% annually, based on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio, as defined in the 2016 term loan facility agreement.

(5)  Effective interest rates are as follows: CBP - Savannah 4.12%, ICE - Charleston 3.93%, MEPCOM - Jacksonville 3.89%, USFS II - Albuquerque
3.92%, DEA - Pleasanton 1.8%, VA — Loma Linda 3.78%, VA — Golden 5.03%.

On June 18, 2018, we entered into an amended and restated senior unsecured credit facility (our “amended senior unsecured credit facility”). Our
amended senior unsecured credit facility increased the total borrowing capacity of our existing senior unsecured credit facility by $200.0 million for a total
credit facility size of $600.0 million, consisting of two components: (i) a $450.0 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility (the “revolving credit
facility”), and (ii) a $150.0 million senior unsecured term loan facility (the “2018 term loan facility”). The revolving credit facility also includes an accordion
feature that will provide us with additional capacity, subject to the satisfaction of customary terms and conditions, of up to $250.0 million.

The Operating Partnership is the borrower, and we and certain of our subsidiaries that directly own certain of our properties are guarantors under our
amended senior unsecured credit facility. The revolving credit facility matures in four years and the 2018 term loan facility matures in five years. In addition,
the revolving credit facility has two six-month as-of-right extension options subject to certain conditions and the payment of an extension fee.

Our amended senior unsecured credit facility bears interest, at our option, either at:

. a Eurodollar rate equal to a periodic fixed rate equal to LIBOR plus, a margin ranging from 1.25% to 1.80% for advances under the
revolving credit facility and a margin ranging from 1.20% to 1.75% for advances under the 2018 term loan facility; or

. a fluctuating rate equal to the sum of (a) the highest of (x) Citibank, N.A.’s base rate, (y) the federal funds effective rate plus 0.50%
and (z) the one-month Eurodollar rate plus 1.00% plus (b) a margin ranging from 0.25% to 0.80% for advances under the revolving credit facility and
a margin ranging from 0.20% to 0.75% for advances under the 2018 term loan facility, in each case with a margin based on our leverage ratio.

The 2018 term loan facility has a 364-day delayed draw period and is prepayable without penalty for the entire term of the loan. As of June 30, 2018,
we had not drawn any funds under our 2018 term loan facility.

In addition, on June 18, 2018, we entered into a second amendment to our existing $100 million senior unsecured term loan facility (the “2016 term
loan facility”). The second amendment amends certain covenants and other provisions in the 2016 term loan facility to conform to changes made to such
covenants and other provisions in our amended senior unsecured credit facility.

Financial Covenant Considerations

The Company was in compliance with all financial and other covenants as of June 30, 2018 related to its revolving credit facility, 2016 term loan
facility, notes payable and mortgage notes payable.

Fair Value of Debt

As of June 30, 2018, the carrying value of our 2016 term loan facility approximated fair value. In determining the fair value we considered the variable
interest rate and credit spreads. We deem the fair value of our 2016 term loan facility as a Level 3 measurement.

At June 30, 2018, the fair value of our notes payable was determined by discounting future contractual principal and interest payments using
prevailing market rates. We deem the fair value measurement of our notes payable instruments as a Level 3 measurement. At June 30, 2018, the fair value of
our notes payable was $171.5 million.

At June 30, 2018, the fair value of our mortgage notes payable was determined by discounting future contractual principal and interest payments using

prevailing market rates. We deem the fair value measurement of our mortgage notes payable as a Level 3 measurement. At June 30, 2018, the fair value of our
mortgage notes payable was $205.7 million.
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5. Derivatives and Hedging Activities

As of June 30, 2018, the Company had two outstanding interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional value of $100.0 million that were designated as
cash flow hedges. The swaps had an effective date of March 29, 2017 and extend until the maturity of our 2016 term loan facility on September 29, 2023. The
swaps effectively fix the interest rate under our 2016 term loan facility at 3.17% annually based on the Company’s current consolidated leverage ratio and a
variable interest rate of one-month LIBOR.

Cash Flow Hedges of Interest Rate Risk

As of June 30, 2018 our swaps were classified as an asset on our consolidated balance sheet at $6.6 million. The effective portion of changes in the fair
value of derivatives designated and qualified as cash flow hedges is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income and will be reclassified to interest
expense in the period that the hedged forecasted transactions affect earnings on the Company’s consolidated variable rate debt. The ineffective portion of the
change in fair value of the derivatives is recognized directly in earnings into interest expense. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 the amount
of unrealized gains recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income on interest rate swaps was $0.8 million and $2.7 million, respectively. For the
three and six months ended June 30, 2018 the amount of gain reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income into interest expense was $0.1
million and $0.2 million, respectively. Additionally, during the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, the Company did not record any hedge
ineffectiveness. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 the amount of unrealized loss recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income on
interest rate swaps was $0.8 million and $0.7 million, respectively. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2017 the amount of loss reclassified from
accumulated other comprehensive income into interest expense was $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively. Additionally, during the three and six months
ended June 30, 2017, the Company did not record any hedge ineffectiveness.

The Company estimates that $1.0 million will be reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income as a decrease to interest expense over the
next 12 months.

Credit-Risk-Related Contingent Features

The Company has agreements with each of its derivative counterparties that contain a provision where the Company could be declared in default on its
derivative obligations if repayment of the underlying indebtedness is accelerated by the lender due to the Company’s default on such indebtedness. As of
June 30, 2018, the Company did not have any derivatives in a net liability position.

6. Fair Value Measurements

Accounting standards define fair value as the exit price, or the amount that would be received upon sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The standards also establish a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that
maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when
available. Observable inputs are inputs market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from sources
independent of us. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect our assumptions about the factors market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability
developed based upon the best information available in the circumstances. The hierarchy of these inputs is broken down into three levels: Level 1, defined as
observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or
indirectly observable; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own
assumptions. Categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is most significant to the fair value measurement.

Recurring fair value measurements

The fair values of our interest rate swaps are determined using widely accepted valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow analysis on the
expected cash flows of each derivative. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the derivatives, including the period to maturity, and uses observable
market-based inputs, including interest rate curves and implied volatilities in such interest rates. While the Company determined that the majority of the
inputs used to value its derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the credit valuation adjustments associated with its derivatives utilize Level
3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of default by the Company and its counterparties. The Company has
determined that the significance of the impact of the credit valuation adjustments made to its derivative contracts, which determination was based on the fair
value of each individual contract, was not significant to the overall valuation. As a result, all of the Company’s derivatives held as of June 30, 2018 were
classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, other assets and accounts payable and accrued expenses are
reasonable estimates of fair values because of the short maturities of these instruments. For our disclosure of debt fair values in Note 4, we estimated the fair
value of our 2016 term loan facility based on the variable interest rate and credit spreads (categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy) and estimated
the fair value of our other debt based on the discounted estimated future cash payments to be made on such debt (categorized within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy); the discount rates used approximate current market rates for loans, or groups of loans, with similar maturities and credit quality, and the estimated
future payments included scheduled principal and interest payments. Fair value estimates are made as of a specific point in time, are subjective in nature and
involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment. Settlement at such fair value amounts may not be possible and may not be a prudent management
decision.

The table below presents the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2018, aggregated by the level
in the fair value hierarchy within which those measurements fall.

As of June 30, 2018
Balance Sheet Line Item Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Interest rate swaps - Asset $ — $ 6,552 $ —

7. Equity

The following table summarizes the changes in our stockholders’ equity for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (amounts in thousands,
except share amounts):

Non-
Common Accumulated controlling
Stock Additional Retained Other Interest in
Par Paid-in Earnings Cumulative Comprehensive Operating Total
Shares Value Capital (Deficit) Dividends Income Partnership Equity
Six months ended June 30, 2018

Balance at December 31, 2017 44,787,040 $ 448 $ 740,546 $ 7,127 $ (83,718) $ 3,403 $ 123,283 $ 791,089
Stock based compensation — 181 — — — 1,395 1,576
Dividends and distributions paid — — — (23,855) — (5,341) (29,196)
Grant of unvested restricted stock 21,328 — — — — — — —
Redemption of common units for

shares of common stock 186,061 2 3,037 — — — (3,039) —
Issuance of common stock 15,382,037 154 286,350 — — — — 286,504
Unrealized gain on interest rate swaps,

net — — — — 2,289 232 2,521
Net income — — 2,959 — — 575 3,534
Allocation of non-controlling interest

in Operating Partnership — (21,499) — — — 21,499 —
Balance at June 30, 2018 60,376,466 $ 604 $ 1,008,615 $ 10,086 $ (107573) $ 5,692 $ 138,604 $ 1,056,028

Six months ended June 30, 2017

Balance at December 31, 2016 36,874,810 $ 369 $ 597,164 $ 2,679 $ (42,794) $ 3,038 $ 137,844 $ 698,300
Stock based compensation — 158 — — — 1,309 1,467
Dividends and distributions paid — — — (18,432) — (4,132) (22,564)
Grant of unvested restricted stock 17,912 — — — — — — —
Redemption of common units for

shares of common stock 1,325,331 13 19,853 — — — (19,866) —
Issuance of common stock 87,048 1 1,861 — — — — 1,862
Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps,

net — — — — (377) (209) (586)
Net income — — 2,219 — — 525 2,744
Allocation of non-controlling interest

in Operating Partnership — 876 — — — (876) —
Balance at June 30, 2017 38,305,101 $ 383 $ 619,912 $ 4,898 $ (61,226) $ 2,661 $ 114,595 $ 681,223

The Company granted 891,000 long term incentive plan units in our operating partnership (“LTIP units”) on May 6, 2015 and 40,000 LTIP units on
February 26, 2016 to members of management as long-term incentive compensation under the 2015 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended (the “2015 Equity
Incentive Plan”) subject to the Company achieving certain absolute and relative total shareholder returns through the performance period, which ended on
December 31, 2017. Based on the Company’s absolute and relative total shareholder return performance through the end of the performance period, the
compensation committee of the Company’s board of directors determined that an aggregate of 2,079,297 LTIP units were earned. Under the terms of the
awards, earned awards vested 50% on February 15, 2018 with the remaining 50% vesting on February 6, 2019, subject to the grantee’s continued
employment.
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On January 4, 2018, the Company granted an aggregate of 173,381 performance-based LTIP units to members of management under the 2015 Equity
Incentive Plan, subject to the Company achieving certain absolute and relative total shareholder returns through the performance period. The awards consist
of three separate tranches of 32,448 LTIP units, 55,463 LTIP units and 85,470 LTIP units with performance periods ending on December 31, 2018, December
31, 2019 and December 31, 2020, respectively. The performance criteria for each tranche is based 75% on the Company’s absolute total shareholder return
performance and 25% on the Company’s relative total shareholder return performance during the relevant performance period, with 50% of the LTIP Units
vesting when earned following the end of the applicable performance period and 50% of the earned award subject to an additional one year of vesting.

On April 3, 2018, the Company issued an aggregate of 2,236 shares of restricted common stock to certain employees pursuant to our 2015 Equity

Incentive Plan. The restricted common stock grants will vest upon the second anniversary of the grant date so long as the grantee remains an employee of the
Company on such date.

In connection with our 2018 annual meeting of stockholders, we issued an aggregate of 19,092 shares of restricted common stock to our non-employee
directors pursuant to our 2015 Equity Incentive Plan. The restricted common stock grants will vest upon the earlier of the anniversary of the date of the grant
or the next annual stockholder meeting.

In connection with the liquidation of certain private investment funds that contributed assets in our initial public offering, we issued 186,061 shares of
our common stock between January 1, 2018 and June 30, 2018 upon redemption of 186,061 common units in accordance with the terms of the partnership
agreement of the Operating Partnership.

A summary of our shares of restricted common stock and LTIP unit awards at June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Restricted LTIP Units

Shares Weighted ‘Weighted
Average Grant Average Grant
Date Fair Value Date Fair Value

Restricted Shares Per Share LTIP Units Per Share
Outstanding, December 31, 2017 17,912 $ 19.72 926,000 $ 8.91
Granted 21,328 20.87 173,381 18.31
Vested (15,220) 19.71 (463,000) 8.91
Forfeited — — — —
Outstanding, June 30, 2018 24,020 $ 20.74 636,381 $ 11.47

We recognized $1.6 million in compensation expense related to our shares of restricted common stock and the LTIP unit awards for the six months

ended June 30, 2018. As of June 30, 2018, unrecognized compensation expense for both sets of awards was $3.6 million, which will be amortized over the
vesting period.

A summary of dividends declared by the board of directors per share of common stock and per common unit at the date of record is as follows:

Quarter Declaration Date Record Date Pay Date Dividend (1)
Q12018 May 3, 2018 June 11, 2018 June 28, 2018 $ 0.26
Q22018 August 1, 2018 September 13, 2018 September 27, 2018 $ 0.26

(1)  Prior to the end of the performance period as set forth in the applicable LTIP unit award, holders of LTIP units are entitled to receive dividends
per LTIP unit equal to 10% of the dividend paid per common unit. After the end of the performance period, the number of LTIP units, both
vested and unvested, that LTIP award recipients have earned, if any, are entitled to receive dividends in an amount per LTIP unit equal to
dividends, both regular and special, payable per common unit.
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On March 3, 2017, we entered into separate equity distribution agreements with each of Citigroup Global Markets Inc., BTIG, LLC, Jefferies LLC,
Raymond James & Associates, Inc., RBC Capital Markets, LLC and SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc. (collectively, the “managers”), pursuant to which we
may issue and sell the shares of our common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to $100.0 million from time to time through the managers, acting
as sales agents and/or principals (the “ATM program”). The sales of shares of our common stock under the equity distribution agreements may be made in
negotiated transactions or transactions that are deemed to be “at the market” offerings as defined in Rule 415 under the Securities Act. The following table
sets forth certain information with respect to the ATM program as of June 30, 2018:

Number of Shares Sold Net Proceeds
For the year ended December 31, 2017 1,569,514 $ 33,263
For the three months ended March 31, 2018 671,666 13,532
For the three months ended June 30, 2018 1,010,371 20,208
3,251,551 $ 67,003

We have used the proceeds from such sales for general corporate purposes. As of June 30, 2018, we had approximately $32.3 million of gross sales of
our common stock available under the ATM program.

On June 21, 2018, we completed an underwritten public offering of an aggregate of 20,700,000 shares of our common stock, consisting of
(i) 13,700,000 shares sold by us to the underwriters (including 2,700,000 shares pursuant to the underwriters’ exercise of their option to purchase additional
shares) and (ii) 7,000,000 shares offered and sold on a forward basis in connection with forward sales agreements entered into with certain financial
institutions, acting as forward purchasers. We received approximately $252.9 million in net proceeds from the sale of shares offered by us in the offering,
after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and our offering expenses. Subject to the Company’s right to elect cash or net share settlement, we
expect to physically settle the forward sales agreements no later than December 21, 2018. Assuming the forward sales agreements are physically settled in
full, we expect to receive an additional $129.3 million of net proceeds, after deducting underwriting discounts, commissions and estimated offering expenses.

8. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings or loss per share of common stock (“EPS”) is calculated by dividing net income attributable to common stockholders by the weighted
average shares of common stock outstanding for the periods presented. Diluted EPS is computed after adjusting the basic EPS computation for the effect of
dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the periods presented. Unvested restricted shares and unvested LTIP units are considered participating
securities, which require the use of the two-class method for the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.

The following table sets forth the computation of the Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share of common stock for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (amounts in thousands, except per share amounts):

For the three months ended June 30, For the six months ended June 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Numerator
Net income $ 1,719 $ 1,203 $ 3,534 $ 2,744
Less: Non-controlling interest in Operating
Partnership (279) (221) (575) (525)
Net income available to Easterly Government
Properties, Inc. 1,440 982 2,959 2,219
Less: Dividends on participating securities (281) (28) (561) (54)
Net income available to common stockholders $ 1,159 $ 954 $ 2,398 $ 2,165
Denominator for basic EPS 47,531,128 37,408,603 46,276,125 37,151,527
Dilutive effect of share-based compensation awards 10,596 8,191 6,408 6,992
Dilutive effect of LTIP units (1) 999,179 1,873,429 987,516 1,856,030
Dilutive effect of shares issuable under forward
sales agreements 583,983 555,091 575,511 520,444
Denominator for diluted EPS 49,124,886 39,845,314 47,845,560 39,534,993
Basic EPS $ 002 $ 003 $ 005 $ 0.06
Diluted EPS $ 002 $ 002 $ 005 $ 0.05

(1)  During the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, there were approximately 173,381 unvested performance-based LTIP units that were not
included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because to do so would have been antidilutive for the period.
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9. Operating Leases

Our rental properties are subject to generally non-cancelable operating leases generating future minimum contractual rent payments due from tenants.
As of June 30, 2018, future non-cancelable minimum contractual rent payments are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Payments due by period
Total 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Thereafter

Operating Leases
Minimum lease payments $ 917,080 52,583 107,083 101,536 90,473 77,685 487,720

The Company’s consolidated operating properties were 100% occupied by 24 tenants at June 30, 2018.

For the six months ended June 30, 2018 we recognized $57.1 million in rental income attributable to base rent, $4.5 million in rental income
attributable to the amortization of our above- and below-market leases and a straight-line adjustment of $3.1 million.

10. Revenue

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) using the modified retrospective
method and applied it to all contracts that were not completed as of January 1, 2018. The new guidance requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue
to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers and replaced the existing revenue recognition guidance.

The adoption of Topic 606 did not have an impact on the Company’s historical financial statements as the revenue that falls under the scope of this
guidance is limited to tenant construction projects and the associated management fee, the recognition of which did not change from how the Company has
historically accounted for these projects upon adoption of the new guidance. Tenant construction project reimbursements consist primarily of subcontracted
costs that are reimbursed to the Company by the tenant.

Historically, the Company has accounted for tenant construction project reimbursement arrangements using the percentage of completion method and
will continue to recognize revenue from tenant construction projects using the percentage of completion method when the revenue and costs for such projects
can be estimated with reasonable accuracy; when these criteria do not apply to a project, the Company recognizes revenue from that project using the
completed contract method. Under the percentage of completion method, the Company recognizes a percentage of the total revenue on a project based on the
cost of services provided on the project as of a point in time relative to the total costs on the project. The duration of the majority of tenant construction
project reimbursement arrangements are less than a year and payment is typically due once a project is complete and work has been accepted by the
tenant. For those projects ongoing as of June 30, 2018 and with a duration of greater than one year, the aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to
remaining performance obligations at the end of the reporting period was $0.1 million, which will be recognized as revenue prior to the end of 2018 using the
percentage of completion method as discussed above.

The table below sets forth revenue from tenant construction projects disaggregated by tenant agency for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018
(in thousands).

For the three months ended June 30, For the six months ended June 30,

Tenant 2018 2018
Administrative Office of the U.S. Courts (“AOC”) $ 12 3 112
Drug Enforcement Administration (“DEA™) 163 186
Federal Bureau of Investigation (“FBI”) 67 125
Immigration and Customs Enforcement (“ICE”) — 9
National Park Service (“NPS”) — 31
Social Security Administration (“SSA”) 14 14
U.S. Coast Guard (“USCG”) — 6
U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (“USCIS”) 39 39
U.S. Forest Service (“USFS”) 61 90
Department of Veteran Affairs (“VA”) 1,246 2,033

$ 1,602 $ 2,645
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The balance in Accounts receivable related to tenant construction projects was $1.2 million as of June 30, 2018 and $3.0 million as of December 31,
2017. There were no contract assets or liabilities as of June 30, 2018.

11. Concentrations Risk

Concentrations of credit risk arise for the Company when multiple tenants of the Company are engaged in similar business activities, are located in the
same geographic region or have similar economic features that impact in a similar manner their ability to meet contractual obligations, including those to the
Company. The Company regularly monitors its tenant base to assess potential concentrations of credit risk.

As stated in Note 1 above, the Company leases commercial space to the U.S. Government or nongovernmental tenants. At June 30, 2018, the U.S
Government accounted for approximately 98.7% of rental income and non-governmental tenants accounted for the remaining approximately 1.3%.

Fourteen of our 47 operating properties are located in California, accounting for approximately 25.4% of our total rentable square feet and
approximately 32.8% of our total annualized lease income as of June 30, 2018. In addition, we owned two properties under development located in
California. To the extent that weak economic or real estate conditions or natural disasters affect California more severely than other areas of the country, our
business, financial condition and results of operations could be significantly impacted.

12. Subsequent Events

For its consolidated financial statements as of June 30, 2018, the Company evaluated subsequent events and noted the following significant events:

On July 11, 2018, we acquired a 90,085 square foot VA Facility in San Jose, CA. The building was constructed in 2018 and is 100% leased to the VA
for an initial, non-cancelable lease term of 20 years through February 2038.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”). We caution investors that forward-looking statements are based on management’s beliefs and on assumptions made by, and information
currently available to, management. When used, the words “anticipate”, “believe”, “estimate”, “expect”, “intend”, “may”, “might”, “plan”, “project”,
“result”, “should”, “will”, and similar expressions which do not relate solely to historical matters are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These
statements are subject to risks, uncertainties, and assumptions and are not guarantees of future performance, which may be dffected by known and unknown
risks, trends, uncertainties, and factors that are beyond our control. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying
assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those anticipated, estimated, or projected. We expressly disclaim any responsibility to
update our forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise. Accordingly, investors should use caution in
relying on forward-looking statements, which are based on results and trends at the time they are made, to anticipate future results or trends.

Some of the risks and uncertainties that may cause our actual results, performance, or achievements to differ materially from those expressed or
implied by forward-looking statements include, among others, the following:

. the factors included under the heading “Risk Factors” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017
and the factors included under the heading “Risk Factors” in the Company’s other public filings;

. risks associated with our dependence on the U.S. Government and its agencies for substantially all of our revenues, including credit risk and
risk that the U.S. Government reduces its spending on real estate or that it changes its preference away from leased properties;

. risks associated with ownership and development of real estate;

. the risk of decreased rental rates or increased vacancy rates;

. loss of key personnel;

. general volatility of the capital and credit markets and the market price of our common stock;

. the risk we may lose one or more major tenants;

. difficulties in completing and successfully integrating acquisitions;

. failure of acquisitions or development projects to occur at anticipated levels or yield anticipated results;

. risks associated with actual or threatened terrorist attacks;

. intense competition in the real estate market that may limit our ability to attract or retain tenants or re-lease space;

. insufficient amounts of insurance or exposure to events that are either uninsured or underinsured;

. uncertainties and risks related to adverse weather conditions, natural disasters and climate change;

. exposure to liability relating to environmental and health and safety matters;

. limited ability to dispose of assets because of the relative illiquidity of real estate investments and the nature of our assets;
. exposure to litigation or other claims;

. risks associated with breaches of our data security;

. risks associated with our indebtedness, including failure to refinance current or future indebtedness on favorable terms, or at all; failure to

meet the restrictive covenants and requirements in our existing and new debt agreements; fluctuations in interest rates and increased costs to
refinance or issue new debt;

. risks associated with derivatives or hedging activity; and
. risks associated with mortgage debt or unsecured financing or the unavailability thereof, which could make it difficult to finance or refinance

properties and could subject us to foreclosure.

For a further discussion of these and other factors, see the section entitled “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2017.
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Overview

2« » «

References to “we,” “our,” “us” and “the Company” refer to Easterly Government Properties, Inc., a Maryland corporation, together with our
consolidated subsidiaries including Easterly Government Properties LP, a Delaware limited partnership, which we refer to herein as our operating partnership.

We are an internally managed real estate investment trust, or REIT, focused primarily on the acquisition, development and management of Class A
commercial properties that are leased to U.S. Government agencies that serve essential functions. We generate substantially all of our revenue by leasing our
properties to such agencies, either directly or through the U.S. General Services Administration, or GSA. Our objective is to generate attractive risk-adjusted
returns for our stockholders over the long term through dividends and capital appreciation.

As of June 30, 2018, we wholly owned 47 operating properties in the United States, including 45 operating properties that were leased primarily to
U.S. Government tenant agencies and two operating properties that were entirely leased to private tenants, encompassing approximately 3.7 million square
feet in the aggregate. In addition, we wholly owned three properties under development that we expect to encompass approximately 0.3 million square feet
upon completion. We focus on acquiring, developing and managing U.S. Government leased properties that are essential to supporting the mission of the
tenant agency and strive to be a partner of choice for the U.S. Government, working with the tenant agency to meet its needs and objectives.

Our operating partnership holds substantially all of our assets and conducts substantially all of our business. As of June 30, 2018, we owned
approximately 86.9% of the aggregate limited partnership interests in our operating partnership, or common units. We have elected to be taxed as a REIT and
operate in a manner that we believe allows us to continue to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes commencing with our taxable year ended
December 31, 2015.

Recent Acquisitions

On May 24, 2018, we acquired a 56,753 square foot Department of Veteran Affairs (VA) Facility in Golden, CO. The building was originally
constructed in 1996 and fully renovated in 2011 to meet the specific design needs of the VA. The facility is leased to the VA for an initial 15-year lease term,
which expires in September 2026.

On July 11, 2018, we acquired a 90,085 square foot VA Facility in San Jose, CA. The building was constructed in 2018 and is 100% leased to the VA
for an initial, non-cancelable lease term of 20 years through February 2038.

Pending Portfolio Acquisition

On June 15, 2018, we entered into a definitive purchase and sale agreement, which we refer to as the purchase agreement, to acquire a portfolio of 14
properties, comprising 1,479,762 square feet, from a third-party seller and its affiliates for an aggregate contractual purchase price of approximately $430.0
million. The 14-property portfolio, which we refer to as the Acquisition Portfolio, is 94% leased to the U.S. Federal Government and 99% leased overall.
Based on lease count and property count respectively, 88% of the U.S. Government leases are still under their original lease contract and 79% of the
properties are build-to-suit or renovation-to-suit construction, designed for the specific needs and requirements of the occupying U.S. Government tenant
agency. We expect to close on the properties in the acquisition portfolio on a rolling basis between August and December of 2018. The completion of the
portfolio acquisition is subject to customary closing conditions and is not subject to a financing or due diligence condition or the receipt of third-party
consents. There is no assurance that we or the sellers will fulfill such customary closing conditions or that we will complete the portfolio acquisition on the
anticipated schedule or at all.

Operating Properties

As of June 30, 2018, our 47 operating properties were 100% leased with a weighted average annualized lease income per leased square foot of $35.64
and a weighted average age of approximately 12.7 years. We calculate annualized lease income as annualized contractual base rent for the last month in a
specified period, plus the annualized straight-line rent adjustments for the last month in such period and the annualized expense reimbursements earned by us
for the last month in such period.
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Information about our operating properties as of June 30, 2018 is set forth in the table below:

Annualized
Percentage Lease
of Total Income per
Tenant Lease Rentable Annualized Annualized Leased
Property Expiration Square Lease Lease Square
Property Name Location Type (1) Year (2) Feet Income Income Foot
U.S Government Leased
VA - Loma Linda Loma Linda, CA oC 2036 327,614 $ 16,029,163 121% $ 48.93
IRS - Fresno Fresno, CA (6] 2033 180,481 7,548,561 5.7% 41.82
FBI - Salt Lake Salt Lake City, UT (¢} 2032 169,542 6,746,595 5.1% 39.79
PTO - Arlington Arlington, VA (0] 2019/2020 (3) 189,871 6,598,312 5.0% 34.75
FBI - San Antonio San Antonio, TX (6] 2021 148,584 5,132,896 3.9% 34.55
FBI - Omaha Omaha, NE (¢} 2024 112,196 4,432,976 3.3% 39.51
EPA - Kansas City Kansas City, KS L 2023 71,979 4,183,838 3.2% 58.13
VA - South Bend Mishakawa, IN oC 2032 86,363 3,985,309 3.0% 46.15
ICE - Charleston (4) North Charleston, SC (0] 2021/2027 (5) 86,733 3,780,688 2.8% 43.59
DOT - Lakewood Lakewood, CO (e} 2024 122,225 3,382,692 2.5% 27.68
USCIS - Lincoln Lincoln, NE (¢} 2020 137,671 3,314,921 2.5% 24.08
FBI - Birmingham Birmingham, AL (¢} 2020 96,278 3,220,700 2.4% 33.45
AOC - El Centro (6) El Centro, CA C/O 2019 46,813 3,095,133 2.3% 66.12
OSHA - Sandy Sandy, UT L 2024 (7) 75,000 2,979,790 22% 39.73
USFS 1I - Albuquerque Albuquerque, NM (¢} 2026 (8) 98,720 2,870,004 2.2% 29.07
ICE - Albuquerque Albuquerque, NM (0] 2027 71,100 2,804,426 2.1% 39.44
DEA - Vista Vista, CA L 2020 54,119 2,777,302 2.1% 51.32
DEA - Pleasanton Pleasanton, CA L 2035 42,480 2,775,692 2.1% 65.34
USFS I - Albuquerque Albuquerque, NM (¢} 2021 (8) 92,455 2,749,070 2.1% 29.73
FBI - Richmond Richmond, VA (¢} 2021 96,607 2,749,032 2.1% 28.46
AOC - Del Rio (6) Del Rio, TX C/O 2024 89,880 2,685,251 2.0% 29.88
DEA - Dallas Lab Dallas, TX L 2021 49,723 2,414,114 1.8% 48.55
FBI - Little Rock Little Rock, AR (¢} 2021 101,977 2,206,381 1.7% 21.64
MEPCOM - Jacksonville Jacksonville, FL (¢} 2025 30,000 2,183,945 1.6% 72.80
CBP - Savannah Savannah, GA L 2033 35,000 2,118,784 1.6% 60.54
FBI - Albany Albany, NY (¢} 2018 98,184 2,098,811 1.6% 21.38
DEA - Santa Ana Santa Ana, CA (¢} 2024 39,905 2,077,244 1.6% 52.05
DOE - Lakewood Lakewood, CO (¢} 2029 115,650 2,068,524 1.6% 17.89
CBP - Chula Vista Chula Vista, CA (¢} 2028 59,322 1,804,171 1.4% 30.41
DEA - Dallas Dallas, TX (0] 2021 71,827 1,785,029 1.3% 24.85
NPS - Omaha Omaha, NE (¢} 2024 62,772 1,751,754 1.3% 27.91
ICE - Otay San Diego, CA (¢} 202272026 (9) 52,881 1,742,757 1.3% 35.24
VA - Golden Golden, CO O/W 2026 56,753 1,686,982 1.3% 29.72
CBP - Sunburst Sunburst, MT (e} 2028 33,000 1,597,758 1.2% 48.42
USCG - Martinsburg Martinsburg, WV (¢} 2027 59,547 1,582,249 1.2% 26.57
DEA - Birmingham(10) Birmingham, AL (¢} 2020 35,616 1,533,079 1.2% 43.04
DEA - Otay (11) San Diego, CA (¢} 2018 32,560 1,490,135 1.1% 45.77
AOC - Aberdeen (6) Aberdeen, MS C/O 2025 46,979 1,465,665 1.1% 31.20
DEA - North Highlands Sacramento, CA (6] 2032 37,975 1,435,217 1.1% 37.79
DEA - Albany Albany, NY (¢} 2025 31,976 1,348,050 1.0% 42.16
DEA - Riverside Riverside, CA (¢} 2032 34,354 1,232,259 0.9% 35.87
AOC - South Bend (6) South Bend, IN C/O 2027 30,119 820,347 0.6% 27.24
DEA - San Diego San Diego, CA \ 2032 16,100 531,914 0.4% 33.04
SSA - Mission Viejo Mission Viejo, CA (¢} 2020 11,590 467,297 0.4% 40.32
SSA - San Diego San Diego, CA (¢} 2032 10,856 327,423 0.2% 32.55
Subtotal 3,551,377 $ 131,612,240 99.2% $ 37.10
Privately Leased
5998 Osceola Court -

United Technologies Midland, GA W/M 2023 (12) 105,641 544,405 0.4% 5.15
501 East Hunter Street -

Lummus Corporation Lubbock, TX W/D 2028 (7) 70,078 520,918 0.4% 7.43
Subtotal 175,719 $ 1,065,323 0.8% $ 6.06
Total / Weighted Average 3,727,096 $ 132,677,563 100.0% $ 35.64

(€))] OC=Outpatient Clinic; O=Office; C=Courthouse; L=Laboratory; W=Warehouse; D=Distribution; M=Manufacturing.

) The year of lease expiration does not include renewal options. All leases with renewal options are noted in the following footnotes to this table.

3) 168,468 rentable square feet leased to the PTO will expire on March 31, 2019, and 21,403 rentable square feet leased to the PTO will expire on January 7, 2020.
(@) This property is only partially leased to the U.S. Government. We Are Sharing Hope SC (formerly known as LifePoint, Inc.) occupies 21,609 rentable square feet.

5) 21,609 rentable square feet leased to We Are Sharing Hope SC will expire on September 30, 2021, and 54,872 rentable square feet leased to ICE, 9,198 rentable square feet leased to
DEA, and 1,054 rentable square feet leased to U.S. Marshals Service will expire on January 31, 2027.
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A portion of this property is occupied by the U.S. Marshals Service to provide security and otherwise support the mission of the Administrative Office of the Courts. Because of the
interrelated nature of the U.S. Marshals Service and the Administrative Office of the Courts, we have not separately addressed occupancy by the U.S. Marshals Service.

Lease contains two five-year renewal options.
Lease contains one five-year renewal option.

40,485 rentable square feet leased to ICE will expire on November 27, 2022, 7,434 rentable square feet leased to the DOT will expire on June 4, 2022 and 1,538 rentable square feet
leased to the Department of Agriculture (DOA) will expire on January 1, 2026.
The Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) occupies 8,680 rentable square feet.

ICE occupies 5,813 rentable square feet.
Lease contains three five-year renewal options.

Certain of our leases are currently in the “soft-term” period of the lease, meaning that the U.S. Government tenant agency has the right to terminate the
lease prior to its stated lease end date. We believe that, from the U.S. Government’s perspective, leases with such provisions are helpful for budgetary
purposes. While some of our leases are contractually subject to early termination, we do not believe that our tenant agencies are likely to terminate these
leases early given the build-to-suit features at the properties subject to the leases, the average age of these properties (approximately 16.2 years as of June 30,

2018), the mission-critical focus of the properties subject to the leases and the current level of operations at such properties.

The following table sets forth a schedule of lease expirations for leases in place as of June 30, 2018.

Percentage Annualized
of Total Lease Income
Number of Square Percentage of Annualized Annualized per Leased
. Leases Footage Portfolio Square Lease Income Lease Income Square Foot
Year of Lease Expiration (1) Expiring Expiring Footage Expiring Expiring Expiring Expiring
2018 3 130,744 3.5% 3,588,946 2.7% 27.45
2019 2 215,281 5.8% 8,919,751 6.7% 41.43
2020 7 356,677 9.6% 12,086,993 9.1% 33.89
2021 7 582,782 15.7% 17,646,138 13.3% 30.28
2022 2 47,919 1.3% 1,687,758 1.3% 35.22
2023 2 177,620 4.8% 4,728,243 3.6% 26.62
2024 6 501,978 13.5% 17,309,707 13.0% 34.48
2025 3 108,955 2.9% 4,997,660 3.8% 45.87
2026 3 157,011 4.2% 4,611,985 3.5% 29.37
2027 6 225,890 6.1% 8,378,094 6.3% 37.09
Thereafter 10 1,218,018 32.6% 48,722,288 36.7% 40.00
Total / Weighted Average 51 3,722,875 100.0% $ 132,677,563 100.0% $ 35.64
(1)  The year of lease expirations is pursuant to current contract terms. Some tenants have the right to vacate their space during a specified period, or

“soft term,” before the stated terms of their leases expire. As of June 30, 2018, four tenants occupying approximately 6.1% of our rentable square
feet and contributing approximately 4.4% of our annualized lease income have exercisable rights to terminate their leases before the stated term

of their lease expires.
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Results of Operations
Comparison of Results of Operations for the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
The financial information presented below summarizes the results of operations of the Company for the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(amounts in thousands).

For the three months ended June 30,

2018 2017 Change
Revenues
Rental income $ 32,459 $ 27,501 $ 4,958
Tenant reimbursements 4,089 2,974 1,115
Other income 424 128 296
Total revenues 36,972 30,603 6,369
Operating Expenses
Property operating 7,223 5,837 1,386
Real estate taxes 3,845 2,979 866
Depreciation and amortization 14,588 13,272 1,316
Acquisition costs 499 456 43
Corporate general and administrative 3,623 3,142 481
Total expenses 29,778 25,686 4,092
Operating income 7,194 4,917 2,277
Other expenses
Interest expense (5,475) (3,714) (1,761)
Net income $ 1,719 $ 1,203 $ 516
Revenues

Total revenue consists primarily of rental income from our properties, tenant reimbursements for real estate taxes and certain other expenses, and
project management income.

Total revenue increased by $6.4 million to $37.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 compared to $30.6 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2017. The increase is primarily attributable to an additional $5.1 million of revenue from the three operating properties acquired since June 30,
2017 as well as a full period of operations from one operating property acquired during the three months ended June 30,2017 offset by one property disposed
of since June 30, 2017. Additionally, there was a $0.8 million increase in tenant project reimbursements and the associated project management income.

Operating Expenses

Total expenses increased by $4.1 million to $29.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 compared to $25.7 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2017. The increase is attributable to $3.0 million in property operating expenses, real estate taxes, and depreciation and amortization
associated with the three operating properties acquired since June 30, 2017 as well as a full period of operations from one operating property acquired during
the three months ended June 30, 2017 offset by one property disposed of since June 30, 2017, as well as a $0.8 million increase in expenses associated with
projects and other services that were fully reimbursed by the tenant and a $0.5 million increase in employee services. This was offset by a $0.5 million
decrease in depreciation related to the timing of intangible asset amortization.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $1.8 million to $5.5 million for three months ended June 30, 2018 compared to $3.7 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2017. The increase is primarily due to $1.1 million associated with interest on the senior unsecured notes and $1.2 million associated with interest on
the mortgage loan secured by VA — Loma Linda, which were both entered into during the three months ended June 30, 2017, offset by a $0.4 million decrease
in interest due to capitalized interest on development properties.
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Comparison of Results of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

The financial information presented below summarizes the results of operations of the Company for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(amounts in thousands).

For the six months ended June 30,

2018 2017 Change
Revenues
Rental income $ 64,748 $ 53,521 $ 11,227
Tenant reimbursements 7,572 6,602 970
Other income 626 367 259
Total revenues 72,946 60,490 12,456
Operating Expenses
Property operating 13,783 12,186 1,597
Real estate taxes 7,545 5,714 1,831
Depreciation and amortization 29,222 26,141 3,081
Acquisition costs 723 988 (265)
Corporate general and administrative 7,082 6,586 496
Total expenses 58,355 51,615 6,740
Operating income 14,591 8,875 5,716
Other (expenses) / income
Interest expense (11,057) (6,131) (4,926)
Net income (loss) $ 3,534 $ 2,744 $ 790
Revenues

Total revenue consists primarily of rental income from our properties, tenant reimbursements for real estate taxes and certain other expenses, and
project management income.

Total revenue increased by $12.5 million to $72.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 compared to $60.5 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2017. The increase is primarily attributable to an additional $11.7 million of revenue from the three operating properties acquired since June 30,
2017 as well as a full period of operations from the two operating properties acquired during the six months ended June 30, 2017 offset by one property
disposed of since June 30, 2017.

Operating Expenses

Total expenses increased by $6.7 million to $58.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 compared to $51.6 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2017. The increase is attributable to $7.0 million in property operating expenses, real estate taxes, and depreciation and amortization associated with
the three operating properties acquired since June 30, 2017 as well as a full period of operations from the two operating properties acquired during the six
months ended June 30, 2017 offset by one property disposed of since June 30, 2017. Additionally, there was a $0.2 million increase in expenses associated
with projects and other services that were fully reimbursed by the tenant and a $0.3 million increase in employee services. This was offset by a $1.0 million
decrease in depreciation related to the timing of intangible asset amortization.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $4.9 million to $11.1 million for six months ended June 30, 2018 compared to $6.1 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2017. The increase is primarily due to $2.9 million associated with interest on the senior unsecured notes, $0.7 million attributable to interest on our
2016 term loan facility and $2.4 million associated with interest on the mortgage loan secured by VA — Loma Linda, which were all drawn during the six
months ended June 30, 2017. This is offset by a $0.6 million decrease in interest due to capitalized interest on development properties and a $0.5 million
decrease in interest on the revolving credit facility due to a decrease in the weighted average borrowings from $200.1 million during the six months ended
June 30, 2017 to $99.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 offset by an increase in weighted average interest rate from of 2.3% during the six
months ended June 30, 2017 to 3.3% for the six months ended June 30, 2018.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We anticipate that our cash flows from the sources listed below will provide adequate capital for the next 12 months for all anticipated uses, including
all scheduled principal and interest payments on our outstanding indebtedness, current and anticipated tenant improvements, stockholder distributions to
maintain our qualification as a REIT and other capital obligations associated with conducting our business. At June 30, 2018, we had $147.5 million available
in cash and cash equivalents, there was $450.0 million available under our revolving credit facility (as defined below), and there was $150.0 million undrawn
under our 2018 term loan facility (as defined below).

Our primary expected sources of capital are as follows:

. cash and cash equivalents;

. operating cash flow;

. available borrowings under our revolving credit facility and our 2018 term loan facility;
. secured loans collateralized by individual properties;

. issuance of long-term debt;

. issuance of equity, including under our ATM program (as described below); and

. asset sales.

Our short-term liquidity requirements consist primarily of funds to pay for the following:

. development and redevelopment activities, including major redevelopment, renovation or expansion programs at individual properties;
. property acquisitions under contract, including the Acquisition Portfolio properties;

. tenant improvements allowances and leasing costs;

. recurring maintenance capital expenditures;

. debt repayment requirements;

. corporate and administrative costs;

. interest swap payments; and

. distribution payments.

Our long-term liquidity needs, in addition to recurring short-term liquidity needs as discussed above, consist primarily of funds necessary to pay for
acquisitions, non-recurring capital expenditures, and scheduled debt maturities. Although we may be able to anticipate and plan for certain of our liquidity
needs, unexpected increases in uses of cash that are beyond our control and which affect our financial condition and results of operations may arise, or our
sources of liquidity may be fewer than, and the funds available from such sources may be less than, anticipated or required. As of the date of this filing, there
were no known commitments or events that would have a material impact on our liquidity.

Equity
Shelf Registration Statement on Form S-3

On March 16, 2018, we filed an automatic universal shelf registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC,
which was deemed automatically effective and which provides for the registration of unspecified amounts of securities. However, there can be no assurance
that we will be able to complete any such offerings of securities in the future.

Underwritten Public Offering of Common Stock

On June 21, 2018, we completed an underwritten public offering of an aggregate of 20,700,000 shares of our common stock, consisting of
(i) 13,700,000 shares sold by us to the underwriters (including 2,700,000 shares pursuant to the underwriters’ exercise of their option to purchase additional
shares) and (ii) 7,000,000 shares offered and sold on a forward basis in connection with forward sales agreements entered into with certain financial
institutions, acting as forward purchasers. We received approximately $252.9 million in net proceeds from the sale of shares offered by us in the offering,
after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and our offering expenses. Subject to the Company’s right to elect cash or net share settlement, we
expect to physically settle the forward sales agreements no later than December 21, 2018. Assuming the forward sales agreements are physically settled in
full, we expect to receive an additional $129.3 million of net proceeds, after deducting underwriting discounts, commissions and estimated offering expenses.
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ATM Program

On March 3, 2017, we entered into equity distribution agreements with each of Citigroup Global Markets Inc., BTIG, LLC, Jefferies LLC, Raymond
James & Associates, Inc., RBC Capital Markets, LLC and SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc., whom we refer to collectively as, the managers, pursuant to
which we may issue and sell the shares of our common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to $100.0 million from time to time through the
managers, acting as sales agents and/or principals, which we refer to as our ATM program. The sales of shares of our common stock, under the equity
distribution agreements may be made in negotiated transactions or transactions that are deemed to be “at the market” offerings as defined in Rule 415 under
the Securities Act.

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our ATM program as of June 30, 2018 (amounts in thousands, except share amounts):

Number of Shares Sold Net Proceeds
For the year ended December 31, 2017 1,569,514 $ 33,263
For the three months ended March 31, 2018 671,666 13,532
For the three months ended June 30, 2018 1,010,371 20,208
3,251,551 $ 67,003

We have used the proceeds from such sales for general corporate purposes. As of June 30, 2018, we had approximately $32.3 million of gross sales of
our common stock available under on our ATM program.

Debt
Amended and Restated Credit Facility

On June 18, 2018, we entered into an amended and restated senior unsecured credit facility, which we refer to as our amended senior unsecured credit
facility. Our amended senior unsecured credit facility increased the total borrowing capacity of our existing senior unsecured credit facility by $200.0 million
for a total credit facility size of $600.0 million, consisting of two components: (i) a $450.0 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility, which we refer
to as the revolving credit facility, and (ii) a $150.0 million senior unsecured term loan facility, which we refer to as the 2018 term loan facility. The revolving
credit facility also includes an accordion feature that will provide us with additional capacity, subject to the satisfaction of customary terms and conditions, of
up to $250.0 million.

Our operating partnership is the borrower, and we and certain of our subsidiaries that directly own certain of our properties are guarantors under our
amended senior unsecured credit facility. The revolving credit facility matures in four years and the 2018 term loan facility matures in five years. In addition,
the revolving credit facility has two six-month as-of-right extension options subject to certain conditions and the payment of an extension fee.

Our amended senior unsecured credit facility bears interest, at our option, either at:

. a Eurodollar rate equal to a periodic fixed rate equal to LIBOR plus, a margin ranging from 1.25% to 1.80% for advances under the revolving
credit facility and a margin ranging from 1.20% to 1.75% for advances under the 2018 term loan facility; or

. a fluctuating rate equal to the sum of (a) the highest of (x) Citibank, N.A.’s base rate, (y) the federal funds effective rate plus 0.50% and (z) the
one-month Eurodollar rate plus 1.00% plus (b) a margin ranging from 0.25% to 0.80% for advances under the revolving credit facility and a
margin ranging from 0.20% to 0.75% for advances under the 2018 term loan facility, in each case with a margin based on our leverage ratio.

The 2018 term loan facility has a 364-day delayed draw period and is prepayable without penalty for the entire term of the loan. As of June 30, 2018,
we had not drawn any funds under our 2018 term loan facility.

Amendments to Term Loan Facility

In addition, on June 18, 2018, we entered into a second amendment to our existing $100 million senior unsecured term loan facility, which we refer to
as the 2016 term loan facility. The second amendment amends certain covenants and other provisions in the 2016 term loan facility to conform to changes
made to such covenants and other provisions in our amended senior unsecured credit facility.
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Indebtedness Outstanding

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our outstanding indebtedness as of June 30, 2018 (amounts in thousands):

Principal Outstanding Interest Current
Loan June 30, 2018 Rate (1) Maturity
Revolving credit facility:
Revolving credit facility (2) $ — L + 130bps June 2022 (3)
Total revolving credit facility —
Term loan facilities:
2016 term loan facility 100,000 3.17% 4 September 2023
2018 term loan facility — L + 125bps June 2023
Total term loan facility 100,000
Less: Total unamortized deferred financing fees (729)
Total term loan facilities, net 99,271
Notes payable:
Senior unsecured notes payable, series A 95,000 4.05% May 2027
Senior unsecured notes payable, series B 50,000 4.15% May 2029
Senior unsecured notes payable, series C 30,000 4.30% May 2032
Total notes payable 175,000
Less: Total unamortized deferred financing fees (1,273)
Total notes payable, net 173,727
Mortgage notes payable:
CBP - Savannah 13,856 3.40% (5) July 2033
ICE - Charleston 19,227 4.21% (5 January 2027
MEPCOM - Jacksonville 10,349 4.41% 05 October 2025
USFS II - Albuquerque 16,739 4.46% (5) July 2026
DEA - Pleasanton 15,700 L + 150bps (5) October 2023
VA - Loma Linda 127,500 3.59% (5) July 2027
VA - Golden 9,404 5.00% (5 April 2024
Total mortgage notes payable 212,775
Less: Total unamortized deferred financing fees (1,930)
Less: Total unamortized premium/discount 319
Total mortgage notes payable, net 211,164
Total debt $ 484,162

(1) At June 30, 2018, the one-month LIBOR (“L”) was 2.09%. The current interest rate is not adjusted to include the amortization of deferred
financing fees or debt issuance costs incurred in obtaining debt or any unamortized fair market value premiums. The spread over the applicable
rate for the Company’s senior unsecured revolving credit facility and senior unsecured term loan facility is based on the Company’s consolidated

leverage ratio, as defined in the respective loan agreements.

(2)  Available capacity of $450.0 million at June 30, 2018 with an accordion feature that provides additional capacity of up to $250.0 million, for a

total facility size of not more than $700.0 million.

(3)  Ourrevolving credit facility has two six-month as-of-right extension options subject to certain conditions and the payment of an extension fee.

(4)  The interest rate is calculated based on two interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional value of $100.0 million, which effectively fix the
interest rate at 3.17% annually, based on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio, as defined in the 2016 term loan facility agreement.

5) Effective interest rates are as follows: CBP - Savannah 4.12%, ICE - Charleston 3.93%, MEPCOM - Jacksonville 3.89%, USFS II - Albuquerque
3.92%, DEA - Pleasanton 1.8%, VA — Loma Linda 3.78%, VA — Golden 5.03%.
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Our unsecured credit facility, unsecured term loans, unsecured notes, and mortgage notes payable are subject to ongoing compliance with a number of
financial and other covenants. As of June 30, 2018, we were in compliance with the applicable financial covenants.

The chart below details our debt capital structure as of June 30, 2018 (amounts in thousands):

Debt Capital Structure June 30, 2018

Total principal outstanding $ 487,775
Weighted average maturity 8.8 years
Weighted average interest rate 3.8%
% Variable debt 3.2%
% Fixed debt (1) 96.8%
% Secured debt 43.6%

(1)  Our 2016 term loan facility is swapped to be fixed and as such is included as fixed rate debt in the table above.

Dividend Policy

In order to qualify as a REIT, we are required to distribute to our stockholders, on an annual basis, at least 90% of our REIT taxable income,
determined without regard to the deduction for dividends paid and excluding net capital gains. We anticipate distributing all of our taxable income. We expect
to make quarterly distributions to our stockholders in a manner intended to satisfy this requirement. Prior to making any distributions for U.S. federal tax
purposes or otherwise, we must first satisfy our operating and debt service obligations. It is possible that it would be necessary to utilize cash reserves,
liquidate assets at unfavorable prices or incur additional indebtedness in order to make required distributions. It is also possible that our board of directors
could decide to make required distributions in part by using shares of our common stock.

A summary of dividends declared by the board of directors per share of common stock and per common unit of our operating partnership at the date of
record is as follows:

Quarter Declaration Date Record Date Pay Date Dividend (1)
Q12018 May 3, 2018 June 11, 2018 June 28, 2018 $ 0.26
Q22018 August 1, 2018 September 13, 2018 September 27, 2018 $ 0.26

(1)  Prior to the end of the performance period as set forth in the applicable LTIP unit award, holders of LTIP units are entitled to receive dividends
per LTIP unit equal to 10% of the dividend paid per common unit. After the end of the performance period, the number of LTIP units, both
vested and unvested, that LTIP award recipients have earned, if any, are entitled to receive dividends in an amount per LTIP unit equal to
dividends, both regular and special, payable per common unit.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

We had no material off-balance sheet arrangements as of June 30, 2018.

Inflation

Substantially all of our leases provide for operating expense escalations. We believe inflationary increases in expenses may be at least partially offset
by the operating expenses that are passed through to our tenants and by contractual rent increases. We do not believe inflation has had a material impact on
our historical financial position or results of operations.

Cash Flows

The following table sets forth a summary of cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (amounts in thousands):

For the six months ended June 30,

2018 2017
Net cash (used in) provided by:
Operating activities $ 28,614 $ 24,544
Investing activities (44,126) (254,304)
Financing activities 153,146 232,933
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Operating Activities

The Company generated $28.6 million and $24.5 million of cash from operating activities during the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Net cash provided by operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2018 includes $27.3 million in net cash from rental activities net of
expenses and $1.4 million related to the change in rents receivable, accounts receivable, prepaid and other assets, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
Net cash provided by operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2017 includes $26.1 million in net cash from rental activities net of expenses
offset by $1.5 million related to the change in rents receivable, accounts receivable, prepaid and other assets, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

Investing Activities

The Company used $44.1 million and $254.3 million in cash for investing activities during the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Net cash used in investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2018 includes $5.5 million in real estate acquisitions related to the purchase of VA —
Golden, $21.1 million in additions to development properties, $2.4 million in additions to operating properties and a $15.0 million increase in deposits on
acquisitions. Net cash used in investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2017 includes $253.7 million in real estate acquisitions related to the
purchase of OSHA — Sandy, VA — Loma Linda and FDA — Lenexa.

Financing Activities

The Company generated $153.1 million and $232.9 million in cash from financing activities during the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Net cash generated by financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2018 includes $297.8 million in gross proceeds from our
underwritten public offering and ATM program and $19.0 million in draws under our revolving credit facility, offset by $118.8 million in net pay downs
under our revolving credit facility, $29.2 million in dividends, $11.1 million in payment of offering costs, $3.1 million in payment of deferred financing costs
and $1.6 million in mortgage notes payable repayment. Net cash provided by financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2017 includes $100.0
million in draws under our 2016 term loan facility, $175.0 million in proceeds from the issuance of senior unsecured notes, $127.5 million in mortgage notes
payable and $1.9 million in gross proceeds from our ATM program, offset by $144.2 million in net pay downs under our revolving credit facility, $22.6
million in dividends, $3.2 million in payment of deferred financing costs and $1.5 million in mortgage notes payable repayment.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use and present funds from operations, or FFO, and FFO, as Adjusted as supplemental measures of our performance. The summary below
describes our use of FFO and FFO, as Adjusted, provides information regarding why we believe these measures are meaningful supplemental measures of our
performance and reconciles these measures from net income (loss), presented in accordance with GAAP.

Funds From Operations and Funds From Operations, as Adjusted

Funds From Operations, or FFO, is a supplemental measure of our performance. We present FFO calculated in accordance with the current National
Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, or NAREIT, definition. In addition, we present FFO, as Adjusted for certain other adjustments that we believe
enhance the comparability of our FFO across periods and to the FFO reported by other publicly traded REITs. FFO is a supplemental performance measure
that is commonly used in the real estate industry to assist investors and analysts in comparing results of REITs.

FFO is defined by NAREIT as net income (loss), calculated in accordance with GAAP, excluding gains or losses from sales of property and
impairment losses on depreciable real estate, plus real estate depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint
ventures. We present FFO because we consider it an important supplemental measure of our operating performance, and we believe it is frequently used by
securities analysts, investors and other interested parties in the evaluation of REITs, many of which present FFO when reporting results.

We adjust FFO to present FFO, as Adjusted as an alternative measure of our operating performance, which, when applicable, excludes the impact of
acquisition costs, straight-line rent, above-/below-market leases, non-cash interest expense, non-cash compensation and other non-cash items including
amortization of lease inducements. By excluding these income and expense items from FFO, as Adjusted, we believe we provide useful information as these
items have no cash impact. In addition, by excluding acquisition related costs we believe FFO, as Adjusted provides useful information that is comparable
across periods and more accurately reflects the operating performance of our properties.
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FFO and FFO, as Adjusted are presented as supplemental financial measures and do not fully represent our operating performance. Other REITs may
use different methodologies for calculating FFO and FFO, as Adjusted or use other definitions of FFO and FFO, as Adjusted and, accordingly, our
presentation of these measures may not be comparable to other REITs. Neither FFO nor FFO, as Adjusted is intended to be a measure of cash flow or
liquidity. Please refer to our financial statements, prepared in accordance with GAAP, for purposes of evaluating our financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows.

The following table sets forth a reconciliation of our net income to FFO and FFO, as Adjusted for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and
2017 (amounts in thousands):

For the three months ended June 30, For the six months ended June 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Net income $ 1,719 $ 1,203 $ 3,534 % 2,744
Depreciation and amortization 14,588 13,272 29,222 26,141
Funds From Operations 16,307 14,475 32,756 28,885
Adjustments to FFO:
Acquisition costs 499 456 723 988
Straight-line rent and amortization of
lease inducements (1,253) (350) (3,047) (493)
Above-/below-market leases (2,239) (2,106) (4,518) (4,218)
Non-cash interest expense 299 244 563 474
Non-cash compensation 712 740 1,576 1,467
Funds from Operations, as Adjusted $ 14,325  $ 13459 $ 28,053 $ 27,103
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and interest rates. Our future earnings, cash flows and fair values relevant to
financial instruments are dependent upon prevailing market interest rates. Our primary market risk results from our indebtedness, which bears interest at both
fixed and variable rates. We manage and may continue to manage our market risk on variable rate debt by entering into swap arrangements to, in effect, fix
the rate on all or a portion of the debt for varying periods up to maturity. This in turn, reduces the risks of variability of cash flows created by variable rate
debt and mitigates the risk of increases in interest rates. Our objective when undertaking such arrangements is to reduce our floating rate exposure and we do
not intend to enter into hedging arrangements for speculative purposes.

As of June 30, 2018, $472.1 million, or 96.8% of our debt, excluding unamortized premiums and discounts, had fixed interest rates and $15.7 million,
or 3.2% had variable interest rates. If market rates of interest on our variable rate debt fluctuate by 25 basis points, interest expense would increase or
decrease, depending on rate movement, future earnings and cash flows, by less than $0.1 million annually.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation required by the Exchange Act, under the supervision and with the participation of our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a -15(e) and Rule
15d-15 of the Exchange Act, as of June 30, 2018. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of
June 30, 2018, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the
reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules
and forms and to provide reasonable assurance that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended June 30, 2018 that have materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Part I1
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are not currently involved in any material litigation nor, to our knowledge, is any material litigation currently threatened against us.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes to the risk factors included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
None
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
Not applicable
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
Item 5. Other Information
None

30



Item 6.

Exhibits

The following exhibits are included, or incorporated by reference, in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q:

Exhibit Exhibit Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Easterly Government Properties, Inc. (previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to
Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 on January 30, 2015 and incorporated herein by reference)
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Easterly Government Properties, Inc. (previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 to Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-11 on January 30, 2015 and incorporated herein by reference)
4.1 Specimen Certificate of Common Stock of Easterly Government Properties, Inc. (previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No. 2 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 on January 30, 2015 and incorporated herein by reference)
10.1%* Purchase and Sale Agreement and Escrow Instructions, dated June 15, 2018, by and among Easterly Government Properties LP and the Sellers
identified therein.
31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer Required by Rule 13a-14(a)_of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer Required by Rule 13a-14(a)_of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
32.1%%* Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Required by Rule 13a-14(b)_of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended
101* The following materials from Easterly Government Properties, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for six months ended June 30, 2018
formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of
Operations, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Equity, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (v) the related notes to these
consolidated financial statements
* Filed herewith

Hok Furnished herewith
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Easterly Government Properties, Inc.

Date: August 7, 2018 /s/ William C. Trimble, III

William C. Trimble, IIT
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: August 7, 2018 /s/ Meghan G. Baivier

Meghan G. Baivier
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 10.1

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS
between the Sellers identified herein and

Easterly Government Properties LP, a Delaware limited partnership

Dated as of June 15, 2018



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS (this "Agreement") is made and
entered into as of June 15, 2018 (the “Effective Date”) between the Sellers listed on Exhibit A (each, a "Seller" and collectively,
"Sellers"), on one hand, and Easterly Government Properties LP, a Delaware limited partnership ("Purchaser"), on the other hand.

RECITALS

A. Each Seller is the owner of the improved real property listed next to such Seller's name on Exhibit A and more
particularly described on Exhibits B-1 through B-14 (such real property, the "Real Property" and collectively with respect to all
Sellers, the "Real Properties"), together with certain personal property located upon or used in connection with such improved
Real Property and certain other assets relating thereto, all as more particularly described in Section 2.

B. Sellers desire to sell to Purchaser, and Purchaser desires to purchase from Sellers, the Properties, as hereinafter
defined, on the terms and subject to the conditions contained in this Agreement.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. BASIC TERMS AND DEFINITIONS; REFERENCES.
1.1. Basic Terms and Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement:
1.11 “Charleston SSA Property” means the Property owned by Charleston SSA OC, LLC, a Delaware

limited liability company.

1.1.2 "Closing Date" means the date on which the applicable Closing, as hereinafter defined, occurs,
which shall be a business day (other than a Friday) designated by Purchaser to Seller in writing at least 10 days in advance, which
date shall be no earlier than 30 days and no later than 45 days after the Effective Date (such date, the “First Target Closing
Date”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, Sellers may elect in their sole and absolute discretion by written notice to Purchaser
(“Seller’s Postponement Notice”) to:

(a) postpone the First Target Closing Date for any or all Properties to a date that is not later than September 17, 2018
(“Revised First Target Closing Date”) provided that the Closing Date with respect to Properties with an aggregate
allocated Purchase Price of at least approximately $180,000,000 (using the allocations set forth on Schedule 1) shall
occur on or before the Revised First Target Closing Date; and



(b) postpone the Closing Date with respect to any and all remaining Properties to a date that is not later than October 16,
2018 (“Second Target Closing Date”); provided that the Closing Date with respect to Properties with an aggregate
allocated Purchase Price of up to approximately $150,000,000 (using the allocations set forth on Schedule 1) may be
postponed further until a date that is not later than December 14, 2018 (“Third Target Closing Date”).

Sellers shall deliver Seller’s Postponement Notice to Purchaser, if at all, on or before the date that is ten (10) days after the
Effective Date and such Seller’s Postponement Notice shall specify the Revised First Target Closing Date, the Second Target
Closing Date and/or the Third Target Closing Date, as applicable, and the Property or Properties for which Closing will occur on
each such date (as applicable). If Sellers do not timely deliver the Seller’s Postponement Notice, Sellers shall have no right to
postpone the Closing pursuant to this Section 1.1.2 and the Closing Date shall occur on the First Target Closing Date. In the event
that Sellers’ timely deliver a Seller’s Postponement Notice to Purchaser, Sellers may elect to (i) advance one or more of the
Revised First Target Closing Date, the Second Target Closing Date or the Third Target Closing Date (as applicable) by designating
an earlier date for Closing (any such date, an “Earlier Closing Date”), (ii) advance the Closing as to one or more Properties on any
Closing Date to any earlier Closing Date, and/or (iii) postpone the Closing as to one or more Properties (provided that the
allocations set forth in (a) and (b) above continue to be satisfied for such Closing), in each case in a written notice(s) to Purchaser
given no less than ten (10) days prior to the Revised First Target Closing Date, the Second Target Closing Date, the Third Target
Closing Date (as applicable) or any earlier Closing Date.

References in this Agreement to the “Closing Date,” shall refer to, if and as applicable, (a) the First Target Closing Date, (b) the
Revised First Target Closing Date, (c) the Second Target Closing Date, (d) the Third Target Closing Date, (e) an Earlier Closing
Date, (f) the date of any delayed Closing with respect to a Property that was subject to a Withdrawn Property Notice but not
ultimately deemed a Withdrawn Property pursuant to Section 7.6, and (g) any other date on which a Closing occurs, if and as
applicable. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event a Property becomes a Withdrawn Property, it shall be treated, solely for the
purpose of determining whether the applicable allocations set forth in Sections 1.1.2(a) and (b) have been met at a particular
Closing, as having been included in the Closing as to which it was then-scheduled.

1.1.3 “Dallas SSA Property” means the Property owned by Dallas SSA Seller.

1.11 “Dallas SSA Real Property” means the Real Property owned by Dallas SSA Seller and described
on Exhibit B-5.

1.1.2 “Dallas SSA Seller” means Dallas SSA, L.P., a Texas limited partnership.

1.1.3 “Des Plaines FAA Property” means the Property owned by the Des Plaines FAA Seller.

1.14 “Des Plaines FAA Seller” means GSA Des Plaines LL.C, a Delaware limited liability company.
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1.1.5 "Escrow Agent" means Chicago Title Insurance Company, c/o Washington DC National
Commercial Center, 1901 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Suite 201, Washington, DC 20006, Attention: Eric Taylor.

1.1.6 “Government Leases” means those certain leases described on Exhibit E-1 through Exhibit E-14
by and between the applicable Seller and the United States Government directly or acting through the U.S. General Services
Administration, as tenant (collectively, the "GSA™), for the use of the applicable Property by a Government Tenant, including all
amendments and modifications thereof, entered into by and between the applicable Seller or any predecessor landlord and GSA, as
they may be amended, modified and/or restated prior to the Closing in accordance with Section 5.3 hereof. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the lease between the United States of America (BPA) and GPT Portland, OR 1201 Lloyd, LLC shall not be considered
a Government Lease.

1.1.7 “Government Tenants” means those government agencies occupying the Real Properties under
the Government Leases listed on Exhibit E-1 through Exhibit E-14. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the United States of America
(BPA) Tenant at the Property owned by GPT Portland, OR 1201 Lloyd, LLC shall not be considered a Government Tenant.

1.1.8 "Inspection Period" means the period commencing on the execution of the Pre-Contract Access
and Right of Entry Agreement dated as of May 3, 2018 and ending upon the Effective Date.

1.1.9 “Outside Closing Date” means December 21, 2018.

1.1.10 “Pool B Lender” means U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, successor-in-interest to
Bank of America, N.A., as trustee, successor by merger to LaSalle Bank National Association, as trustee for the registered holders
of J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 2007-LDP11, acting by and through C-III Asset Management LLC, as
special servicer (and any successors, assigns or similar of any of the foregoing).

1.1.11 “Pool B Properties” mean those Properties owned by (i) Acquest Government Leases, LLC, a
New York limited liability company, (ii) Charleston SSA OC, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, (iii) Parkersburg BPD
OC, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and (iv) Pittsburgh USCIS OC, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

1.1.12 “Proprietary Information” means, collectively, appraisals, budgets, strategic plans, internal
analyses, marketing information, purchase agreements (and term sheets and offers relating to any potential purchase or sale),
submissions relating to any Seller or Sellers’ obtaining of corporate authorization, attorney and accountant work-product, attorney-
client privileged documents or other information in the possession or control of Seller(s), which Seller(s) reasonably deem
proprietary or for which disclosure is prohibited under applicable laws or by agreement.

1.1.13 “Title Company” means the Escrow Agent in its capacity as title insurer.

3



1.1.14 “Title Review Period” means the period commencing on the execution of the Pre-Contract
Access and Right of Entry Agreement dated as of May 3, 2018 and ending upon the Effective Date.

1.1.15 "Withdrawn Property" means any Property that is finally determined to be a “Withdrawn
Property” pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

1.2. References. All references to Schedules or Exhibits refer to the Schedules and Exhibits attached to this
Agreement and all such Schedules and Exhibits are incorporated herein by reference. The words "herein," "hereof," "hereinafter"
and words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular Section hereof.

2. PURCHASE AND SALE. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, at the applicable Closing, each Seller
agrees to sell, assign and transfer to Purchaser or one or more Purchaser Designees (as hereinafter defined), and Purchaser or its
Purchaser Designee agrees to purchase from such Seller, for the purchase price set forth in Section 3, the following (each, a
"Property" and, collectively with respect to all Sellers, the "Properties"):

2.1 The Real Property owned by such Seller, together with the buildings located thereon and all other
improvements located thereon (such buildings and such other improvements are referred to herein collectively for all Sellers as the
"Improvements"); all references hereinafter made to such Real Property shall be deemed to include all right, title and interest of
such Seller in and to the rights, privileges, easements and appurtenances benefitting such Real Property and/or the Improvements
situated thereon;

2.2 All of such Seller’s right, title and interest in and to all furniture, fixtures not deemed an Improvement,
equipment, and other tangible personal property located in or on the Property, in each case to the extent owned by such Seller (but
expressly excluding the Excluded Property, as hereinafter defined), including, without limitation the personal property listed on
Exhibit C-1 through Exhibit C-14 attached hereto (collectively for all Sellers, the "Personal Property");

2.3 All of such Seller's right, title and interest in and to any assignable intangible property (expressly excluding the
Excluded Property) used solely in connection with the foregoing, including without limitation (i) all of Seller’s right, title, and
interest in and to all contract rights, warranties and guaranties (express or implied), licenses, permits, entitlements, governmental
and quasi-governmental approvals, plans and specifications and certificates of occupancy which relate exclusively to and/or benefit
such Real Property and/or such Personal Property, and (ii) all of Seller’s right to the identifying name, if any, of each of the
Improvements (collectively, for all Sellers, the “Intangible Property”);
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2.4 All of such Seller's right, title and interest in and to (a) the Government Leases and (b) all other leases, licenses
and other occupancy agreements listed on Exhibit E-1 through Exhibit E-14 attached hereto, for the present or future occupancy of
any space at the Properties by the tenants thereunder (together with the Government Tenants, the “Tenants”) affecting such Real
Property as of each applicable Closing (collectively for all Sellers, the "Leases") together with all of Seller’s right, title and interest
in and to (i) all Rents (as hereinafter defined) or any other amounts due thereunder from the Tenants with respect to periods
following the Closing, (ii) all security and other deposits required to be held under such Leases (collectively, the "Security
Deposits"), and (iii) all guaranties made in connection with such Leases (collectively, the “Guaranties™); and

All of such Seller's interests in and to the assignable contracts and equipment leases listed on Exhibit D-1 through Exhibit
D-14 and Schedule 7.5.8, each attached hereto and all contracts and equipment leases hereafter entered into by such Seller to the
extent permitted by the provisions of this Agreement, relating to the upkeep, repair, maintenance or operation of the Real Property,
Improvements or Personal Property (collectively, for all Sellers, the "Contracts"), to the extent Purchaser has elected or is required
to assume such contracts pursuant to the terms of Section 5.4 hereof.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the terms "Property" and "Properties" shall expressly exclude the
following (collectively, the "Excluded Property"): (a) subject to Section 7.5.1, (i) any Rents or any other amounts payable by
current and/or former tenants of the Properties with respect to periods prior to the Closing, and (ii) any causes of action, claims,
judgments, stipulations, orders or settlements with any current and/or former tenants of the Properties with respect to periods prior
to the Closing, (b) except for Security Deposits and other deposits expressly addressed in Section 7.5, any cash, operating account
or other account or reserve held by any Seller, any affiliate thereof, any property manager or any lender, (c) any Proprietary
Information, (d) any proprietary trade names or trademarks of any Seller or its property manager or the affiliates of either of them,
any tenant or any other third party, and (e) any property owned by any property manager of Seller or by any Tenant or any other
third party. All of the Excluded Property is expressly retained by Sellers and excluded from any conveyance or assignment
otherwise contemplated by this Agreement.

3. PURCHASE PRICE AND EARNEST MONEY.

3.1. Purchase Price. The aggregate purchase price for the Properties shall be Four Hundred Thirty Million and
No/100 Dollars ($430,000,000.00), as adjusted pursuant to this Agreement (as so adjusted, the "Purchase Price"). Set forth on
Schedule 1 hereto is an allocation of the Purchase Price applicable to each Property, which allocation shall be used for all purposes
of this Agreement and shall constitute an agreement between the parties with respect to (a) the relative value of any of the
Properties or any other assets owned by a Seller, or (b) the allocation of the Purchase Price for income tax or financial reporting
purposes. The parties agree that the value of the Personal Property is de minimis and no part of the Purchase Price is allocable
thereto. This Section 3.1 shall survive each Closing.

3.2 Payment of Purchase Price. The Purchase Price shall be payable as follows:

3.2.1 Within two (2) business days following the Effective Date, Purchaser shall deposit in escrow with
Escrow Agent, in cash or immediately available funds, the sum of Fifteen
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Million and 00/100 Dollars ($15,000,000.00) (the "Earnest Money"). Immediately upon Escrow Agent's receipt of the Earnest
Money, Escrow Agent shall deposit and hold the same in a non-interest-bearing account acceptable to Sellers and Purchaser. If
Purchaser shall fail to timely deliver the Earnest Money as required by this Agreement, this Agreement shall automatically
terminate, Escrow Agent shall promptly return the Earnest Money in its possession, if any, to Purchaser and thereafter neither party
shall have any further rights, obligations or liabilities hereunder except to the extent that any right, obligation or liability set forth
herein expressly survives termination of this Agreement. Upon such termination, promptly following the written request of the
applicable Seller or Sellers’ Agent, Purchaser shall either destroy (and certify as to the destruction) or return the Property
Information to Sellers or Sellers’ Agent in accordance with Section 4.6 and shall deliver to Seller(s) or Sellers’ Agent, only to the
extent requested by the applicable Seller(s) or Sellers’ Agent in writing, all Work Product (as hereinafter defined) in accordance
with and subject to Section 12.3, and, except for those provisions of this Agreement that expressly survive the termination of this
Agreement, the parties hereto shall have no further obligations hereunder.

3.2.2 Upon delivery of the Earnest Money to Escrow Agent, the Earnest Money shall become
nonrefundable, except as otherwise expressly set forth in this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, the amount of the
Earnest Money applicable to each of the Properties shall be the pro rata portion (in proportion to the Purchase Price allocation set
forth on Schedule 1) of the Earnest Money then on deposit with Escrow Agent, provided that any Earnest Money applicable to a
Withdrawn Property shall be returned to Purchaser pursuant to Section 7.6.2.

3.2.3 Subject to the terms and provisions hereof, the Purchase Price shall be payable at each Closing, by
Purchaser paying cash, by wire transfer or cashier's check through escrow with Escrow Agent for disbursement to Sellers at such
Closing, in the amount of the Purchase Price applicable to the Properties to be conveyed at such Closing, as set forth on Schedule 1,
less the applicable Earnest Money (which the Escrow Agent shall wire to the applicable Seller(s) at such Closing), plus or minus
applicable prorations pursuant to Section 7.5 and other credits and adjustments as provided herein, including Section 7.3.

3.3. Disposition of Earnest Money Upon Failure to Close. If any Closing fails to occur due to Purchaser's
default under this Agreement, including without limitation by reason of Purchaser’s failure to obtain financing, then the disposition
of all Earnest Money then held by Escrow Agent shall be governed by Section 10.1; if any Closing fails to occur due to any Seller's
default under this Agreement (all of the conditions to Sellers’ obligations to close having been satisfied or waived) and Purchaser
elects to terminate this Agreement by reason of such default, then all Earnest Money then held by Escrow Agent shall promptly be
refunded to Purchaser pursuant to Section 10.2; and if any Closing fails to occur due to the failure of any of the conditions set forth
in Sections 6.1 or 6.2 other than as a result of Purchaser's or a Sellers' default under this Agreement, then the disposition of the
applicable Earnest Money shall be governed by Section 7.4.




3.4. Independent Contract Consideration. In addition to the Earnest Money, Purchaser shall concurrently wire
to Escrow Agent the sum of One Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($100.00) (the "Independent Contract Consideration") which
Escrow Agent shall deliver to Sellers immediately upon Escrow Agent's receipt thereof and which amount has been bargained for
and agreed to as consideration for Purchaser's right to inspect the Real Properties as provided herein, and for Sellers' execution and
delivery of this Agreement. The Independent Contract Consideration is in addition to and independent of all other consideration
provided in this Agreement, and is nonrefundable in all events. The Independent Contract Consideration shall not be deemed part
of the Purchase Price and shall not give Purchaser any equitable lien on or other interest in the Property, all of which is hereby
waived by Purchaser.

4. PROPERTY INFORMATION; TITLE REVIEW; INSPECTIONS AND DUE DILIGENCE;
CONFIDENTIALITY.
4.1. Property Information. Prior to the Effective Date, Sellers have made available to Purchaser the documents

and information set forth on Schedule 4.1 attached hereto (collectively, the "Property Information") regarding the Properties and
may, after the Effective Date, make available to Purchaser certain other documents and information regarding the
Properties. Under no circumstances shall Purchaser be entitled to review any Sellers’ appraisals relating to any Property or any
internal financial information (other than Property-level financials) or audits relating to any Property or any other Proprietary
Information unless delivered by Sellers in their sole discretion. All of the Property Information or copies thereof have been and
will be provided in their current condition without any representations or warranties as to the accuracy, sufficiency or completeness
thereof, except as expressly set forth in Section 8.1.

4.2, Title and Survey Review; Title Policies.

4.2.1 Delivery of Title Commitment. Purchaser has obtained, prior to the Effective Date, from Title
Company a commitment for title insurance issued by Title Company covering each Real Property (each, a "Title Commitment"
and collectively, the "Title Commitments"), together with copies of all documents (collectively, the "Title Documents")
referenced in each Title Commitment. Prior to the Effective Date, Purchaser has delivered a copy of the Title Documents to Sellers
received by Purchaser pursuant to an email from Lauren Swanson on June 13, 2018 (received at 6:47 p.m. Pacific time) sharing a
ShareFile datasite folder. Prior to the Effective Date, Sellers have delivered to Purchaser an existing survey for each Real Property
(collectively, the "Existing Surveys"). Purchaser, at its option and expense, may (i) obtain a new survey for any Real Property or
(ii) cause any Existing Survey to be updated or recertified (such new surveys or updated or recertified surveys, the “Survey
Updates”). Prior to the Effective Date, Purchaser has delivered a copy of the Survey Updates that Purchaser has received as of the
Effective Date pursuant to an email from Lauren Swanson on June 13, 2018 (received at 6:47 p.m. Pacific time) sharing a ShareFile
datasite folder. Purchaser understands and acknowledges that if Purchaser elects to obtain any additional Survey Updates, the
completion and/or delivery of any Survey Update shall not be a condition precedent to any Closing and any objections with respect
thereto shall be made in accordance with Section 4.2.3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Purchaser further acknowledges that no
Seller makes any representations or warranties, and no Seller shall have any responsibility, with respect to the completeness of the
Title Documents made available to Purchaser by Title Company.



422 Title Review and Cure. Prior to the expiration of the Title Review Period, Purchaser has been
given the right to disapprove of the condition of title to any Real Property and any matter disclosed in any Title Commitment or
shown on any Existing Survey or Survey Update (any such disapproved condition or matter, an “Objection”). On June 13, 2018
Purchaser delivered to Sellers and Escrow Agent a written notice with respect to all Properties ("Purchaser's Title Notice") of
Purchaser's Objections, which Purchaser’s Title Notice specifies in reasonable detail Purchaser’s specific Objections and to which
Property such Objections relate, together with any actions requested of Sellers with regard to curing the same, and includes copies
of any applicable Title Commitment, Title Document and Survey Update. Any matter contained in the Title Commitments or
shown on the Existing Surveys or Survey Updates to which Purchaser did not previously deliver a Purchaser's Title Notice are
hereby deemed Permitted Exceptions. In response to Purchaser’s Title Notice, Sellers have elected not to remove or cure any of the
Objections (other than Mandatory Title Cure Items as to which Sellers must cure) raised in Purchaser’s Title Notice (which election
shall constitute, a "Seller’s Title Notice") . Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that any Mandatory Title Cure Items shall be
deemed cured and removed to the extent that Sellers cause such exception to be removed from record or affirmatively insured or
bonded over. Purchaser has accepted Seller’s Title Notice and is deemed to have waived its prior Objections, and shall proceed to
the Closing and accept title to each of the Properties in which event each of such Objections shall become Permitted
Exceptions. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary elsewhere in this Agreement, Sellers, at Sellers’ sole cost and expense, shall
be obligated to cure and remove of record the following matters (collectively, the “Mandatory Title Cure Items”): (i) liens for any
assignment of leases and rents, financing statements, any deeds of trust, trust deed, mortgage or other financing lien to the extent
entered into or created by the applicable Seller (but, with respect to the Pool B Properties, subject to the receipt of the Pool B
Lender Consent described in Section 6.2.3), (ii) any judgment liens arising by or through Sellers, U.S. tax liens arising by or
through the applicable Seller, real property tax liens (except for any taxes not yet due and payable), or broker liens affecting title to
a Property arising by or through the applicable Seller, (iii) mechanic’s liens or materialman’s liens for work performed for, or
authorized by, the applicable Seller, and (iv) any other encumbrances caused or created by the applicable Seller after the effective
date of the Title Commitments without Purchaser's consent (in Purchaser’s sole and absolute discretion).

4.2.3 Updates to Title. Notwithstanding the foregoing to the contrary, if at any time after the effective
date of the Title Commitments Title Company amends or updates the Title Commitments or a surveyor amends or updates any
Survey Update (other than any amendment or update relating to items arising solely out of the acts or omissions of Purchaser or its
agents, partners, affiliates, successors, assigns, employees or its agents, contractors or subcontractors (each, a "Title Update"),
Purchaser shall promptly deliver (or cause Title Company to deliver) a copy of the Title Update to Sellers received by
Purchaser. As to any Title Update that first discloses any additional item, in each case to the extent not previously disclosed in the
Title Commitment or any prior Title Update (or any prior Survey Update or Existing Survey) (a “New Exception”), Purchaser shall
have five (5) business days after Purchaser's receipt of such Title Update to review and approve or disapprove of the New
Exception upon the same terms and conditions provided above in Section 4.2.2 in connection with the Title Commitments, and
Sellers shall have the option, but not the obligation (other than with respect to any Mandatory Title Cure Items, which Sellers much
discharge of record), to elect (silence being deemed Seller did not elect to cure or eliminate), within five (5) business days of
Purchaser’s



objections, to eliminate or cure any such objections to the New Exception upon the same terms and conditions provided above in
Section 4.2.2; it being acknowledged, however, that only if Sellers are unable or unwilling to satisfy Purchaser’s objections to any
New Exception, then Purchaser shall have the right, at Purchaser’s option, via delivery of written notice thereof to Sellers (each
such notice, also a “Seller’s Updated Title Notice”), within five (5) business days of the applicable Seller’s response to either (i)
waive the unsatisfied objections to the New Exception, in which event those unsatisfied objections shall become Permitted
Exceptions, or (ii) subject to the limitations set forth in the last paragraph of Section 7.6.1.1, terminate this Agreement with respect
to the Property to which such New Exception applies, in which event such Property shall be deemed a Withdrawn Property
(without the need for Purchaser to send a Withdrawn Property Notice and Sellers shall not be afforded the right to elect the Cure
Option) and this Agreement shall terminate with respect to such Property in accordance with Section 7.6.2. Upon such termination,
promptly following the written request of the applicable Seller or Sellers’ Agent, Purchaser shall promptly either destroy (and
certify as to the destruction) or return the Property Information applicable to such Withdrawn Property to such Seller or Sellers’
Agent in accordance with and subject to Section 4.6, and shall deliver to the applicable Seller or Sellers’ Agent, only to the extent
requested by the applicable Seller or Sellers’ Agent, all Work Product with respect to such Withdrawn Property in accordance with
and subject to Section 12.3, and, except for those provisions of this Agreement that expressly survive the termination of this
Agreement as to such Withdrawn Property(ies), the parties hereto shall have no further obligations hereunder with respect to such
Withdrawn Property. If Purchaser does not give written notice of its objection to any New Exception within said five (5) business
day period, or notice of its election to terminate this Agreement with respect to such Property within five (5) business days after
receipt of Sellers’ response, if any, thereto, Purchaser shall be deemed to have approved the New Exception. Sellers and Purchaser
hereby agree that, if necessary, the applicable Closing Date shall be extended on a day-by-day basis to provide sufficient time for
the time periods set forth in this Section 4.2.3 to run.

4.2.4 Delivery of Title Policies at Closing. At each Closing, Title Company shall issue and deliver to
Purchaser, or shall irrevocably (subject to payment of premiums) commit to issue and deliver to Purchaser, (i) with respect to each
Real Property (other than the Dallas SSA Real Property) which is the subject of such Closing, an ALTA Owner's Policy of Title
Insurance with extended coverage, and (ii) with respect to the Dallas SSA Real Property if it is the subject of such Closing, a Texas
Owner’s Policy of Title Insurance (Form T-1), in each case (x) with standard printed exceptions deleted if removable by Sellers’
delivery of an owner’s affidavit in accordance with Section 7.1.1.10 and (y) in the amount of the applicable Purchase Price set forth
on Schedule 1 for such Real Property, insuring Purchaser as owner of fee simple title to such Real Property subject only to the
Permitted Exceptions (the "Title Policies"). For purposes of this Agreement, "Permitted Exceptions" shall mean and include with
respect to any Real Property (a) any lien of real estate taxes and water and sewer charges, including ad valorem taxes, special
district assessments and special assessments, payable to the applicable taxing authority not yet due and payable as of the applicable
Closing Date (subject to adjustment as herein provided), (b) any matters affecting such Real Property which are created by or with
the consent of Purchaser or otherwise caused by the actions of Purchaser, (c) the rights of the tenants, as tenants only, under the
Leases affecting such Real Property, (d) variations between tax lot lines and lines of record title; (e) sales, leases, reservations or
other conveyances of minerals, including oil, gas, coal, sand and gravel in, on and under the Property by prior owners,
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and all rights related thereto, (f) all exceptions disclosed by any Title Commitment, Title Update, and/or shown on an Existing
Survey and/or Survey Update relating to such Real Property and which are approved or deemed approved by Purchaser in
accordance with Section 4.2.2 and/or Section 4.2.3, and (g) all applicable present and future laws, restrictions, ordinances, rules and
governmental regulations (including without limitation those relating to building, zoning and land use and/or other restrictions)
affecting the development, use, occupancy or enjoyment of all or any portion of such Real Property. At its option, Purchaser may
direct Title Company to issue title insurance endorsements if Purchaser pays for the extra cost of such additional endorsements;
provided that Title Company's failure to issue such additional endorsements shall not affect Purchaser's obligations under this
Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, any matter (other than Mandatory Title Cure Items) which is disclosed in the Title
Commitments, the Title Updates, the Existing Surveys or the Survey Updates and not disapproved by Purchaser in Purchaser’s Title
Notice (or disapproved by Purchaser in Purchaser’s Title Notice and thereafter removed, cured, or insured over, or deemed waived
and approved in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this Section 4.2) shall be deemed to be a Permitted Exception
hereunder and Purchaser shall not have the right to terminate this Agreement in its entirety or with respect to any Property on
account of such matter.

4.3. Inspections;_Inspection Period. This Agreement supersedes in its entirety that certain Pre-Contract Access
and Right of Entry Agreement dated as of May 3, 2018 by and between Sellers and Purchaser, which is hereby terminated and of no
force and effect (except with respect to those provisions that survive termination, including without limitation any indemnities and
confidentiality provisions).

4.3.1.1 Commencing from the Effective Date and continuing until the termination of this
Agreement, Purchaser, its agents, representatives, consultants, contractors, invitees and employees (all of the foregoing, including
Purchaser, “Purchaser’s Agents™) shall have a limited license (the "License") to enter upon the Properties during normal business
hours for the purpose of making non-invasive inspections of the Properties (the “Inspections™) at Purchaser's sole risk, cost and
expense. Subject to Section 4.3.1.4, Purchaser’s obligations in this Agreement shall not be limited or otherwise affected as a result
of any fact, circumstance or other matter of any kind discovered in connection with any such inspection, access or otherwise; it
being agreed that Sellers are permitting Purchaser’s Agents such right of inspection and access as a courtesy to Purchaser. In
conducting the Inspections at the Properties or otherwise accessing any of the Properties pursuant to the License, Purchaser shall,
and shall instruct all other Purchaser’s Agents to, at all times comply with all applicable laws and regulations of all applicable
governmental authorities, and neither Purchaser nor any other Purchaser’s Agents shall unreasonably interfere with the business of
Sellers conducted at the Properties or unreasonably disturb the use or occupancy of any tenant or occupant of any of the Properties,
or damage any of the Properties. Purchaser shall be responsible for any breach by any Purchaser’s Agents of Purchaser’s
obligations under this Agreement.
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4.3.1.2 Prior to performing any Inspection at any Property, Purchaser (or with respect to (ii)(1)
and (ii)(2) below, Easterly Government Properties Services LLC (its affiliate)) shall deliver to the applicable Seller on its own
behalf and shall cause any Purchaser’s Agents that are performing any inspections to deliver to the applicable Seller on each of
their behalves, in all cases at Purchaser’s Agents’ sole cost and expense, a certificate of insurance from an insurer reasonably
satisfactory to the applicable Seller evidencing that such Licensee has in place primary and noncontributory (i) commercial general
liability insurance on an occurrence form for bodily injury and property damage in an amount at least equal to $1,000,000 for each
occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate, from an insurance company authorized to do business in the State the applicable
Property is located and having a “Best’s Rating” of at least “A -” with a Financial Size Category of at least “Class VII;”, (ii) (1)
workers' compensation insurance at statutory limits with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the applicable Seller and any other
entities required by such Seller, and (2) employer’s liability insurance of at least $1,000,000 for bodily injury by accident and
disease for each accident; and (iii) automobile liability insurance of an amount at least equal to $1,000,000 for each accident for
bodily injury and property damage with coverage for owned, hired and non-owned vehicles used by Purchaser and/or such
Licensees at such Property. All such certificates of insurance shall name the Sellers and Saban Real Estate LLC (“Sellers’ Agent”)
as endorsed additional insureds and shall otherwise be in compliance with the coverages and conditions set forth above.

4.3.1.3 All of such entries upon the Properties by Purchaser and/or Purchaser’s Agents shall
be at reasonable times during normal business hours and after at least 48 hours prior notice to Sellers’ Agent and in all cases subject
to (x) existing tenant rights under Seller leases and (y) any notice and security requirements applicable to the respective tenants,
and such Sellers and/or Sellers' representatives and/or agents shall have the right to accompany Purchaser and/or other Purchaser’s
Agents at all times during the Inspections performed at the Properties. All requests by Purchaser for access to the Properties or
notices to Sellers’ Agent which are required under this Section 4.3.1.3 shall be delivered in writing at least 48 hours in advance
(which requests/notices may be given by email only to dgoldstone@saban.com, with a copy to bhsu@saban.com,
sanderson@saban.com and phan@saban.com), and all Inspections shall be coordinated with Sellers’ Agent. Notwithstanding
anything stated to the contrary herein, all entries by Purchaser and Purchaser’s Agents to the Properties shall be subject to the
applicable Seller’s requirements, including safety, notice and/or security guidelines, and Purchaser shall, and shall instruct all of
Purchaser’s Agents to, comply with such requirements. Purchaser shall not interview any tenants physically occupying any of the
Properties regarding the Properties without first notifying Sellers’ Agent and in all cases affording Sellers’ Agent the opportunity to
be present during such interview.

4.3.14 Purchaser, at Purchaser’s sole cost and expense, shall (i) promptly repair and restore in
a good workmanlike manner any damage or material disturbance to any of the Properties caused by Purchaser and/or Purchaser’s
Agents to substantially the same condition as existed before the Inspection and (ii) keep the Properties free and clear of any
mechanic’s liens or materialmen’s liens. All inspection fees, appraisal fees, engineering fees and other costs and expenses of any
kind incurred by any Purchaser or Purchaser’s Agents relating to any Inspection or other access of the Properties shall be at the sole
cost and expense of Purchaser.  Purchaser shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless (i) each Seller, (ii) such Seller’s respective
direct and indirect owners, members and partners and (iii) each of the foregoing (i) and (ii)’s

11



respective subsidiaries, sister companies, affiliates (including Sellers’ Agent), officers, directors, representatives, agents,
consultants, tenants and employees (each of (i), (ii) and (iii), “Seller Indemnified Parties”) from and against any and all losses,
costs, expenses and damages of any kind or nature, claims, demands, actions, causes of action, assessments, liabilities, interest,
and/or penalties (collectively, “Losses™), including but not limited to, mechanic's and materialmen's liens, other encumbrances, and
reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by any Seller Indemnified Party resulting from personal injury or property damage suffered,
incurred or sustained by any of the Seller Indemnified Parties to the extent arising out of or resulting from the Inspections but
excluding any Losses arising (A) from Purchaser's or Purchaser’s Agent’s discovery of pre-existing conditions at the Properties
except to the extent such pre-existing conditions are exacerbated by Purchaser or Purchaser’s Agents, and (B) from the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of any Seller Indemnified Party, and in no event shall Purchaser, Purchaser’s Agents, Sellers,
and/or Sellers’ Agent be liable for any punitive damages (except to the extent arising from any third party claims). Purchaser’s
right to access the Properties shall be deemed revoked upon termination of this Agreement and Purchaser’s right to access any
Withdrawn Property shall be deemed revoked upon termination of this Agreement as to such Withdrawn Property. The indemnity
provisions of this Section 4.3.1.4 shall survive the Closing or any earlier termination of this Agreement (whether in its entirety or as
to one or more Withdrawn Properties).

4.3.2 Environmental Inspections. The Inspections under Section 4.3.1 may include non-invasive
Phase I environmental inspections of the Properties. Notwithstanding anything else contained in this Agreement, (x) no Phase II
environmental inspections or other invasive inspections or sampling of soil or materials, including without limitation construction
materials, either as part of the Phase I inspections or any other inspections and (y) no borings, drillings, invasive, intrusive or
destructive testing, shall be performed in, on, about or with respect to any of the Properties without the prior written consent of
Sellers’ Agent, which may be withheld in its sole and absolute discretion, and if consented to by Sellers’ Agent, the proposed scope
of work and the party who will perform the work shall be subject to such Sellers’ Agent’s review and approval, and in all cases,
Purchaser shall be obligated to repair or restore any damage to the extent resulting from any such test or inspection as provided
above.

4.3.3 Expiration of Inspection Period. Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that the Inspection Period
and Title Review Period have expired and, accordingly, Purchaser is hereby deemed to be satisfied with all aspects of all the
Properties, including without limitation, the condition and suitability of all the Properties for Purchaser's intended use, and
Purchaser shall be obligated to acquire each of the Properties in accordance with, and subject to, the provisions of this Agreement,
including Section 4.2.3.

4.4, Contracts. At each Closing, Purchaser shall assume each applicable Seller’s obligations arising from and
after the applicable Closing Date, under the Assumed Contracts at each applicable Property; provided, however, notwithstanding
anything stated to the contrary herein, Purchaser shall not be obligated to assume any of Sellers' obligations under, and Sellers shall
terminate, effective as of the applicable Closing Date, (i) the property management agreement relative to such applicable Properties
to which any Seller is a party and (ii) all Contracts that are not Assumed Contracts.

12



4.5. Confidentiality. The Property Information and all other information (other than matters of public record,
matters known by any Purchaser Party prior to its disclosure by Sellers or Sellers’ Agent or inspection of the Properties, matters
independently developed without the benefit of confidential information delivered by Sellers or Sellers’ Agent or matters generally
known to the public) relating to the Properties or any Seller that is furnished to, or obtained through the Inspections by Purchaser,
Purchaser’s Agents, or their affiliates, lenders, employees, attorneys, accountants, consultants, contractors and other professionals
or agents (including without limitation any third party reports) (Purchaser, Purchaser’s Agents and such other parties referred to
herein as the "Purchaser Parties"), will be treated by the Purchaser Parties as strictly confidential, and will not be disclosed to
anyone except to Purchaser Parties who in all cases have been instructed by Purchaser to maintain the confidentiality of such
information, and upon the request of Sellers’ Agent (as to any Property, unless the Closing has occurred with respect thereto) will
be either returned to Sellers or Sellers’ Agent or destroyed by Purchaser in accordance with and subject to the provisions of Section
4.6. Purchaser shall be responsible for any breach by any Purchaser Parties of Purchaser’s obligations under this Section 4.5. The
terms and provisions of this Section 4.5 shall survive the Closing or earlier termination of this Agreement.

4.6. Purchaser’s Return or Destruction of Property Information. In the event of a termination of this
Agreement for any reason (whether in its entirety or as to one or more Withdrawn Properties), promptly following the written
request of any Seller or Sellers’ Agent, Purchaser shall either return or destroy (and certify as to the destruction) all materials and
information (including, without limitation, the Property Information) given to it by Sellers’ Agent, Sellers or Sellers' consultants
during pendency of this Agreement, provided, however, that Purchaser Parties may retain electronic and other copies of such
materials and information to the extent necessary to comply with their respective internal record retention policies and as may be
required by applicable law. The terms and provisions of this Section 4.6 shall survive the Closing or earlier termination of this
Agreement (whether in its entirety or as to one or more Withdrawn Properties).

4.7, Public Announcements. Prior to each Closing, Sellers and Purchaser agree, and Sellers and Purchaser shall
cause their respective affiliates, not to make any public announcements or public disclosures or communicate with any media (each
a “Public Disclosure”) with respect to the Properties that are the subject of such Closing and or the terms of this Agreement
relating to such Properties without the prior written consent of the other party. In addition following each Closing hereunder,
neither party shall make (and shall cause their affiliates to not make) any Public Disclosure regarding the sale and Purchase of the
Properties that are the subject of such Closing unless such Public Disclosure has received the prior written approval of the other
party. The provisions of this Section 4.7 shall survive Closing or the earlier termination of this Agreement (whether in its entirety
or as to one or more Withdrawn Properties).
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4.8. Permitted Disclosures. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing set forth in Section 4.5 and_Section 4.7 shall
preclude or be deemed to preclude a party or its affiliates from making (and a party may make) disclosures pursuant to any
regulatory authority, law, court order, regulation, or stock exchange rule, in connection with any subpoena served upon such party,
or in connection with any debt or equity financing obtained to facilitate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; provided
Purchaser or Sellers, as applicable, shall provide the other with written notice before making any such disclosure and shall not
disclose any information that would constitute a breach of any Lease. Purchaser shall be responsible for any breach by any
Purchaser Parties of Purchaser’s obligations under this Section 4.5. The terms and provisions of this Section 4.8 shall survive the
Closing and, as to claims relating to breaches hereof prior to termination, any earlier termination of this Agreement (whether in its
entirety or as to one or more Withdrawn Properties).

5. OPERATIONS AND RISK OF 1L.OSS.

5.1. Ongoing_Operations. From the Effective Date until the applicable Closing with respect to a Property or
earlier termination of this Agreement or termination of this Agreement with respect to such Property, but subject to the limitations
set forth below, each Seller shall use commercially reasonable efforts to (1) operate and maintain the Property owned by such Seller
substantially in the same manner as it did before the Effective Date, (2) not directly or indirectly negotiate with any third party
respecting the sale of any Property or all Properties, or in each case, any portion thereof or interest therein (provided that (x)
transfers of non-controlling upper-tier interests by, between or among direct and/or indirect owners and their affiliates and/or (y)
transfers of controlling upper tier interests by, between or among one or more Saban family members, entities owned or controlled
by one or more Saban family members and trusts for the benefit of one or more Saban family members shall not be prohibited and
provided further that transfers of the Charleston SSA Property to the GSA pursuant to the right of first refusal described in Section
8.7.2 shall not be prohibited), and (3) continue to maintain such all-risk fire and extended coverage insurance policy or policies
covering a Property, substantially as are in force and effect on the Effective Date.

5.2. Contracts. Seller shall not amend, modify, extend, cancel or terminate any Contract or enter into any new
contract with respect to a Property or any portion thereof (except for contracts entered into by or on behalf of a Seller in the
ordinary course of business that are terminable without cause, termination fee or penalty on not more than 30-days' notice), without
the prior consent of Purchaser, in Purchaser’s sole discretion. Each Seller shall notify Purchaser of such Seller’s intent to take any
of the foregoing actions set forth in this Section 5.2. If Purchaser under this Section 5.2 neither approves or disapproves such
action within five (5) business days of receipt of notice of the same, Purchaser shall be deemed to have approved such action);
provided, however, notwithstanding anything stated to the contrary herein, each Seller may, at any time without Purchaser's
consent, enter into (i) any contract required for such Seller to comply with certain terms and provisions contained in any Lease, (ii)
any contract necessary for health and/or safety reasons relating to the Property owned by such Seller, or (iii) any contract necessary
for the maintenance of such Real Property or for any emergency repair or repairs; provided that in each case, unless Purchaser
expressly agrees to assume such Contract, Seller shall terminate such Contract effective as of or prior to applicable the Closing
Date and any charges accruing thereunder on or after the applicable Closing Date and through the date of actual termination
(including any termination fee or penalty) shall be the responsibility of such Seller.
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5.3. Leases. No Seller shall (i) enter into any new Lease or license affecting the Real Property owned by such
Seller, or any portion thereof, or (ii) terminate, amend, or cancel, renew, or extend any existing Lease (all such activity in the
foregoing clauses (i)—(ii) hereinafter referred to as “Leasing Activity”), in each case, without the prior consent of Purchaser, in
Purchaser’s sole discretion. Seller shall notify Purchaser of its intent to do any Leasing Activity, which notice shall include the
material terms of the proposed Leasing Activity (including all economic terms thereof) and if Purchaser neither approves or
disapproves of such Leasing Activity within five (5) business days of receipt of notice of the same, Purchaser shall be deemed to
have approved such Leasing Activity); provided, however, notwithstanding anything stated to the contrary herein, each Seller may,
at any time without Purchaser's consent, enter into any amendment to a Lease memorializing existing renewal, contraction, or
expansion rights in favor of a Tenant that are expressly set forth in such Tenant’s existing Lease, provided that if there are any
economic or other material terms that must be established in connection with such renewal or expansion, same shall be subject to
Purchaser’s consent. In the event that any Seller enters into a new Lease or an amendment providing for an extension, expansion,
leasehold improvements to be completed by the landlord under the Lease or any allowance payable to the tenant thereunder,
provided that Purchaser has not objected to the execution of such Lease or amendment pursuant to the terms hereof, Purchaser shall
be responsible for the payment of all such leasing commissions and allowances and the cost of all improvements contemplated
thereby (and, to the extent that Sellers incur any of such payments or costs prior to a Closing, Sellers shall receive a credit in
respect of such amounts at such Closing).

5.4. Existing Contracts. On or before 5:00 P.M. (Pacific time) on June 22, 2018, Purchaser shall notify Sellers in
writing of the Contracts that Purchaser wishes to assume at each applicable Closing (together with any Contracts entered into with
Purchaser’s consent or deemed to consent in accordance with Section 5.2 or that Purchaser expressly elects to assume if entered
into without Purchaser’s consent or deemed consent, and the Construction Contracts (as hereinafter defined), collectively, the
“Assumed Contracts”); provided that Purchaser shall be obligated to assume all Contracts that cannot be terminated on less than
thirty (30) days’ notice without the payment of a fee or penalty (each of which shall also constitute Assumed Contracts). Failure to
timely deliver such notice shall constitute Purchaser's binding election to assume all Contracts. Notice of termination of all such
Contracts not assumed by Purchaser shall be given by the applicable Seller effective as of or prior to the Closing Date and any
charges accruing thereunder or under any Contracts not disclosed on Exhibits D-1 through D-14 (unless Purchaser has elected to
assume the same) on or after the Closing Date and through the date of actual termination shall be the responsibility of Sellers
(including any termination fee or penalty). Notwithstanding the foregoing, on or prior to the Closing, each Seller shall terminate
the existing property management agreement that such Seller has entered into relating to the management and leasing of its
respective Property.
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5.5. Damage or Condemnation. Subject to the terms hereof, risk of loss resulting from any condemnation or
eminent domain proceeding which is commenced or has been threatened against any Real Property before the applicable Closing,
and risk of loss to such Real Property due to fire, flood or any other cause before the applicable Closing, shall remain with the
Seller that owns such Real Property. If before the applicable Closing for any Real Property, there is “Major” (as defined below)
loss or damage to such Property, then, the applicable Seller shall give prompt written notice thereof to Purchaser (which notice shall
include the cost to repair and restore the Property as determined by an architect or engineer selected by the applicable Seller and
reasonably approved by Purchaser), and Purchaser must elect to either (a) deliver a Withdrawn Property Notice with respect to such
Property (in which event Section 7.6 shall apply), or (b) acquire such Property (subject to the satisfaction of all applicable closing
conditions) in the case of (a) or (b) by delivering written notice of such election to the applicable Seller on or before five (5)
business days after receipt of notice from the applicable Seller of such damage or taking, and the applicable Closing Date shall be
extended as necessary to allow for such time period to elapse. Failure to deliver notice within the aforesaid time period shall be
deemed an election by Purchaser to acquire such Property. If (x) no such election is made, or (y) Purchaser elects to acquire such
Property, or (z) the loss or damage to such Property is not “Major”, then this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, the
purchase of such affected Property contemplated herein, less any interest taken by eminent domain or condemnation, shall be
effected with no further adjustment, and at the Closing, the applicable Seller shall assign, transfer and set over to Purchaser its
right, title and interest in and to any awards that have been or that may thereafter be made for such taking, and any insurance claims
and proceeds that may thereafter be made for such damage or destruction and Purchaser shall receive a credit at the Closing in the
amount of any deductible or co-payments under the applicable insurance policy of such Seller.

5.6. Major Loss or Damage. For purposes of this Section 5.6, the phrase(s), with respect to any Property, "Major"
loss or damage shall mean the following: (a) damage by casualty or loss due to a condemnation that entitles GSA to terminate its
respective Government Lease pursuant to the terms thereof, (b) any loss due to a condemnation which permanently and materially
impairs the current use of or access to such Property, (c) loss or damage to such Property such that the cost of repairing or restoring
the Property to substantially the same condition which existed prior to the event of damage would be, in the opinion of an architect
or engineer selected by the applicable Seller and reasonably approved by Purchaser, equal to, or greater than 5% of the Purchase
Price allocated to such Property on Schedule 1, (d) damage by casualty or any loss due to a condemnation to a Property following
which the applicable Seller’s lender requires any insurance proceeds or condemnation awards be applied to any loan secured by
such Property and not made available for restoration of such damage or loss, unless in either case the applicable Seller, in its sole
and absolute discretion, provides Purchaser with a credit at Closing for the full amount of the loss or the condemnation award
applied by such lender as applicable, and/or (e) any damage by casualty that is underinsured or uninsured, unless in either case the
applicable Seller, in its sole and absolute discretion, provides Purchaser with a credit at Closing for the uninsured or underinsured
amounts.
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6. CONDITIONS TO PURCHASER'S AND SELLERS' OBLIGATIONS.

6.1. Conditions to Purchaser's Obligations. Each Closing, and Purchaser's obligation to consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement in connection therewith, are subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions for
Purchaser's benefit (or Purchaser's waiver thereof, it being agreed that Purchaser may waive any or all of such conditions) on or
prior to the applicable Closing Date as to the Properties that are the subject of such Closing:

6.1.1 All of Sellers’ representations and warranties contained herein shall be true and correct in all
material respects as of the applicable Closing Date as to the Sellers and Properties that are the subject of such Closing (except with
respect to a Withdrawn Property or a Property subject to a Withdrawn Property Notice) as if such representations and warranties
were made as of the applicable Closing Date (or if such representation and warranty is made as of a certain date, all of such
representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all material respects as of such date). Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in this Agreement, no Seller shall make any representations or warranties with respect to any Withdrawn Property or any
Property subject to a Withdrawn Property Notice at the Closing (unless a Correctible Condition with respect to such Property is
cured by Seller in accordance with Section 7.6.1.1 and such Property is no longer a Withdrawn Property and is scheduled to close
in such Closing), nor are any representations or warranties with respect to any Withdrawn Properties or Property subject to a
Withdrawn Property Notice set forth in this Agreement or any Sellers' Closing Documents conditions to any Closing (unless a
Correctible Condition with respect to such Property is cured by Seller in accordance with Section 7.6.1.1 and such Property is no
longer a Withdrawn Property and is scheduled to close in such Closing).

6.1.2 As of the applicable Closing Date, Sellers shall have performed their obligations hereunder in all
material respects as to the Properties that are the subject of such Closing and all Sellers' Closing Documents with respect to each
such Property shall have been delivered, subject to the provisions of Section 7.6;

6.1.3 As of the applicable Closing Date, with respect to the Properties that are subject to such Closing,
the applicable Government Leases shall be in full force and effect (unless GSA has exercised a termination right provided for in
such GSA’s Government Lease), provided that Seller’s failure to satisfy the condition in this Section 6.1.3 shall only constitute the
non-fulfillment of the condition and the same shall in no event be deemed a default by any Seller under this Agreement unless and
to the extent that such failed condition is by reason of Sellers’ breach of an express provision of this Agreement;

6.1.4 Sellers shall have delivered no later than the three (3) Business Days prior to the applicable
Closing Date, a Tenant Estoppel on an Approved Form of Estoppel Certificate (i) for each Government Lease executed by the
Government, and (ii) executed by Tenants under Leases that are not Government Leases occupying at least seventy percent (70%)
of the rented square footage of each of the respective applicable Improvements (excluding the rentable square footage in such
Improvements leased pursuant to Government Leases) (collectively, the “Estoppel Requirement”); provided that (a) a Seller’s
failure to satisfy the Estoppel Requirement shall only constitute the non-fulfillment of the condition set forth in this Section 6.1.4
and the same shall in no event be deemed a default by any Seller under this Agreement, and (b) in no event shall a Tenant Estoppel
be required to be obtained with respect to the Tenants listed on Schedule 6.1.4 in order to satisfy the Estoppel Requirement (even if
such exclusion eliminates the requirement for all non-GSA Tenant Estoppels as to a Property);
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6.1.5 Such Closing shall not occur after the Outside Closing Date;

6.1.6 Title Company is irrevocably committed (subject to payment of premiums) to issue the applicable
Title Policies provided that Seller’s failure to satisfy the condition in this Section 6.1.6 shall only constitute the non-fulfillment of
the condition and the same shall in no event be deemed a default by any Seller under this Agreement unless and to the extent that
such failed condition is by reason of Sellers’ breach of an express provision of this Agreement;

6.1.7 No claim, action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, investigation or arbitration by or before any
governmental, regulatory, administrative, judicial or arbitral body (an “Action”) shall be pending (other than any Action by
Purchaser or any of its affiliates) that would materially and adversely affect any Seller’s ability to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement or otherwise enjoin or prohibit the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement; and

6.1.8 There shall not have been more than two (2) Withdrawn Property Notices delivered or two (2)
Properties which have become Withdrawn Properties pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; provided, however, (a) the Pool B
Properties which are deemed to be Withdrawn Properties pursuant to the terms of Section 6.2.3, (b) the Intentional Breach
Properties, and (c) the Charleston SSA Property if the GSA elects to purchase such Property pursuant to the GSA’s right of first
refusal or GSA does not approve Purchaser as the purchaser of the Charleston SSA Property, shall not count towards such two (2)
Withdrawn Property limit.

Notwithstanding the failure of any condition set forth herein, if any Closing occurs, there shall be no liability on the part
of any Seller for breaches of covenants, representations and warranties of which Purchaser had actual knowledge as of such
Closing, and any such breaches shall be deemed waived by Purchaser.

6.2. Conditions to Sellers’ Obligations. Each Closing, and Sellers' obligations to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement in connection therewith, are subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions for Sellers'
benefit (or Sellers' waiver thereof, it being agreed that Sellers may waive any or all of such conditions) on or prior to the applicable
Closing Date as to the Properties that are the subject of such Closing:

6.2.1 All of Purchaser's representations and warranties contained herein shall be true and correct in all
material respects as of the applicable Closing Date as if such representations and warranties were made as of the applicable Closing
Date;

6.2.2 As of the applicable Closing Date, Purchaser shall have performed each of its obligations
hereunder in all material respects and all Purchaser Closing Documents and Purchase Price with respect to each Property that is the
subject of such Closing shall have been delivered in accordance with Sections 3.2.3 and 7.1.2.1, subject to the provisions of Section
7.6;
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6.2.3 For any Closing with respect to any of the Pool B Properties, solely with respect to the Pool B
Properties (and without, on its own, impacting the Closing of any other Properties) Pool B Lender shall have consented to the same
and shall have provided releases with respect to the Properties that secure such Pool B Properties and provided such other releases
satisfactory to Sellers (and, to the extent required by Title Company in order to remove mortgage liens relating to the Pool B
Properties, Title Company) with respect thereto (“Pool B Lender Consent”); provided that failure to obtain the same shall (i) in no
event be deemed a default by any Seller under this Agreement, (ii) constitute the failure of a condition precedent to the sale of any
Property that is not a Pool B Property; and (iii) render the Pool B Properties for which Pool B Lender Consent was not obtained as
Withdrawn Properties (but which Pool B Properties shall not count towards the two (2) Withdrawn Property limit in this
Agreement);

6.2.4 Such Closing shall not occur after the Outside Closing Date;

6.2.5 No Action shall be pending (other than any Action by any Sellers or any of their affiliates) that
would materially and adversely affect any Purchaser’s ability to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or
otherwise enjoin or prohibit the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; and

6.2.6 There shall not have been more than two (2) Withdrawn Property Notices delivered or two (2)
Properties which have become Withdrawn Properties pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; provided, however, that (a) the Pool
B Properties which are deemed to be Withdrawn Properties pursuant to the terms of Section 6.2.3, (b) the Intentional Breach
Properties, and (c) the Charleston SSA Property if the GSA elects to purchase such Property pursuant to the GSA’s right of first
refusal or GSA does not approve Purchaser as the purchaser of the Charleston SSA Property, shall not count towards such two (2)
Withdrawn Property limit.

7. CLOSING. The closing and consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, to occur in one or more
tranches, as provided in this Agreement (each, a "Closing") shall occur through escrow with Escrow Agent on the applicable
Closing Date. Any delayed Closing with respect to a Property pursuant to Section 7.6, shall also constitute a Closing, subject to the
provisions of Section 7.6. Each Closing shall occur in accordance with the following provisions.

7.1. Sellers' and Purchaser's Deliveries.

7.1.1 Sellers' Deliveries. On or before the applicable Closing Date (provided that for any Closing as to
which a defeasance is to occur, deliveries shall be made at least two (2) business days prior to the Closing Date) each applicable
Seller shall deliver in escrow to Escrow Agent the following with respect to each Property that is the subject of the Closing
(collectively, the "Sellers' Closing Documents"):

7.1.1.1 Deed. A deed (a “Deed”) in substantially the applicable form set forth in Exhibits [.-1
through L-11, duly executed and acknowledged by such Seller, conveying to Purchaser or a Purchaser Designee title to the
applicable Real Property, subject to the Permitted Exceptions.
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7.1.1.2 Assignment of I.eases and Contracts and Bill of Sale. An Assignment of Leases
and Contracts and Bill of Sale (the "Assignments of Leases and Contracts and Bill of Sale") in the form of Exhibit F attached
hereto, executed by such Seller.

7.1.1.3 State Law Disclosures. Such disclosures and reports and other filings and affidavits
as are required by applicable state and local law in connection with the conveyance of such Real Property.

7.1.1.4 FIRPTA. A Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act affidavit executed by such
Seller substantially in the form of Exhibit G attached hereto.

7.1.1.5 Rent Roll. A copy of a current rent roll prepared, or caused to be prepared by, the
applicable Seller in the ordinary course of business.

7.1.1.6 Seller’s Certificate. A certificate, dated as of the applicable Closing Date, stating that
all of Seller’s representations and warranties contained in Section 8.1 hereof are true and correct in all material respects as of the
applicable Closing Date as if such representations and warranties were made as of the applicable Closing Date (or if such
representation and warranty is made as of a certain date, that all of such representations and warranties shall be true and correct in
all material respects as of such date).

7.1.1.7 Novation Agreement. With respect to the Government Leases, a novation agreement
with respect to such Government Lease in the form of Exhibit H, or such other form as provided by GSA (the “Novation
Agreement”) duly executed by the applicable Seller (provided that (a) the parties acknowledge that GSA will not have executed
the same and (b) in the event that GSA modifies the executed form of Novation Agreement provided by a Seller in any manner, any
such revisions shall be subject to the review and reasonable approval of such Seller prior to attaching such Seller’s signature page
thereto).

7.1.1.8 Tenant Estoppels. All original Tenant Estoppels (or copies thereof) that the
applicable Sellers have received, to the extent applicable to the Properties that are the subject of such Closing, and not previously
delivered to Purchaser (for the avoidance of doubt, the foregoing does not expand the closing conditions in favor of Purchaser).

7.1.1.9 Other Estoppels. An original executed O’Hare Association Estoppel or Declaration
Estoppel (or copies thereof) that the applicable Sellers have received, to the extent applicable to the Properties that are the subject
of such Closing, and not previously delivered to Purchaser (for the avoidance of doubt, the foregoing does not expand the closing
conditions in favor of Purchaser).

7.1.1.10 Additional Documents. Such evidence as Title Company may reasonably require as
to the authority of the person or persons executing documents on behalf of Seller and any additional documents that Escrow Agent
or Title Company may reasonably require for the proper consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and to
issue the Title Policies including an owner’s affidavit in the form of Exhibit I attached hereto, duly executed by the applicable
Seller.
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7.1.2 Purchaser's Deliveries. On or before the applicable Closing Date Purchaser shall deliver in
escrow to Escrow Agent the following with respect to each Property that is the subject of such Closing (provided that for any
Closing as to which a defeasance is to occur, the following documents shall be made at least two (2) business days prior to the
applicable Closing Date):

7.1.2.1 Purchase Price. The Purchase Price due pursuant to Section 3.2.3 allocable to the
Properties being purchased on the applicable Closing less the pro rata portion of the Earnest Money that is allocable to the
Purchase Price therefor (and paid to the applicable Seller), plus or minus applicable prorations, deposited by Purchaser with Escrow
Agent in immediate, same day federal funds wired for credit into Escrow Agent's escrow account no later than 11:00 a.m. (Pacific
Time) on the business day prior to the applicable Closing Date.

7.1.2.2 Assignment of I.eases and Contracts and Bill of Sale. The Assignments of Leases
and Contracts and Bill of Sale executed by Purchaser or a Purchaser Designee.

7.1.2.3 State Law Disclosures. Such disclosures and reports and other filings and affidavits
as are required by applicable state and local law to be executed by Purchaser or a Purchaser Designee in connection with the
conveyance of the Real Properties.

7.1.2.4 Novation Agreement. With respect to the Government Leases, a Novation
Agreement duly executed by the Purchaser or Purchaser’s Designee (provided that (a) the parties acknowledge that GSA will not
have executed the same and (b) in the event that GSA modifies the executed form of Novation Agreement provided by a Purchaser
in any manner, any such revisions shall be subject to the review and reasonable approval of Purchaser prior to attaching
Purchaser’s signature page thereto).

7.1.2.5 Purchaser’s Certificate. A certificate dated as of the applicable Closing Date stating
that the representations and warranties of Purchaser contained in Section 8.2 hereof are true and correct in all material respects as of
the applicable Closing Date.

7.1.2.6 Additional Documents. Such evidence as Title Company may reasonably require as
to the authority of the person or persons executing documents on behalf of Purchaser and any additional documents that Escrow
Agent or Title Company may reasonably require for the proper consummation of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement. The documents listed in this Section 7.1 being collectively referred to herein as the “Purchaser Closing Documents”.

7.1.3 Closing_Statements/Escrow Fees;_Tenant Notices. Concurrently with each Closing, (i) Sellers
and Purchaser shall deposit with Escrow Agent an executed closing statement consistent with this Agreement and mutually
acceptable to the applicable Sellers and Purchaser in the form required by Escrow Agent, (ii) Sellers and Purchaser shall execute at
such Closing and Purchaser shall deliver to each Tenant (other than Government Tenants and GSA) immediately after the Closing,
tenant notices regarding the sale of the applicable Real Properties in substantially the form of Exhibit M-1 attached hereto, or such
other form as may be required by applicable state law and (iii) Seller and Purchaser shall execute at such Closing and Purchaser
shall deliver to each vendor under the Assumed Contracts promptly after the Closing, vendor notices regarding the sale of the
applicable Real Properties in substantially the form of Exhibit M-2 attached hereto.
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7.1.4 Possession;_Post-Closing Deliveries. At each Closing, Seller shall deliver to Purchaser or a
Purchaser Designee possession and occupancy of each applicable Property, subject only to the Permitted Exceptions and the rights
of Tenants under their Leases. Promptly following each Closing, to the extent in Sellers' possession or the possession of Sellers'
property manager, Sellers shall deliver to Purchaser (or at Purchaser’s request, Purchaser’s property manager at the applicable Real
Property): the copies or the original applicable Leases, Assumed Contracts, Warranties and the other Intangible Property, if any,
receipts for deposits; and all keys, if any, used in the operation of applicable Real Property applicable to such Closing.

7.2. Escrow Agent's Closing Obligations. At each Closing, provided that the conditions set forth in Sections 6.1
and 6.2 or Section 7.6, as applicable, have been satisfied or waived, Escrow Agent shall take the following actions in the order
indicated below with respect to each Property that is the subject of the Closing:

7.2.1 With respect to all closing documents delivered to Escrow Agent hereunder, and to the extent
necessary, Escrow Agent is authorized to insert into all blanks requiring the insertion of dates the applicable Closing Date or such
other date as Escrow Agent may be instructed in writing by Sellers and Purchaser;

7.2.2 Deliver to Sellers, by wire transfer of federal funds, the applicable Purchase Price due pursuant to
Section 3.2.3, plus or minus, as the case may be, the net amount of prorations, credits and costs which are payable to or payable by
the Sellers pursuant to this Agreement, including prorations under Section 7.5, costs to be paid by Sellers under Section 7.3 and
adjustment for any Withdrawn Properties pursuant to Section 7.6;

7.2.3 Record each Deed in the land records of the County in which the applicable Real Property is
located, together with any other documents required for filing and recordation;

7.2.4 Deliver to Purchaser and Sellers original counterparts of the documents referred to in Section 7.1
which are executed by Sellers and Purchaser and a conformed copy of each recorded Deed,;

7.2.5 Cause the issuance of the Title Policies for the Real Properties in accordance with the provisions of
Section 4.2.4; and

7.2.6 Deliver to Sellers and Purchaser a final closing statement which has been certified by Escrow
Agent to be true and correct.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, in connection with any Closing as to which Seller intends to defease any
loan(s), upon (x) confirmation from Escrow Agent that it has received all documents and funds necessary for the applicable
Closing, and (y) confirmation that all other conditions to Sellers’ and Purchaser’s obligation to consummate such Closing with
respect to the Properties subject to the Closing shall have been satisfied or waived, upon Seller’s written notice to commence
defeasance, Sellers and Purchaser shall irrevocably commit to proceed to Closing at which time Sellers shall authorize the
“circling” of the securities for the defeasance in order to allow the defeasance to occur on the applicable Closing Date.
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7.3. Escrow, Closing and Title Charges. At each Closing escrow, title charges, transfer taxes and other closing
costs shall be allocated between Sellers, on one hand, and Purchaser, on the other hand, as set forth on Schedule 7.3. Purchaser
shall pay for the cost of all title reports and title insurance premiums. Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 7.3, Purchaser
shall pay for all of its diligence costs and Purchaser's and Sellers' respective attorneys' fees shall be borne and paid in all cases by
the party incurring same, and if the Closing does not occur by reason of Purchaser's or Sellers' default under this Agreement, then
all escrow and title charges (including cancellation fees) shall be borne by the party in default, and costs other than as set forth
above or on Schedule 7.3 will be paid by Sellers, on one hand, or Purchaser, on the other hand, as applicable, as specified by other
provisions of this Agreement or, if no provision is made in this Agreement in accordance with local custom in the applicable county
in which the Real Property is located. This provision shall survive each Closing or any termination of this Agreement (whether in
its entirety or as to one or more Withdrawn Properties).

7.4. Procedures Upon Failure of Condition. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein and subject to the
provisions of Section 7.6, if any condition set forth in Sections 6.1 or 6.2 is not timely satisfied or waived (and provided that
conditions do not need to be satisfied with respect to a Withdrawn Property or a Property subject to a Withdrawn Property Notice in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement (unless a Correctible Condition with respect to such Property is cured by Seller in
accordance with Section 7.6.1.1 and such Property is no longer a Withdrawn Property and is scheduled to close in the applicable
Closing)) for a reason other than the default or breach of Purchaser or Sellers under this Agreement:

74.1.1 This Agreement and the respective rights and obligations of Sellers and Purchaser
hereunder shall terminate (except to the extent that any right, obligation or liability set forth herein expressly survives termination
of this Agreement) at the written election of the party for whose benefit such condition was imposed, which written election must
be made within two (2) business days after the date on which the applicable Closing was scheduled to occur;

7.4.1.2 Escrow Agent shall promptly return to Purchaser the Earnest Money then held by
Escrow Agent, and to Sellers and Purchaser all documents deposited by them respectively, which are then held by Escrow Agent;

7.4.1.3 Promptly following the written request of any Seller or Sellers’ Agent, Purchaser shall
either return or destroy (and certify as to the destruction) the Property Information to Sellers or Sellers’ Agent in accordance with
and subject to Section 4.6, and Purchaser shall deliver to Sellers or Sellers’ Agent, only to the extent requested by any Seller or
Sellers’ Agent in writing to Purchaser, all Work Product in accordance with and subject to Section 12.3; and

7.4.1.4 Any escrow cancellation and title charges shall be borne equally by Sellers, on one
hand, and Purchaser, on the other hand.

The foregoing shall not be deemed to preclude Purchaser from giving a Withdrawn Property Notice to the extent
permitted under Section 7.6 with respect to a Property for which a condition to close has not been satisfied.
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7.5. Prorations. If the cash portion of the applicable Purchase Price is received by Sellers' bank in time to credit
Sellers’ account and pay off any applicable financing of Sellers on the applicable Closing Date, the day the applicable Closing
occurs shall belong to Purchaser and all prorations hereinafter provided to be made as of such Closing shall each be made as of the
end of the day before such Closing Date. If the cash portion of the Purchase Price is not so received by Sellers' bank in time to
credit Sellers’ account and pay off Sellers’ financing on the applicable Closing Date, then the day the applicable Closing occurs
shall belong to Sellers and such proration shall be made as of the end of the day that is the applicable Closing Date. In each such
proration set forth below, the portion thereof applicable to periods beginning as of the applicable Closing shall be credited to
Purchaser or charged to Purchaser as applicable and the portion thereof applicable to periods ending as of the applicable closing
shall be credited to the applicable Seller or charged to the applicable Seller, as applicable. Each proration set forth below shall be
made with respect to each Property that is the subject of the applicable Closing.

7.5.1 Collected Rent. All rent and all other income (excluding any nonrefundable fees and
nonrefundable deposits of any nature received by a Seller prior to the applicable Closing, all of which shall be deemed the sole
property of such Seller and further excluding all tenant deposits paid by Tenants under the Leases assigned to Purchaser, all of
which shall be credited to Purchaser as set forth below) (collectively, "Rents") collected under Leases in effect on the applicable
Closing Date shall be prorated as of such Closing. Uncollected Rent (which shall, for the avoidance of doubt include Rent paid in
arrears pursuant to any Lease which has not been collected as of any applicable Closing) shall not be prorated and, to the extent
payable for the period prior to the month in which such Closing occurs and the month in which such Closing occurs, shall remain
the property of such Seller (subject to proration for the month of Closing as set forth herein), and Purchaser agrees to use
commercially reasonable efforts to collect such uncollected Rent in the usual course of Purchaser’s operation of the Property, but
Purchaser shall not be obligated to declare a Lease default or institute any lawsuit to collect such uncollected Rent. Purchaser shall
apply Rent from tenants that are collected after the Closing first to Rents which are applicable to the month of Closing, then to
Rents then due to Purchaser after the month after such Closing, and then to Rents which were due to such Seller before such
Closing. Sellers may not pursue collection of any Rents following the applicable Closing Date. Any prepaid Rents for the period
following such Closing Date shall be paid over by Sellers to Purchaser at such Closing. Purchaser will make reasonable efforts,
without suit or declaration of a default under the applicable Lease, to collect any Rents applicable to the period before such
Closing, by sending to tenants bills for the payment of past due Rents following such Closing Date. With respect to Tenants that
are responsible for all or a share of taxes (including metro rail taxes in Virginia), insurance charges and other operating expenses
under Leases (“Additional Rents”), the parties shall “re-prorate” such Additional Rents (including any portions thereof that may
be required to be refunded to Tenants) pursuant to Section 7.5.8 at the time that such estimates are actually adjusted or reconciled
pursuant to the terms of the Leases (taking into account the credits, if any, given at Closing related thereto). If any Seller collects
any Rents or Additional Rents after Closing that are due to Purchaser pursuant to the foregoing, such Seller shall promptly tender
the same to Purchaser after taking into account the above prorations. If Purchaser collects any Rents or Additional Rents after
Closing that are due to Sellers pursuant to the foregoing, Purchaser shall promptly tender the same to Sellers after taking into
account the above prorations. Until the Novation Agreements are executed by GSA and payments under Government Leases are
made directly to Purchaser or a Purchaser Designee, Sellers shall maintain (or cause to be maintained) bank accounts for a period
not to exceed nine (9) months following the applicable Closing to which payments under Government Leases are sent and shall
promptly deliver Purchaser’s share of the same to Purchaser upon receipt.
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7.5.2 Taxes and Assessments. Real estate and personal property taxes, water and sewer charges (if
any), vault charges (if any), and any and all other municipal or governmental assessments of any and every nature levied or
imposed by any governmental authority (“Taxes”) with respect to such Property for the relevant tax year in which such Property is
being sold and that are not yet due and payable or that have not yet been paid shall be prorated as of such Closing based upon the
most recent ascertainable assessed values and tax rates and based upon the number of days Purchaser and the applicable Seller will
have owned such Property during such relevant tax year. Sellers shall receive a credit for any Taxes paid by Sellers and applicable
to any period after such Closing. If, as of such Closing Date any Seller is protesting or has notified Purchaser, in writing, that it has
elected to protest any Taxes (a “Tax Appeal”), then Purchaser agrees that such Seller shall have the right (but not the obligation),
after such Closing Date to continue such Tax Appeal. Purchaser further agrees to reasonably cooperate with Sellers and execute
any documents reasonably requested by Sellers to the extent reasonably satisfactory to Purchaser in connection with such Tax
Appeals. Any tax savings received (“Tax Refunds”) for the relevant tax year under any Tax Appeal, whether filed by any Seller or
Purchaser, shall be prorated between the parties based upon the number of days, if any, such Seller and Purchaser respectively
owned the applicable Property during such relevant tax year; any payment of Tax Refunds to Purchaser or such Seller shall be net
of any fees and expenses payable to any third party for processing such Tax Appeal, including attorneys’ fees. Sellers shall have
the obligation to refund to any tenants any portion of such Tax Refund paid to Sellers which may be owing to such tenants, which
payment shall be paid to the tenants or to Purchaser within fifteen (15) business days of delivery to Sellers by Purchaser of written
confirmation of such tenants’ entitlement to such Tax Refunds. Purchaser shall have the obligation to refund to tenants in good
standing as of the date of such Tax Refund, any portion of such Tax Refund paid to it which may be owing to such tenants. Sellers
and Purchaser agree to notify the other in writing of any receipt of a Tax Refund within fifteen (15) business days of receipt of such
Tax Refund. To the extent either party obtains a Tax Refund, a portion of which is owed to the other party, the receiving party shall
deliver such portion of the Tax Refund to the other party within fifteen (15) business days of its receipt. If Purchaser or Sellers fail
to pay such amount(s) to the other as and when due, such amount(s) shall bear interest from the date any such amount is due to
Sellers or Purchaser, as applicable, until paid at the lesser of (a) ten percent (10%) per annum and (b) the maximum amount
permitted by law. The obligations set forth herein shall survive the applicable Closing.

7.5.3 Contracts. At each Closing, Purchaser will assume the obligations applicable to the period from
and after such Closing under the Assumed Contracts relating to the Properties that are the subject of such Closing. Any accrued
and unpaid amounts payable or receivable under the Assumed Contracts assigned to Purchaser or a Purchaser Designee, and any
amounts prepaid or collected by Sellers prior to the Closing under such Contracts and attributable to periods from and after the
Closing, shall be prorated (with Sellers being responsible for accrued and unpaid amounts (and receiving amounts collected)
relating to the period prior to Closing during which Seller owned the applicable Property and Purchaser being responsible for
amounts payable (and receiving amounts collected) with respect to the period on or after Closing).
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7.5.4 Tenant Deposits. All refundable tenant security deposits required to be held by a Seller under a
Lease (and interest thereon if required by law or contract to be earned thereon) and not theretofore lawfully applied to tenant
obligations under the Leases of the Property that is the subject of such Closing shall be transferred or credited to Purchaser at such
Closing or placed in escrow if required by law. As of such Closing, Purchaser shall assume the applicable Seller’s obligations
related to tenant security deposits to the extent of the actual security deposits transferred or credited to Purchaser at such
Closing. Seller shall cause any non-cash security deposits, including any letters of credit, to be assigned to Purchaser as of the
Closing Date, provided that with respect to any letters of credit that are transferable by their terms, Seller (at its reasonable expense,
unless payable by the applicable Tenant under its Lease) may deliver to Purchaser at the applicable Closing the fully executed (with
signatures notarized or signatures guaranteed as required by the issuer of the letter of credit) forms necessary to effect such
assignment. Purchaser will indemnify, defend, and hold such Seller harmless from and against all loss, cost, damages (including
reasonable attorneys’ fees) suffered by such Seller arising from Purchaser’s failure to return any Tenant Security Deposit actually
received by Purchaser, in accordance with the terms of the applicable lease agreement, and such indemnity shall survive each
Closing.

7.5.5 Utilities, Utility Deposits and Operating_Costs. Utilities for the Real Property (excluding
utilities for which payment is made directly by tenants), including water, sewer, electric, and gas, based upon the last reading of
meters prior to such closing and charges and other operating costs (including, without limitation, assessments and amounts payable
to any state or local government or municipality or any private association) relative to the Property that is the subject of such
Closing shall be prorated (with Sellers being responsible for accrued and unpaid amounts (and receiving amounts collected)
relating to the period prior to Closing during which Seller owned the applicable Property and Purchaser being responsible for
amounts payable (and receiving amounts collected) with respect to the period on or after Closing). Sellers shall be entitled to a
credit for all security deposits held by any of the utility companies providing service to the applicable Real Property which are
transferred to Purchaser. Sellers shall endeavor to obtain meter readings on the day before such Closing Date and if such readings
are obtained, there shall be no proration of such items and Sellers shall pay at such closing the bills therefor for the period to the
day preceding such Closing, and Purchaser shall pay the bills therefor for the period subsequent thereto. If the utility company will
not issue separate bills, Purchaser will receive a credit against the Purchase Price for such Property for such Seller’s portion and
Purchaser will (i) escrow any amounts as may be required by Title Company or Escrow Agent in accordance with applicable state
law, and (ii) pay the entire bill prior to delinquency after the applicable Closing. If a Seller has paid utilities in advance in the
ordinary course of business, then Purchaser shall be charged its portion of such payment at the applicable Closing. Purchaser shall
take all necessary steps to effectuate the transfer to Purchaser’s name as of the date of Closing of all utilities which are in any
Seller’s name. With respect to any deposit held by utility companies as of a Closing Date Sellers shall be entitled to a credit unless
Purchaser shall have opened a new account in Purchaser’s name and posted a replacement deposit (in which event the deposit made
by a Seller shall belong to Sellers and Sellers shall be entitled to recover such deposits at or following the Closing).
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7.5.6 Owner Deposits. Sellers shall receive a cash credit from Purchaser at such Closing for the
following (collectively, “Owner Deposits”): all bonds, deposits, letters of credit, set aside letters or other similar items, if any, that
are outstanding with respect to such Property that have been provided by such Seller or any of its affiliates to any governmental
agency, public utility, or similar entity (to the extent assigned to Purchaser). To the extent any Owner Deposits are not assigned to
Purchaser, Purchaser shall replace such Owner Deposits and obtain the release of such Seller (or its affiliates) from any obligations
under such Owner Deposits. To the extent that any funds are released as a result of the termination of any Owner Deposits for
which a Seller did not get a credit, such funds shall be delivered to Sellers immediately upon their receipt.

7.5.7 Leasing Commissions, Free Rent and Tenant Improvement Allowances; Costs. Purchaser
shall receive a credit at each applicable Closing for any Property subject to such Closing with respect to the outstanding leasing
commissions, tenant improvement allowances, lease buy out costs, moving, design and refurbishment allowances, rent abatements
and free rent periods under the Leases set forth on, and to the extent provided on, Exhibit J (“Tenant Inducement Costs”) (but
only to the extent that Sellers have not paid any such amounts or incurred costs with respect thereto prior to the applicable
Closing). To the extent that Purchase receives a credit therefor, Purchaser shall be responsible for such Tenant Inducement
Costs. For the avoidance of doubt, Purchaser shall receive no credits with respect to leasing commissions, tenant improvement
allowances, lease buy out costs, moving, design and refurbishment allowances, rent abatements and free rent periods except as
specifically set forth on Exhibit J (subject to the limitations set forth in this Section 7.5.7).

7.5.8 Capital Improvements, Tenant Improvements, GSA Improvements. Seller has commenced or
expects to commence certain capital improvement projects and tenant improvement work at some of the Properties as described on
Schedule 7.5.8 and Seller shall diligently pursue the completion of same in the ordinary course of business prior to the Closing at
its sole cost and expense. In the event that any such capital improvement project or tenant improvement work is not completed as
of the applicable Closing (collectively, the “Unfinished Work”), Purchaser shall receive a credit (without duplicating amounts
credited pursuant to Section 7.5.7) in the amount of any unpaid sums payable under the Contracts applicable to such Unfinished
Work (the “Construction Contracts”) and the applicable Seller shall assign and Purchaser shall assume any such Construction
Contract at the applicable Closing (such Construction Contracts shall be deemed Assumed Contracts). At or prior to the applicable
Closing, the applicable Seller shall deliver to Purchaser (i) reasonable evidence of the amounts paid by Seller under such
Construction Contracts, and (ii) unconditional partial lien waivers from the applicable contractor(s), subcontractor(s) and material
providers performing or providing materials for the Unfinished Work with respect to the portion of the Unfinished Work completed
and paid for by Seller prior to Closing. With respect to Unfinished Work for which the “Lessor” is to be reimbursed by the GSA or
other Tenant under the applicable Lease, upon completion of the Unfinished Work and upon receipt of such reimbursement from
the GSA or other Tenant, Purchaser shall pay to the applicable Seller all amounts paid for by such Seller or credited to Purchaser at
Closing with respect to the Unfinished Work. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the “Lessor” pursuant to the terms of certain
Government Leases has the obligation to perform cyclical painting, recarpeting, replacements of wall coverings, etc. in the
applicable premises, after Closing, and the performance and payment for such work shall be the responsibility of
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Purchaser. In the event that any Government Tenant requires cyclical painting, recarpeting (other than with respect to carpeting for
the Pittsburgh FBI Property which is addressed pursuant to Section 7.5.7), replacements of wall coverings, etc. in the applicable
premises between the Effective Date and the Closing as to a Property, the applicable Seller shall complete the same to the extent
that such work would be completed prior to the applicable Closing if conducted in the ordinary course of business (and shall
otherwise become the obligation of the Purchaser from and after Closing).

7.5.9 Final Adjustment After Closing. If final prorations cannot be made at such Closing for any item
being prorated under this Section 7.5, or if any proration is made at closing on an estimated basis (including any Taxes prorated on
an estimated basis because the current actual Taxes are not known as of the applicable closing) or if the amount of any proration is
determined by either party to be erroneous (“Post Closing Proration”) then Purchaser and Sellers agree to allocate such items on a
fair and equitable basis as soon as invoices or bills are available, with final adjustment to be made as soon as reasonably possible
after the applicable Closing, but in no event later than one (1) year after such Closing (except as to Taxes and Additional Rents
which shall be reconciled when final invoices, bills or Lease reconciliations are completed, as applicable). Sellers shall have
reasonable access to, and the right to inspect and audit, Purchaser’s books to confirm the final prorations for a period of three (3)
years after such Closing. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stated in this Section 7.5.8, except for any Post Closing
Prorations (which must be determined and paid within one (1) year after the applicable Closing or such other period as provided in
this Section 7.5.8), all prorations made under this Section 7.5.8 shall be final as of the applicable Closing and shall not be subject to
further adjustment (whether due to an error or for any other reason) after the applicable Closing. The terms and provisions of this
Section 7.5.8 shall survive the applicable Closing.

7.6. Withdrawn Properties.

7.6.1 Withdrawn Property Notice.

Prior to the Outside Closing Date with respect to any Property (and for the avoidance of doubt, in no case after a Closing
for such Property has occurred), if (i) with respect to any individual Seller or any individual Property, the conditions set forth in
Section 6.1 are not satisfied and such failed condition is not by reason of a Seller’s default or Purchaser’s default, (ii) a “Major”
loss (as defined in Section 5.5) has occurred at a Property, (iii) Sellers have elected to cure or remove an Objection in a Seller’s
Updated Title Notice but are unable to cure or remove such Objection on or before the applicable Closing Date, or (iv) Seller
commits a willful and deliberate breach of this Agreement as to one or more additional Properties for the purpose of preventing a
Closing from occurring as to such Property(ies) (each such Property, an “Intentional Breach Property”), then Purchaser, as its
sole remedy (except as set forth in Section 5.5), may notify the applicable Seller, in writing (a "Withdrawn Property Notice"),
that it designates such Property a potential "Withdrawn Property" on or before the earlier of (x) five (5) business days after learning
of same and (b) prior to the applicable Closing Date. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement, no
more than two (2) Withdrawn Property Notices may be delivered in the aggregate; provided, however, that (a) Pool B Properties
which are deemed to be Withdrawn Properties pursuant to the terms of Section 6.2.3, (b) Intentional Breach Properties, and (c) the
Charleston SSA Property if the GSA elects to
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purchase such Property pursuant to the GSA’s right of first refusal or GSA does not approve Purchaser as the purchaser of the
Charleston SSA Property, shall not count towards such two (2) Withdrawn Property limit. For the avoidance of doubt, no
Withdrawn Property Notice may be delivered after a Closing or Closings have occurred with respect to such Property, and the
delivery of any Withdrawn Property Notice shall not have any effect on such prior Closing or Closings. If Purchaser fails to timely
deliver a Withdrawn Property Notice with respect to a potential “Withdrawn Property”, then (x) such Property shall be purchased
by Purchaser on the applicable Closing Date, subject to all terms and conditions of this Agreement and except as expressly set forth
in Section 5.5, there shall be no liability on the part of any Seller for breaches or occurrences that gave rise to Purchaser’s right to
have delivered a Withdrawn Property Notice and any such breaches or occurrences shall be deemed waived by Purchaser and (y)
Purchaser shall be deemed to have waived its right to deliver a Withdrawn Property Notice with respect to such Property for such
breaches or occurrences.

7.6.1.1 With respect to any Property that is the subject of a Withdrawn Property Notice, the
applicable Seller shall elect, in its sole and absolute discretion by written notice provided to Purchaser no later than five (5)
business days after its receipt or provision of the Withdrawn Property Notice (and the applicable Closing Date shall be extended to
allow such period to run) to either (i) attempt to cure any issues, conditions or circumstances that make such Property a potential
Withdrawn Property (each, a “Correctible Condition”) prior to the applicable Closing Date (the “Cure Option™) or (ii) accept the
Property subject to the Withdrawn Property Notice as a “Withdrawn Property” whereby the Property shall be handled pursuant to
Section 7.6.2 below as a Withdrawn Property. If the applicable Seller elects the Cure Option and Seller effects the cure of such
Correctible Condition, Seller shall provide Purchaser with evidence of the same (collectively, a “Cure Notice”) and Seller shall
have the right to cause the closing of the acquisition of such Property to occur on the First Closing Date, the Revised First Target
Closing Date, the Second Closing Date, the Third Closing Date or any Earlier Closing Date or any other Closing Date, or, if the
cure is not effected by the final Closing as to all other Properties, at a separate Closing as to such Property not later than the Outside
Closing Date, in each case by providing written notice to Purchaser not less than ten (10) days before the desired Closing Date. If
the applicable Seller elects the Cure Option but does not timely deliver a Cure Notice or otherwise determines in its sole discretion
not to cure the Correctible Condition, then the Property shall be finally determined to be a “Withdrawn Property”.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, no Property shall be finally determined to be a “Withdrawn Property”:
(W) unless Purchaser or Seller has timely delivered a Withdrawn Property Notice with respect thereto and either (1) Seller accepted
such Property as a Withdrawn Property, (2) Seller did not deliver a Cure Notice, or (3) Seller fails, after its delivery of a Cure
Notice, to effect the cure of the Correctible Condition, (X) such Property is a Pool B Property that becomes a Withdrawn Property
pursuant to Section 6.2.3, (Y) such Property is deemed a Withdrawn Property pursuant to Section 8.7.2, or (Z) Sellers have elected
not to cure an Objection pursuant to Section 4.2.3 and Purchaser elects to terminate this Agreement with respect to such Property
pursuant to Section 4.2.3.
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For the avoidance of doubt, notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, after two (2) permitted
Withdrawn Property Notices have been delivered or two (2) Properties have otherwise become Withdrawn Properties, no other
Withdrawn Property Notices may be delivered and no other Properties may otherwise become Withdrawn Properties; provided,
however, that (a) Pool B Properties which are deemed to be Withdrawn Properties pursuant to the terms of Section 6.2.3, (b)
Intentional Breach Properties, and (c) the Charleston SSA Property if the GSA elects to purchase such Property pursuant to the
GSA’s right of first refusal or GSA does not approve Purchaser as the purchaser of the Charleston SSA Property, shall not count
towards such two (2) Withdrawn Property Notice or two (2) Withdrawn Property limits.

7.6.2 Partial Termination and Refund of Earnest Money. With respect to any Property that is finally
determined to be a “Withdrawn Property” pursuant to the terms of Section 7.6.1, as Purchaser’s sole and exclusive remedy with
respect to such Withdrawn Property (i) the parties shall promptly (and in any event within one (1) business day after such
designation) notify Escrow Agent thereof in writing, (ii) the portion of the Earnest Money that is allocated to the Withdrawn
Property pursuant to Section 3.2.1 shall be refunded to Purchaser within two (2) business days after Escrow Agent is notified
thereof, and (iii) this Agreement shall be automatically terminated solely as to such Withdrawn Property but shall otherwise remain
in full force and effect as to all other Properties, provided that (w) the Purchase Price shall be reduced by the amount allocated to
the Withdrawn Property as set forth on Schedule 1 attached hereto, (x) the Seller that owns the Withdrawn Property shall no longer
be a party to this Agreement, (y) the Withdrawn Property shall no longer be included as a Property hereunder and the Real
Property, Improvements, Leases, Contracts, Personal Property and intangible property that are associated with such Withdrawn
Property shall be likewise excluded and (z) promptly following the written request of the Seller of such Withdrawn Property or
Sellers’ Agent, Purchaser shall either destroy (and certify as to the destruction) or return the Property Information with respect to
such Withdrawn Property to such Seller or Sellers’ Agent in accordance with Section 4.6 and shall deliver to such Seller or Sellers’
Agent, only to the extent requested by the applicable Seller(s) or Sellers’ Agent in writing, all Work Product (as hereinafter
defined) with respect to such Withdrawn Property in accordance with and subject to Section 12.3.

7.6.3 Effect on Sellers’ Representations and Warranties and Closing Conditions. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary in this Agreement, if a Property is finally determined to be a Withdrawn Property pursuant to Section 7.6.1
and this Agreement is terminated as to such Withdrawn Property pursuant to Section 7.6.1, then (i) no Seller shall make or be
deemed to make any representations or warranties with respect to such Withdrawn Property at the Closing, (ii) no representations
or warranties with respect such Withdrawn Property set forth in this Agreement or any Sellers’ Closing Documents shall be
conditions to the Closing and (iii) Purchaser shall not be deemed to make any representations or warranties with respect to its
purchase of such Withdrawn Property, Purchaser shall have no further liability under this Agreement with respect to such
Withdrawn Property (except indemnity obligations which survive the termination of the Agreement) and the terms of Section 7.6.2
shall apply.
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8. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTTES AND COVENANTS

8.1. Sellers’ Representations and Warranties. Each Seller, severally and not jointly, represents and warrants to
Purchaser that as of the Effective Date and the applicable Closing Date:

8.1.1 This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by such Seller and all consents
required under such Seller’s organizational documents or by law have been obtained. All documents that are to be executed by
such Seller and delivered to Purchaser on the Closing Date, have been, or on the Closing Date, will be, duly executed, authorized
and delivered by the applicable Seller. This Agreement and all such documents are, and on the Closing Date, will be, legal, valid
and binding obligations of the applicable Seller, enforceable in accordance with their terms (subject in all cases to bankruptcy,
insolvency and similar laws and general equitable principles) and do not, and at the time of the Closing Date, will not, (a) violate
any provisions of any judicial or administrative order, injunction, decree, regulation or ruling of any court or any governmental
bodies or agencies having jurisdiction over Seller or (b) conflict with, result in a breach of, or constitute a default under the
organizational documents of Seller, any note or other evidence of indebtedness, any mortgage, deed of trust or indenture, or other
agreement or instrument to which Seller or any Property owned by the Seller (or any portion thereof) is a party or to which Seller is
subject or bound. Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of a Seller is duly authorized to do so.

8.1.2 Such Seller is a limited liability company or limited partnership duly formed, currently existing
and in good standing under the laws of its state of formation, is qualified and in good standing to transact business in the State in
which the Property owned by such Seller is located, and has the power and authority to consummate the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement.

8.1.3 There are no material actions, suits or proceedings (including arbitration proceedings) pending or,
to Seller’s knowledge, threatened against such Seller.

8.14 As of the Effective Date, such Seller has not received any written notice of a condemnation action
against its respective Property. To each Seller’s knowledge, there are no pending or threatened condemnation or eminent domain
proceedings (or proceedings in the nature or in lieu thereof) affecting its Property or any portion thereof or affecting the use of its
Property or any portion thereof.

8.1.5 Other than the Contracts listed on Exhibits D-1 through D-14 and Schedule 7.5.8 (as such lists
shall be updated by Sellers with respect to new Contracts entered into by the applicable Seller following the Effective Date in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement), there are no agreements concerning the upkeep, repair, operation, management or
maintenance of such Seller’s Property in each case that would obligate Purchaser to make payments during any calendar year in
excess of $100,000 in the aggregate as to any one Property that are not terminable on less than thirty (30) days’ notice without
penalty). Seller has delivered to Purchaser a true, correct and complete copy of each such Contract and all amendments and
modifications thereof to the extent in its possession and control. To such Seller’s knowledge, no material default, delinquency or
breach exists on the part of any contractor or other third-party under the Contracts. To Sellers’ knowledge, there are no material
defaults or breaches on the part of Seller under any of the Contracts.
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8.1.6 Such Seller is not a foreign corporation, foreign partnership or foreign estate (as such terms are
defined in Section 1445 of the Code).

8.1.7 Other than the Leases listed on Exhibit E-1 through Exhibit E-14 (as such list shall be updated by
Sellers with respect to new Leases entered into by the applicable Seller(s) following the Effective Date in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement), there are no leases, or other occupancy agreements in effect with respect to such Seller’s Property. Seller
has delivered, or made available, to Purchaser true, correct and complete copies of the Leases and all amendments and
modifications thereof to the extent in its possession and control. All of the Leases are in full force and effect (except as to the
Buffalo Property (as defined in Exhibit A) with respect to the undated and/or not fully executed Amendments 3, 4, 5 and 6 as to
which Sellers make no representations or warranties). Seller has neither given nor received any written notice of default under the
applicable Leases, in each case which remains uncured. Such Seller is not in default under any Lease in any material respect and to
Seller’s knowledge no Tenant is in default under the terms of its respective Lease in any material respect. To Seller’s knowledge,
there have been no modifications, amendments or supplements to the Leases, written or otherwise, except as set forth on Exhibit E-
1 through Exhibit E-14. As of the Effective Date, no Tenant is delinquent in the payment of Rents beyond applicable notice and
cure periods and no Tenant has paid fixed rent more than one (1) month in advance. Seller has not received written notice that any
Tenants have any claims or offsets against Seller pursuant to the Leases that remain unresolved (other than reconciliations and true-
ups, which, as of the Effective Date, apply to the year in which Closing occurs and the prior years in the ordinary course of
business). As of the Effective Date, Seller has not received any written notice of a bankruptcy event involving any of the Tenants
renting at least 5% of the rentable square footage of such Seller’s Property.

8.1.8 Except as expressly set forth in the Leases, Seller has not granted any (1) right to lease or sublease
any portion of the Real Property, (2) right of renewal or extension, (3) right of cancellation, termination or modification of any of
the Leases, (4) option to lease or purchase all or any portion of the Real Property, or (5) any right of first refusal to lease or
purchase all or any portion of the Real Property.

8.1.9 Except as set forth on Exhibit J hereto, all Tenant Inducement Costs due and payable by landlord
to any Tenant or other monetary consideration required under a Lease to be paid by landlord thereunder to or for the benefit of the
Tenant thereunder with respect to the execution of a Lease or the exercise of an extension or renewal in each case to the extent that
such Leases, extensions or renewals were signed or exercised prior to the Effective Date, including free-rent periods have been
fully paid for and/or credited to such Tenant (as applicable) (or Purchaser shall receive a credit therefor as provided in Section
7.5.7). Notwithstanding the foregoing, certain other Tenants have the right to repainting and recarpeting of their premises from
time to time during the term of their Leases (pursuant to the terms thereof) and that while no Tenants have requested the completion
of any such work as of the Effective Date which has not been completed, such work may be required to be performed in the future,
and all such work and the payment of such tenant improvement allowance shall be at Purchaser’s sole cost and expense. As of the
Effective Date, no Seller has received any written notice from GSA terminating its Government Lease, pursuant to a contractual
right to do so in such Government Lease, with such termination being effective prior to the natural expiration of the then-current
term of the Government Lease (without consideration of any unexercised extension options).
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8.1.10 No brokerage or leasing commissions or other compensation (“Leasing Commission”) is or will
be due or payable to any party (“Lease Broker”) with respect to or on account of the Leases or any extensions or renewals thereof,
in each case other than to the extent that such Leases, extensions or renewals were signed or exercised prior to the Effective Date
and Seller will pay in full, at or before Closing, all sums now or hereafter due to any Lease Broker on account of such Leases or
any such extensions or renewals thereof.

8.1.11 No Seller or any of its affiliates is or will be an entity or person (i) that is listed in the Annex to,
or is otherwise subject to the provisions of Executive Order 13224 issued on September 24, 2001 (“E013224”), (ii) whose name
appears on the United States Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”) most current list of “Specifically
Designated National and Blocked Persons” (which list may be published from time to time in various mediums including, but not
limited to, the OFAC website, http:www.treas.gov/ofac/t11sdn.pdf) (iii) who commits, threatens to commit or supports “terrorism”,
as that term is defined in EO13224, (iv) is subject to sanctions of the United States government or is in violation of any federal,
state, municipal or local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, orders, decrees, rules or regulations relating to terrorism or money
laundering, including without limitation EO13224 and the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools
Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001, or (v) who is otherwise affiliated with any entity or person listed above
(any and all parties or persons described in clauses (i) — (v) above are herein referred to as a “Prohibited Person”). Seller
covenants and agrees that neither it nor any of its affiliates shall (aa) conduct any business, nor engage in any transaction or
dealing, with any Prohibited Person, including, but not limited to, the making or receiving of any contribution of funds, goods, or
services, to or for the benefit of a Prohibited Person, or (bb) engage in or conspire to engage in any transaction that evades or
avoids, or has the purpose of evading or avoiding, or attempts to violate, any of the prohibitions set forth in EO13224.

8.1.12 Seller has not received any written notification from any governmental authority that the Property
or any portion thereof is in violation of any applicable fire, health, building, use, occupancy or zoning laws where such violation
remains outstanding.

8.1.13 Other than as shown on the Title Commitment, Seller has no knowledge and has received no
written notice of any existing or proposed special assessments or similar taxes, charges or assessments against the Property. Except
as set forth on Schedule 8.1.13, as of the Effective Date, no Seller has filed, or has retained anyone to file, notices of protests
against, or to commence action to review, real property tax assessments against the Property or any portion thereof.

8.1.14 Except as set forth on Schedule 8.1.14, Seller has no employees and there is no obligation on the
part of Purchaser to employ any employees at the Improvements which will be binding on Purchaser after Closing. The applicable
Seller shall terminate the employees listed on Schedule 8.1.14 on or before the Closing applicable to such Seller.
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8.1.15 Seller has not received any written notice of any pending administrative, regulatory or judicial
actions, suits, demands, demand letters, claims, liens, notices of noncompliance or violation, investigation or proceedings relating
to Hazardous Materials or any Environmental Law against or affecting Seller or the Property that have not been remedied or cured,
in each case.

8.1.16 The historical operating statements of income and expense of Sellers provided to Purchaser as of
the Effective Date in the dataroom folder entitled Full Due Diligence Materials\Historical Financials are the operating statements
used by Sellers in connection with their business operations.

8.1.17 Seller has not deliberately or intentionally removed, omitted, or redacted any material
information from the Property Information provided to Purchaser with the intention of deceiving Purchaser as to material matters,
except as specifically identified to Purchaser identifying the basis for such removal, omissions or redaction.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, prior to the applicable Closing, Sellers shall have the right to amend
and supplement any exhibit or schedule to this Agreement from time to time solely to reflect matters arising after the Effective Date
that are permitted under this Agreement or to maintain the truth or accuracy of the applicable representation or warranty or the
information disclosed therein; provided that the foregoing right to amend, supplement or replace the exhibits and schedules hereto
shall not be deemed to permit Sellers to default under any covenant made by Sellers herein. If any amendment or supplement of
any exhibit or schedule to this Agreement that is made by Seller in accordance with this Section causes the closing condition set
forth in Section 6.1.1 to be unsatisfied with respect to any Seller, Purchaser may designate the affected Property or Properties
owned by such Seller or Sellers as a Withdrawn Property or Withdrawn Properties in accordance with and to the extent permitted
by Section 7.6. As of the applicable Closing, if the Closing occurs, the representations and warranties of Sellers herein shall be
deemed modified to reflect any facts disclosed to or otherwise actually known by Purchaser prior to such Closing; provided,
however, that for all purposes of this Agreement, Purchaser shall be deemed to have actual knowledge of any information contained
in the Property Information and the Work Product delivered or made available to Purchaser on or before such Closing.

8.2 Purchaser’s Representations and Warranties. Purchaser makes the following representations and
warranties to Sellers:

8.2.1 Purchaser is a limited partnership duly formed, currently existing and in good standing under the
laws of the State of Delaware, and at the applicable Closing, Purchaser or a Purchaser Designee taking title to a Property will be
qualified and in good standing to transact business in the State in which such Property is located and has the power and authority to
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Purchaser is
duly authorized to do so.
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8.2.2 This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Purchaser and all consents
required under Purchaser’s organizational documents or by law have been obtained. All documents that are to be executed by
Purchaser and delivered to Sellers on the Closing Date have been, or on the Closing Date will be, duly executed, authorized and
delivered by Purchaser. This Agreement and all such documents are, and on the Closing Date will be, legal, valid and binding
obligations of Purchaser, enforceable in accordance with their terms (subject in all cases to bankruptcy, insolvency and similar laws
and general equitable principles) and do not, and, at the time of the Closing Date, will not, (a) violate any provisions of any judicial
or administrative order, injunction, decree, regulation or ruling of any court or any governmental bodies or agencies having
jurisdiction over Purchaser or (b) conflict with, result in a breach of, or constitute a default under the organizational documents of
Purchaser, any note or other evidence of indebtedness, any mortgage, deed of trust or indenture, or other agreement or instrument to
which Purchaser is a party or to which Purchaser is subject or bound. There are no actions, suits or proceedings (including
arbitration proceedings) pending or, to Purchaser’s knowledge, threatened against Purchaser. Each individual executing this
Agreement on behalf of Purchaser is duly authorized to do so.

8.2.3 Neither Purchaser nor any of its affiliates is or will be an entity or person that is a Prohibited
Person. Purchaser covenants and agrees that neither Purchaser nor any of its respective officers, directors, shareholders, partners,
members or affiliates (including without limitation indirect holders of equity interests of Purchaser) shall (aa) conduct any business,
nor engage in any transaction or dealing, with any Prohibited Person, including, but not limited to, the making or receiving of any
contribution of funds, goods, or services, to or for the benefit of a Prohibited Person, or (bb) engage in or conspire to engage in any
transaction that evades or avoids, or has the purpose of evading or avoiding, or attempts to violate, any of the prohibitions set forth
in EO13224.

8.24 Purchaser is not purchasing any of the Property with “plan assets” of an Employee Benefit Plan
subject to Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 or of a plan subject to Section 4975 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).

8.2.5 Purchaser has access to sufficient funds to permit Purchaser to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement on the Closing Date and to pay any and all fees and expenses required to be paid by Purchaser in
connection with the transactions provided for herein on the Closing Date.

8.3. Designated Knowledge Party. As used herein, the reference to “Seller’s knowledge” shall be deemed to
mean the current, actual knowledge, after inquiry of the on-site property manager and engineer, if any, at the applicable Property, of
Philip Han (the “Designated Knowledge Person”) and shall not be construed, by imputation or otherwise, to refer to the
knowledge of any property manager or broker or to any other officer, agent, manager, representative or employee of any Seller, or
to impose upon the Designated Knowledge Person any duty to investigate the matter to which such actual knowledge, or the
absence thereof, pertains, other than to make inquiry as aforesaid. There shall be no personal liability on the part of the Designated
Knowledge Persons arising out of any of Sellers’ representations and warranties.
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8.4. Survival of Representations and Warranties and Post-Closing Covenants.

8.4.1 The covenants in this Agreement, and the representations and warranties contained in Sections 8.1
and 8.2 may be relied upon by the party receiving the same and shall survive each applicable Closing Date. The representations
and warranties and post-Closing covenants (that expressly survive Closing) of the Sellers shall survive each applicable Closing
Date for two hundred seventy (270) days following such Closing Date (the “Survival Period”). In the event a written claim is
made against a Seller within the applicable Survival Period, such Survival Period shall toll with respect to such claim while such
claim is outstanding. No claim may be made based on any breach of any representations or warranties contained in Sections 8.1
after expiration of the applicable Survival Period. Purchaser shall not make any claim on account of a breach of representations or
warranties by any Seller unless and until the aggregate measure of such claims against such Seller exceeds $50,000 (“Floor”) and
in such event such Seller shall be liable for all such claims from dollar one. In no event shall the aggregate liability of any Seller to
Purchaser for any breach of any representation or warranty set forth in this Section 8.1, and for any breach of any covenant made
by any Seller set forth in this Agreement or in Sellers’ Closing Documents, exceed an amount equal to 1.25% of the Purchase Price
allocated to such Seller’s Property on Schedule 1 the (“Cap”). For the avoidance of doubt, if the Closing occurs, the maximum
aggregate liability of each Seller shall in no event exceed the Cap. For the avoidance of doubt, without affecting the Cap as it
applies to each Seller, the aggregate liability of all Sellers hereunder shall not exceed $5,375,000.

8.4.2 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Survival Period, the Floor and Cap shall not apply to (i)
Sellers’ indemnification obligations under Sections 11.2 and 12.24.3.3, (ii) Sellers’ obligations pursuant to Section 7.5, or (iii)
Sellers obligations pursuant to Section 12.5.

8.5. [Intentionally Omitted]

8.6. Hazardous Materials. Except as set forth in Section 8.1, no Seller makes any representations or warranties
as to the presence or absence of any Hazardous Materials, as hereinafter defined, in, on, under or about any Property, including but
not limited to asbestos or radon. Purchaser specifically waives any private right of action provided under any Environmental Laws,
as hereinafter defined, to recover or be reimbursed for any liabilities, costs, fees, or expenses from any Seller. Purchaser agrees to
accept complete responsibility for the allocation of any response costs under any Environmental Laws (including without limitation
CERCLA, as hereinafter defined).

8.6.1 Subject to Section 9.2.5, upon Closing, Purchaser releases each applicable Seller from any and all
claims, demands, losses, damages, liabilities, causes of action, liens, costs and expenses (including without limitation attorneys’
fees and costs to the extent permitted by law) to the extent arising out of the presence of any Hazardous Materials in, on or about
any Property, the release of Hazardous Materials from any Property, any violation of any Environmental Laws or other laws, or any
other environmental matter or condition, that is related to any Property. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such release does not apply
to any acts of any Seller first occurring following such Closing.

8.6.2 [Reserved].
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8.6.3 As used herein, the term “Hazardous Materials” shall mean any hazardous or toxic materials,
substances or wastes, such as (a) substances defined as “hazardous substances,” “hazardous materials,” or “toxic substances” in the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (“CERCLA”), the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act of 1976 (“RCRA”), and/or the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act (49 USC Section 1801, et seq.), as any of
such acts are amended from time to time; (b) any materials, substances or wastes which are toxic, ignitable, corrosive or reactive
and which are regulated by any local governmental authority, any agency of the States in which the Properties are located or any
agency of the United States of America; (c) asbestos, petroleum and petroleum based products, urea formaldehyde foam insulation,
polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), and freon and other chlorofluorocarbons; and (d) those substances defined as any of the
foregoing in the regulations adopted and publications promulgated pursuant to each of the aforesaid laws (all of the aforesaid laws
and all other laws, rules and regulations applicable to Hazardous Materials, including, without limitation, the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency regulations at 40 CFR, Part 261, the Clean Water Act, the Safe
Drinking Water Act, the Toxic Substance Control Act, and/or any rules or regulations promulgated under any of the foregoing,
being referred to herein collectively as the “Environmental Laws”).

The provisions of this Section 8.6 shall survive the Closing.

8.7. Statements of Lease; Tenant Estoppels; Charleston SSA Property, Declaration Estoppels.

8.7.1 Statements of I.ease; Tenant Estoppels. Promptly after the Effective Date, each Seller shall
request a statement of lease from the GSA, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit K-1 or such other form as may be acceptable to
GSA (collectively the "Statements of Lease") and estoppel certificates (each, an “Estoppel Certificate" or collectively the
"Estoppel Certificates") from the remaining Tenants under the Leases in the forms required by such Leases or, alternatively, if a
particular Lease does not contain an estoppel form, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit K-2. Sellers agree to use commercially
reasonable good faith efforts to obtain the Statements of Lease from GSA and the Estoppel Certificates from the other Tenants,
provided that the failure to obtain any of the Statements of Lease of Estoppel Certificates shall in no event be deemed a default by a
Seller under this Agreement, provided that Seller has used commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the Statements of Lease and
the Estoppel Certificates. Sellers shall prepare and provide to Purchaser drafts of each Estoppel Certificate and Statement of Lease
for Purchaser’s review and reasonable comment before delivering the completed Estoppel Certificates and Statements of Lease to
the Tenants and GSA. The Estoppel Certificates and Statements of Lease will be deemed approved by Purchaser unless Seller
receives specific written objections from Purchaser (which may be delivered by email to
[ ] and [ 1) within three (3) Business Days following the date Seller delivers the completed Estoppel Certificates and
Statements of Leases to Purchaser. Each approved (or deemed approved) completed Estoppel Certificate and Statement of Lease
(or any alternative form provided by a Tenant that satisfies the requirements of Statements of Lease or Estoppel Certificates in the
first sentence of this Section 8.7) is referred to herein as an “Approved Form of Estoppel Certificate.” An Estoppel Certificate or
Statement of Lease signed by the applicable Tenant is referred to herein as the “Tenant Estoppel”. Promptly following receipt of a
Tenant Estoppel from a Tenant, Seller shall deliver the Tenant Estoppel to Purchaser and such Tenant Estoppel will be deemed
approved by Purchaser unless Seller receives specific written
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objections from Purchaser (which may be delivered by email to [ Jand [ 1) within three (3) Business Days following the
date Seller delivers the Tenant Estoppel to Purchaser. Purchaser may only disapprove a Tenant Estoppel which is substantially in
the form of the Approved Form of Estoppel Certificate if such Tenant Estoppel: (1) contains information that is materially and
adversely inconsistent with (i) Seller’s representations and warranties set forth in Section 8.1 hereof, or (ii) the copy of the
applicable Lease provided or made available to Purchaser by Seller; (2) discloses a material non-monetary uncured breach by Seller
or the applicable Tenant of the Lease; (3) asserts a material monetary obligation of Seller to the applicable Tenant (e.g., Tenant
Inducement Costs, rent concessions, improvements or reimbursements due to the Tenant) which was not disclosed in writing to
Purchaser prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period, unless Seller agrees to make payment of same at Closing; (4) makes any
material adverse qualification to or denial of any of the statements set forth in the Approved Form of Estoppel Certificate (provided
that qualifications as to a Tenant’s knowledge or as to materiality shall in no event constitute material qualifications); or (5) is dated
more than sixty (60) days prior to the applicable Closing Date.

8.7.2 Charleston SSA Property Right of First Refusal With respect to the Charleston SSA Property,
Seller shall deliver a notice to GSA in the form set forth on Schedule 8.7.2 (the “Charleston ROFR Notice”). If GSA timely
notifies the owner of the Charleston SSA Property that it intends to purchase the facility in accordance with the terms of the
Charleston ROFR Notice, then the Charleston SSA Property shall be deemed a Withdrawn Property in accordance with Section 7.6,
provided that in such event the Charleston SSA Property shall not count towards the (2) Withdrawn Property
limit. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement, the Charleston SSA Property shall not be designated
for Closing prior to the earlier of (a) the day following the expiration of the 60 day right of first refusal notice period set forth in the
Lease, or (b) the date on which GSA provides a written waiver with respect to its right to purchase the Charleston SSA Property in
relation to the Charleston ROFR Notice, without Purchaser’s prior written consent in its sole discretion.

8.7.3 Declaration Estoppels. Seller shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain and deliver to
Purchaser prior to Closing an estoppel signed by the applicable counterparty with respect to the agreements set forth on Schedule
8.7.3 (collectively, the “Declaration Estoppels”) in a form reasonably acceptable to Purchaser without any materially adverse
exceptions or qualifications (provided that qualifications as to a party’s knowledge or as to materiality shall in no event constitute
material adverse qualifications). Seller’s delivery of the Declaration Estoppels shall not be a condition precedent to Purchaser’s
obligation to close hereunder and in no event shall the inability or failure of Seller to obtain and deliver the Declaration Estoppels
be a default of any Seller under this Agreement.

8.7.4 Additional Property Matters. The applicable Seller:

8.7.4.1 shall use commercially reasonable efforts to satisfy or otherwise cause to be removed
from title the Contractor’s Notice of Project Commencement between Choate Construction Company (contractor) and Charleston
Federal Courthouse, LL.C (owner), recorded September 26, 2014 in Book 431, Page 437. In the event that such Seller is unable to
do so, it shall not constitute a breach by such Seller but shall constitute the failure of a condition precedent in favor of Purchaser (as
if the same was included in Section 6.1) with respect to the Property owned by Charleston Federal Courthouse, LLC;
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8.7.4.2 has provided to Purchaser: (a) with respect to that certain Maintenance Agreement,
relating to the Property owned by GPT Portland, OR 1201 Lloyd, LLC (Recording Date: September 19, 2000; Recording No.:
2000-130214), evidence of (i) its submission of the annual inspection maintenance reports for the past 2 years with respect to the
Downstream Defender Treatment Device/Detention Facility/Storm Conveyance Structures as required by the Maintenance
Agreement and (ii) the scheduled maintenance of the Oil-Water Separator for the past 2 years as required by the Maintenance
Agreement; and (b) with respect to that certain Operations & Maintenance Agreement, relating to the Property owned by GPT
Portland, OR 1201 Lloyd, LLC (Recording Date: September 24, 2009; Recording No.: 2009-135840), evidence that it is materially
complying with the requirements of the Operations and Maintenance Plan. In the event that the evidence provided by Purchaser
discloses liabilities or conditions that were not known to Purchaser and are materially adverse to Purchaser or the Property from
and after Closing, Purchaser shall have until 5:00 p.m. (Pacific time) on June 20, 2018, to provide written notice to Sellers of its
disapproval thereof in which case, if such Seller is not able to remedy or satisfy the same and/or which the applicable Seller does
not agree to indemnify Purchaser (in a manner reasonably acceptable to Purchaser) with respect to such liabilities (which such
Seller shall be under no obligation to do), it shall not constitute a breach by such Seller but shall constitute the failure of a condition
precedent in favor of Purchaser (as if the same was included in Section 6.1) with respect to the Property owned by GPT Portland,
OR 1201 Lloyd, LLC;

8.7.4.3 use commercially reasonable efforts to, with respect to that certain Parking Easement
and Declaration of Covenants dated September 12, 2003 relating to the Property owned by Parkersburg BPD OC, LLC (recorded in
Deed Book 1057, at Page 866, as modified by Corrected Parking Easement and Declaration of Covenants dated October 28, 2004,
recorded in Deed Book 1074, at page 781), provide copies of (a) Memorandum of Understanding dated 6/26/2002 from such Seller
with respect thereto; (b) Environmental Remediation Agreement dated September, 2003; and (c) parking construction contract
between the City and BPD Parkersburg, LL.C (referenced in Section 2.1(f) of the Declaration); and (iv) parking facility lease from
the City to BPD Parkersburg, LL.C and the GSA (referenced in Section 2.2(a) of the Declaration). In the event that such Seller is
unable to provide the same, or in the event that such Seller provides the same and such documents disclose liabilities or conditions
that were not known to Purchaser and are material and adverse to Purchaser or the Property from and after Closing, Purchaser shall
have until 5:00 p.m. (Pacific time) on the date that is three (3) business days after delivery thereof to provide written notice to
Sellers of its disapproval thereof in which case, if such Seller is not able to remedy or satisfy the same and/or which the applicable
Seller does not agree to indemnify Purchaser (in a manner reasonably acceptable to Purchaser) with respect to such liabilities
(which such Seller shall be under no obligation to do), it shall not constitute a breach by such Seller but shall constitute the failure
of a condition precedent in favor of Purchaser (as if the same was included in Section 6.1) with respect to the Property owned by
Parkersburg BPD OC, LLC;
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8.7.4.4 use commercially reasonable efforts to, with respect to that certain Project Financing
Agreement between 3000 Sidney Street Associates LLC and the Urban Redevelopment Authority of Pittsburgh dated March 6,
2003 and recorded March 7, 2003 in Deed Book Volume 11590, page 476, provide copies of (each as referenced therein) (a) the
TIF Plan, (b) the Cooperation Agreement, and (c) the Tax Funds Agreement dated as of 11/1/1999, as amended, by and between the
URA and J.P. Morgan Trust Company, National Association (as successor to Chase Manhattan Trust Company, National
Association). In the event that such Seller is unable to provide the same, or in the event that such Seller provides the same and such
documents disclose liabilities or conditions that were not known to Purchaser and are material and adverse to Purchaser or the
Property from and after Closing, Purchaser shall have until 5:00 p.m. (Pacific time) on the date that is three (3) business days after
delivery thereof to provide written notice to Sellers of its disapproval thereof in which case, if such Seller is not able to remedy or
satisfy the same and/or which the applicable Seller does not agree to indemnify Purchaser (in a manner reasonably acceptable to
Purchaser) with respect to such liabilities (which such Seller shall be under no obligation to do), it shall not constitute a breach by
such Seller but shall constitute the failure of a condition precedent in favor of Purchaser (as if the same was included in Section
6.1) with respect to the Property owned by Pittsburgh USCIS OC, LLC;

8.7.4.5 use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain, with respect to the Des Plaines FAA
Property, an estoppel executed by the O’Hare Lake Owner’s Association in substantially the form attached as Schedule 8.7.4.5 (the
“O’Hare Association Estoppel”) dated not more than sixty (60) days prior to the applicable Closing and without any material or
adverse exceptions or qualifications (provided that qualifications as to a party’s knowledge or as to materiality shall in no event
constitute material qualifications). In the event that such Seller is unable to provide the same, it shall not constitute a breach by
such Seller but shall constitute the failure of a condition precedent in favor of Purchaser (as if the same was included in Section
6.1) with respect to the Des Plaines FAA Property; and

8.7.4.6 shall use commercially reasonable efforts, as to the Property owned by The Riverdale
FDA LLC, to cause to be closed, the open permits shown on Schedule 8.7.4.6 (except to the extent that work with respect to any
such permit is ongoing as of Closing). In the event that such Seller is unable to do so, it shall not constitute a breach by such Seller
but shall constitute the failure of a condition precedent in favor of Purchaser (as if the same was included in Section 6.1) with
respect to the Property owned by The Riverdale FDA LLC.

8.8. Novation Agreement.

8.8.1 Promptly after the applicable Closing, with respect to each Government Lease, Seller will work
with GSA to obtain the execution by GSA of a Novation Agreement. If prior to execution of a Novation Agreement, GSA requires
changes to such Novation Agreement signed at Closing, then such changes shall be reasonably accommodated by Purchaser and
such Seller. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event GSA requires that Purchaser process and obtain a Novation Agreement,
Purchaser shall be obligated to work to obtain the execution by GSA of such Novation Agreement and Seller (at no material out-of-
pocket cost to Seller) shall reasonably cooperate with Purchaser in obtaining same.
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8.8.2 From and after the applicable Closing, Purchaser shall be permitted to contact GSA in order to
obtain the Novation Agreements with respect to Properties acquired by Purchaser, and such Sellers shall provide Purchaser with
contact information for the GSA’s applicable contracting officer. Each applicable party agrees, at its own expense, to cooperate in
good faith in connection with obtaining such documents, including the execution of the Novation Agreements. For the period of
time between Closing and GSA’s execution and delivery of the Novation Agreements recognizing Purchaser as the new “Lessor”
under the Government Leases (“Pre-novation Period”). Purchaser acknowledges that each Seller will continue to be the “Lessor”
under the respective Government Lease. However, after Closing, Purchaser shall be solely responsible for the performance of any
obligations under the Government Leases for the period after Closing. Accordingly, Purchaser hereby agrees to indemnify, defend,
and hold the Seller Indemnified Parties harmless from and against any liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses (including, but not
limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising from or related to Purchaser’s noncompliance with any of the terms of any
Government Leases during or relating to the Pre-novation Period (“Pre-novation Period Indemnity”). Purchaser and Sellers
agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the approval of GSA to make the effective date of the Novation Agreements
the same as Closing Date. Purchaser and Sellers shall promptly and diligently execute and complete any forms, registrations, or
other requirements of GSA in connection with the recognition of Purchaser as the new Lessor under the Government Leases.

8.8.3 In the event that GSA requires that the Novation Agreement include the provision set forth on
Schedule 8.8.3 (or words to that effect), Sellers and Purchaser shall work together in good faith to resolve the same; provided,
however, that Sellers shall not be required to agree to the same unless Purchaser, in its sole discretion agrees to provide Sellers with
an indemnity that is acceptable to Sellers in their sole discretion.

8.8.4 The provisions of this Section 8.8 shall survive Closing.

9. AS-IS TRANSACTION, REIFASE AND INDEMNITY AS-IS TRANSACTION; PURCHASER
ACKNOWIL EDGMENTS AND AGREEMENTS.

9.1. As-Is Transaction, Purchaser Acknowledgments and Agreements. Purchaser hereby acknowledges and
agrees as follows:

9.1.1 Purchaser is acquiring each Property “AS IS, WHERE IS” AND “WITH ALL FAULTS,
LIABILITIES, AND DEFECTS, LATENT OR OTHERWISE, KNOWN OR UNKNOWN,” in its present state and condition as of
the applicable Closing Date, with no rights of recourse against any Seller (or any related or affiliated party) for same except for a
breach of any express representation or warranty made by such Seller in this Agreement or any Sellers’ Closing
Document. Purchaser acknowledges that Purchaser will be given a full and complete opportunity to conduct its own investigation
as to any matter, fact, or issue which might influence Purchaser’s decision to purchase the Properties. During the Inspection
Period, Purchaser was given the right to make a thorough inspection and investigation of the Properties employing its own experts
for such purpose. Purchaser represents and warrants as of each applicable Closing that Purchaser has been afforded the right to
conduct a thorough inspection of the applicable Properties and is not relying on any representation or warranty of any Seller other
than those expressly set forth in Section 8.1 herein (and subject in all events to the limitations in
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this Agreement). Purchaser understands and agrees that except as expressly set forth in Section 8.1 no Seller makes any warranties
regarding, and shall have no liability whatsoever with respect to, the accuracy, correctness, or suitability of the Property
Information. Purchaser further acknowledges that the AS-IS nature of the transaction and that the other terms and conditions
described in this Section have been taken into account in the establishment of the Purchase Price. The provisions of this Section
shall survive each Closing as to the applicable Property(ies) acquired pursuant thereto.

9.1.2 Except to the extent expressly set forth in Section 8.1 and the Sellers’ Closing Documents, no
Seller nor any of Seller’s affiliates, direct or indirect owners, agents, contractors, consultants, attorneys, or representatives have
made, do not make, and specifically negate and disclaim, and Purchaser is not relying on, any representations, warranties, promises,
covenants, agreements or guaranties of any kind or character whatsoever, whether express or implied, oral or written, past, present
or future, of, as to, concerning, or with respect to: (i) the value of any Property; (ii) any income to be derived from any Property;
(iii) the suitability of any Property for any and all activities and uses which Purchaser may conduct thereon, including without
limitation, the possibilities for further development of any Property or construction thereon, the feasibility of adopting any
condominium form of ownership or Purchaser’s ability to market the same; (iv) the habitability, merchantability, marketability,
profitability or fitness for a particular purpose of any Property or any improvements thereon; (v) the manner, quality, state of repair
or lack of repair on any Property or any improvements thereon; (vi) the nature, quality or condition of any Property, including
without limitation with respect to water conditions, soil, geological or geotechnical condition (including without limitation soil
expansiveness, corrosivity, or stability, or seismic, hydrological, geological and topographical conditions and configurations,
including without limitation any opinions or conclusions of any soils engineer(s) retained to perform geotechnical and/or soils
studies or to oversee any soils engineering aspects of developing any Property); (vii) the compliance of or by any Seller, any
Property, or its operation with any codes, laws, rules, ordinances, regulations of any applicable governmental authority or body;
(viii) the manner or quality of the construction or materials incorporated into any Property; (ix) compliance with Environmental
Laws or land use laws, rules, regulations, orders, codes or requirements, including, but not limited to, the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, and/or any rules or regulations promulgated under any of the foregoing (as the same may be amended
from time to time); (x) the presence or absence of radon gas, methane gas, or any Hazardous Materials at, on, under, or adjacent to
any Property; (xi) the content, completeness or accuracy of any Property Information and/or Title Commitments; (xii) the
conformity of any improvements to any plans or specifications, including without limitation any plans and specifications that may
have been or may be provided to Purchaser; (xiii) the conformity of any Property to past, current or future applicable zoning or
building requirements; (xiv) deficiency of any undershoring; (xv) deficiency of any drainage; (xvi) the fact that all or a portion of
any Property may be located on or near an earthquake fault line or in or near an earthquake or seismic hazard zone; (xvii) the
existence of vested land use, zoning or building entitlements affecting any Property; (xviii) water rights or the availability of or
access to water; (xix) the presence or suitability of any utilities or availability thereof, or (xx) any other matter relating to any
Property or to the development, construction, operation, or sale of any Property, including, but not limited to, legal requirements,
valuations, feasibility, cost, governmental permissions or entitlements, claims and obligations, license and other use rights and
claims, the future use and operation of any Property and marketability and investment return. No Seller nor
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its direct or indirect owners, affiliates, and each of the foregoing’s employees, agents, contractors, consultants, attorneys or
representatives shall be liable for any relief, including damages, rescission, reformation, allowance or adjustments based on the
failure of any Property, including, but not limited to, amount of acreage, square footage, zoning, and environmental condition, to
conform to any specific standard or expectation, or any third party documents or information. Notwithstanding any other provision
herein, in the event that any Leases or Contracts contain any express representations or warranties from any tenant, contractor,
subcontractor, agent, or consultant, Purchaser shall look solely to such tenant, contractor, subcontractor, agent, or consultant in the
event of a breach thereof, and shall not have any recourse against any Seller in connection with any such breach by or attributable
to that tenant, contractor, subcontractor, agent or consultant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section 9.1.2 shall be
deemed to excuse a Seller with respect to any breach of its express representations and warranties set forth in Section 8.1 of this
Agreement or the Sellers’ Closing Documents or prevent Purchaser’s recovery against such Seller with respect to any such breach
(subject to the limitations set forth in this Agreement). The provisions of this Section shall survive each Closing as to the
applicable Property(ies) acquired pursuant thereto.

9.1.3 Each Property and the development thereof are subject to numerous governmental requirements
under the jurisdiction of multiple local, state, and federal agencies. It is Purchaser’s sole responsibility to confirm the feasibility of
and obtain all necessary and/or appropriate governmental approvals and entitlements for the continued use, and any further
development of the Property. No Seller makes any representations or warranties of any kind regarding any governmental approvals
or entitlements or the ability to develop any Property now or in the future. No Seller makes any representation or warranty of any
kind as to a tenant’s intentions with respect to the Property or any lease or the funding or continued funding of any governmental
agency that is a tenant. Purchaser acknowledges and understands that the entitlement and regulatory approval process is extremely
complicated and uncertain, and involves a substantial number of steps. Purchaser acknowledges that it is a sophisticated real estate
investor and is familiar with such risks. Purchaser shall be solely responsible to obtain, at its sole cost, all governmental approvals,
which may from time to time be required for any further development of any Property. Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that no
Seller shall have any liability, obligation, or responsibility for any costs, fees, or expenses of any kind whatsoever related to, or
associated with the post-closing entitlement of any Property.

9.2. Purchaser’s Release of Sellers.

9.2.1 AS A MATERIAL PART OF THE CONSIDERATION TO SELLERS FOR THE SALE OF THE
PROPERTIES, PURCHASER, EFFECTIVE UPON THE APPLICABLE CLOSING HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, AND
RELEASES THE RESPECTIVE SELLER, ITS AFFILIATES, PARTNERS, MEMBERS, DIRECT AND INDIRECT OWNERS,
PRINCIPALS, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, ATTORNEYS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS,
DEMANDS, OBLIGATIONS, DAMAGES, CAUSES OF ACTION AND LIABILITIES, WHETHER KNOWN OR UNKNOWN,
OTHER THAN THOSE FOR BREACH OF ANY SELLER’S COVENANTS, REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES AND
SET FORTH HEREIN OR IN ANY DOCUMENT DELIVERED BY ANY ONE OR MORE OF THE SELLERS AT CLOSING,
THAT ARE BASED DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ON, ARISE FROM OR IN CONNECTION WITH, OR ARE RELATED
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TO: (A) ANY PAST, PRESENT OR FUTURE CONDITION OF ANY PROPERTY, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION
ANY DEFECTS IN OR TO ANY PROPERTY OR ANY IMPROVEMENTS TO ANY PROPERTY’S PROXIMITY TO ANY
GEOLOGICAL HAZARD, OR THE PRESENCE OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AT ANY PROPERTY, WHETHER IN
COMMON LAW OR UNDER ANY EXISTING OR HEREINAFTER ENACTED FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL LAW,
REGULATION, OR ORDINANCE, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION CERCLA AND RCRA, AS AMENDED, AND
WHETHER OR NOT CAUSED BY THE ACT, OMISSION OR NEGLIGENCE OF SELLERS, (B) ANY AND ALL
STATEMENTS, REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, DETERMINATIONS, CONCLUSIONS, ASSESSMENTS,
ASSERTIONS OR ANY OTHER INFORMATION CONTAINED IN ANY OF THE DOCUMENTS DELIVERED TO
PURCHASER IN CONNECTION HEREWITH (INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE PROPERTY INFORMATION),
OR ANY MISREPRESENTATION OR FAILURE TO DISCLOSE INFORMATION RELATING TO ANY PROPERTY OR THE
DOCUMENTS DELIVERED TO PURCHASER IN CONNECTION HEREWITH (INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE
PROPERTY INFORMATION), (C) ANY DEFECT, INACCURACY OR INADEQUACY IN THE CONDITION OF TITLE TO
ANY PROPERTY, LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ANY PROPERTY, OR COVENANTS, RESTRICTIONS, ENCUMBRANCES
OR ENCROACHMENTS WHICH AFFECT ANY PROPERTY, OR (D) ANY ACTIONS, PLANS OR INTENTIONS OF
TENANTS, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY FAILURE TO RENEW OR EXTEND ANY LEASES.

9.2.2 PURCHASER HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT (i) PURCHASER MAY
HEREAFTER DISCOVER FACTS DIFFERENT FROM OR IN ADDITION TO THOSE NOW OR AS OF THE CLOSING
KNOWN OR BELIEVED TO BE TRUE REGARDING ANY PROPERTY AND/OR THE DOCUMENTS DELIVERED TO
PURCHASER IN CONNECTION HEREWITH, (ii) PURCHASER’S AGREEMENT TO RELEASE, ACQUIT AND
DISCHARGE SELLERS, THEIR AFFILIATES, PARTNERS, MEMBERS, DIRECT AND INDIRECT OWNERS, PRINCIPALS,
AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, ATTORNEYS, AND EMPLOYEES AS SET FORTH HEREIN SHALL REMAIN IN FULL
FORCE AND EFFECT, NOTWITHSTANDING THE EXISTENCE OR DISCOVERY OF ANY SUCH DIFFERENT OR
ADDITIONAL FACTS, AND (iii) EXCEPT WITH RESPECT TO EACH SELLER’S WARRANTIES, COVENANTS,
AGREEMENTS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND THE SELLERS’ CLOSING DOCUMENTS,
PURCHASER KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHTS, BENEFITS AND PRIVILEGES TO
THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMISSIBLE UNDER ANY FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL, OR OTHER LAWS WHICH DO OR
WOULD NEGATIVELY AFFECT VALIDITY OR ENFORCEABILITY OF ALL OR PART OF THE RELEASES SET FORTH
IN THIS AGREEMENT.
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9.2.3 PURCHASER HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT UPON THE
CONSUMMATION OF EACH APPLICABLE CLOSING, THE SELLER THAT OWNS EACH PROPERTY THAT IS THE
SUBJECT OF SUCH CLOSING SHALL BE DEEMED TO HAVE SATISFIED AND FULFILLED ALL OF SUCH SELLER’S
COVENANTS, INDEMNITIES, AND OBLIGATIONS CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND ANY DOCUMENTS
EXECUTED BY SUCH SELLER FOR THE BENEFIT OF PURCHASER IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH CLOSING (OTHER
THAN SUCH OBLIGATIONS WHICH ARE EXPRESSLY CONTEMPLATED HEREIN TO BE PERFORMED BY SUCH
SELLER FOLLOWING THE CLOSING), AND SUCH SELLER SHALL HAVE NO FURTHER LIABILITY TO PURCHASER
OR OTHERWISE WITH RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE TRANSFERS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY, OR ANY
SELLERS’ CLOSING DOCUMENT OR OTHER DOCUMENTS DELIVERED PURSUANT HERETO, EXCEPT TO THE
EXTENT OF ANY OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY SELLERS MAY HAVE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT FOR A BREACH OF
SELLERS’ REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES AND EXCEPT FOR SUCH OBLIGATIONS WHICH ARE
EXPRESSLY CONTEMPLATED HEREIN TO BE PERFORMED BY SUCH SELLER FOLLOWING THE CLOSING, IN
EACH CASE AS TO WHICH SELLERS’ LIABILITY, IF ANY, SHALL BE LIMITED, AS PROVIDED HEREIN. THE
PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION THE WAIVER AND RELEASE CONTAINED
HEREIN, SHALL BE DEEMED REAFFIRMED AT EACH APPLICABLE CLOSING AND SHALL SURVIVE SUCH
CLOSING (AND NOT BE MERGED THEREIN).

9.24 PURCHASER AGREES NEVER TO COMMENCE OR PROSECUTE, OR CONSPIRE OR
COLLUDE WITH OTHERS TO COMMENCE OR PROSECUTE, AGAINST ANY SELLER, ITS AFFILIATES, PARTNERS,
MEMBERS, DIRECT AND INDIRECT OWNERS, PRINCIPALS, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, ATTORNEYS AND
EMPLOYEES, ANY ACTION OR OTHER PROCEEDING BASED UPON ANY CLAIM COVERED BY THIS
RELEASE. THIS RELEASE SHALL BE DEEMED REAFFIRMED AT EACH CLOSING.

9.2.5 NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION
9.2 OR SECTIONS 8.6 OR 9.1, NOTHING IN THIS SECTION 9.2 OR IN SECTIONS 8.6 OR 9.1 SHALL (1) OPERATE TO
RELEASE ANY SELLER FROM ITS LIABILITIES AND OBLIGATIONS IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH SELLER’S
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN SECTION 8.1 OF THIS AGREEMENT (SUBJECT
TO THE LIMITATIONS ON SURVIVAL AND LIABILITY THEREON SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT) OR IN
SELLERS’ CLOSING DOCUMENTS, OR (2) BE CONSTRUED TO RELEASE ANY SELLER OR ITS AFFILIATES FROM
AN ACT OF COMMON LAW FRAUD, OR ANY ACT OR OMISSION FIRST MADE BY SUCH SELLER OR ITS
AFFILIATES FROM AND AFTER THE APPLICABLE CLOSING DATE, OR (3) BE CONSTRUED AS AN ASSUMPTION
BY PURCHASER OF ANY LIABILITY THAT ANY SELLER OR ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES MAY HAVE TO ANY THIRD
PARTY FOR A MATTER THE CAUSE OF WHICH OCCURRED PRIOR TO THE APPLICABLE CLOSING DATE,
INCLUDING ANY GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY.
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9.2.6 THE FOLLOWING APPLIES TO THE PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA:

WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, PURCHASER FURTHER AGREES AND
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT, IN GIVING THE FOREGOING WAIVERS AND RELEASES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION, THE RELEASE IN SECTION 8.6.1), IT HAS WITH ITS LEGAL COUNSEL CONSIDERED SECTION 1542 OF
THE CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE, WHICH PROVIDES THAT:

A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to
exist in his favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him must have
materially affected his settlement with the debtor

[Remainder of page intentionally blank.]
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AND, BEING AWARE THAT SAID SECTION 1542 MIGHT OTHERWISE APPLY TO AND LIMIT THE EFFECT OF
PURCHASER’S WAIVER AND RELEASE HEREIN, KNOWINGLY WAIVES THE BENEFITS OF SUCH STATUTE AND
INTENDS THAT IT NOT BE APPLICABLE HERE.

Sellers have given Purchaser material concessions regarding this transaction in exchange for Purchaser agreeing to the
provisions of this Section 9.2. Purchaser initialed this Section 9.2 to further indicate their awareness and acceptance of each and
every provision hereof.

INITIALS: PURCHASER
9.2.7 THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION 9.2 SHALL SURVIVE EACH
CLOSING.
10. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES.
10.1. Default by Purchaser. PURCHASER AND SELLERS HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE

THAT, IN THE EVENT THAT PURCHASER FAILS TO CONSUMMATE ANY CLOSING FOR ANY REASON OTHER
THAN A SELLER’S DEFAULT, A FAILURE OF A CONDITION PRECEDENT TO PURCHASER’S OBLIGATION TO
PROCEED TO CLOSING (THAT WAS NOT CAUSED BY PURCHASER OR ITS REPRESENTATIVES OR AFFILIATES), OR
THE PERMITTED TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT BY EITHER SELLER OR PURCHASER AS HEREIN
EXPRESSLY PROVIDED (A “PURCHASER DEFAULT”), THE APPLICABLE SELLER(S) WILL SUFFER DAMAGES IN
AN AMOUNT WHICH WILL, DUE TO THE SPECIAL NATURE OF THE TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED BY THIS
AGREEMENT AND THE SPECIAL NATURE OF THE NEGOTIATIONS WHICH PRECEDED THIS AGREEMENT, BE
IMPRACTICAL OR EXTREMELY DIFFICULT TO ASCERTAIN. IN ADDITION, PURCHASER WISHES TO HAVE A
LIMITATION PLACED UPON THE POTENTIAL LIABILITY OF PURCHASER TO SELLERS IN THE EVENT OF A
DEFAULT BY PURCHASER, AND WISHES TO INDUCE SELLERS TO WAIVE OTHER REMEDIES WHICH SELLERS
MAY HAVE IN THE EVENT OF A PURCHASER DEFAULT. PURCHASER AND SELLERS, AFTER DUE NEGOTIATION,
HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT THE AMOUNT OF THE EARNEST MONEY REPRESENTS A
REASONABLE ESTIMATE OF THE DAMAGES WHICH THE APPLICABLE SELLER(S) WILL SUSTAIN IN THE EVENT
OF SUCH PURCHASER DEFAULT. PURCHASER AND SELLERS HEREBY AGREE THAT IN THE EVENT OF A
PURCHASER DEFAULT, SELLERS MAY, AS SELLERS’ SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR PURCHASER’S
DEFAULT, TERMINATE THIS AGREEMENT BY WRITTEN NOTICE TO PURCHASER AND ESCROW AGENT PRIOR TO
THE CLOSING TO WHICH THE PURCHASER’S DEFAULT RELATES, RECEIVE THE EARNEST MONEY THEN BEING
HELD BY ESCROW AGENT AS LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AND ESCROW AGENT IMMEDIATELY SHALL DELIVER
SUCH EARNEST MONEY TO SAID SELLER(S). SUCH RETENTION OF THE EARNEST MONEY BY SELLERS IS
INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE LIQUIDATED DAMAGES TO SELLERS AND SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE
A FORFEITURE OR PENALTY.
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NOTHING IN THIS SECTION 10.1 SHALL (A) PREVENT OR PRECLUDE ANY RECOVERY OF ATTORNEYS’
FEES OR OTHER COSTS INCURRED BY SELLERS PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 4.3, 4.5 or 12.5 OR (B) IMPAIR OR LIMIT
THE EFFECTIVENESS OR ENFORCEABILITY OF THE INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS OF PURCHASER
CONTAINED IN SECTIONS 4.3, 7.5.4, 8.8.2, 11 AND 12.2 OR IN THE PURCHASER’S CLOSING DOCUMENTS.

10.2. Default by Sellers. In the event that any Seller fails to consummate any Closing of a Property for any reason
other than a Purchaser’s Default, a failure of a condition precedent to such Seller’s obligation to proceed to Closing (that was not
caused by a Seller or its representatives or affiliates), or the permitted termination of this Agreement by either Seller or Purchaser
as herein expressly provided, Purchaser’s sole and exclusive remedy shall be to elect one of the following: (a) to terminate this
Agreement by written notice thereof to Sellers provided no later than the date of the applicable Closing, in which event Purchaser
shall be entitled to the return by Escrow Agent to Purchaser of the Earnest Money then on deposit with Escrow Agent and Sellers
shall pay Purchaser the actual out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred by Purchaser in performing its due diligence investigations
of the Properties, in negotiating this Agreement, and in obtaining financing for Purchaser’s acquisition of the Properties (including
reasonable attorneys’ fees) and expenses incurred in connection with all of the foregoing, but not to exceed $500,000 in the
aggregate (collectively, “Pursuit Costs”); or (b) to bring a suit for specific performance for all Properties (except for any
Withdrawn Property or any Property previously acquired by Purchaser in a prior Closing), provided that any suit for specific
performance must be brought as to all Properties (except for any Withdrawn Property or any Property previously acquired by
Purchaser in a prior Closing) within forty-five (45) days of Sellers’ default, Purchaser’s waiving the right to bring suit for less than
all of the Properties or at any later date to the extent permitted by law. Purchaser hereby waives the right to seek to enforce any
other remedy against Sellers, including without limitation a suit for monetary damages and waives the right to file a lis pendens or
other similar notice against any Real Property except in connection with a suit for specific performance commenced pursuant to
this Section. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 10.2 to the contrary, if (i) Purchaser pursues an action for
specific performance against a Seller within forty-five (45) days of Sellers’ default, (ii) specific performance is not available as a
remedy because such Seller has willfully and deliberately transferred the Property to a third party, and (iii) Purchaser was not in
default under the terms of this Agreement, all conditions precedent to such Seller’s obligation to proceed to Closing were satisfied
and Sellers did not validly terminate this Agreement (and Sellers have not raised in good faith an allegations of a Purchaser default
or a failure of a condition precedent), then Purchaser shall have a right to seek actual damages (but not consequential or punitive
damages) in excess of Pursuit Costs.

11. BROKER’S COMMISSIONS.

11.1 Except for Eastdil Secured, L.L.C and Cushman & Wakefield U.S., Inc. (collectively, “Broker”), the Sellers,
on the one hand, and Purchaser, on the other hand, represent and warrant to the other that nether it (nor any of its affiliates) has had
any contact or dealing regarding the Properties, or any communication in connection with the subject matter of this transaction,
through any licensed real estate broker or other person who can claim a right to a commission or finder’s fee as a procuring cause
of the sale contemplated herein. Sellers shall pay the commission to Broker pursuant to a separate agreement between Sellers and
Broker only upon the occurrence of each Closing. If the transactions contemplated herein fail to close for any reason whatsoever,
then no commission shall be due to Broker.
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11.2 Sellers shall and do hereby indemnify Purchaser against, and agree to hold Purchaser harmless for and from
any claim, demand or suit for any brokerage commission, finder’s fee or similar charge in respect of the execution of this
Agreement or the transaction contemplated hereby based on any act by or agreement or contract with or on behalf of any Seller or
any of its affiliates or claim by Broker, and for all losses, obligations, costs, expenses and fees (including reasonable attorneys’
fees) incurred by Purchaser on account of or arising from any such claim, demand or suit.

11.3 Except for the commissions payable by Sellers to Broker pursuant to Section 11.1, Purchaser shall and does
hereby indemnify Sellers, their respective affiliates, partners, members, direct and indirect owners, principals, agents,
representatives, attorneys and employees against, and agrees to hold Sellers harmless for and from any claim, demand or suit for
any brokerage commission, finder’s fee or similar charge in respect of the execution of this Agreement or the transaction
contemplated hereby based on any agreement or contract with or on behalf of Purchaser or any of its affiliates, and for all losses,
obligations, costs, expenses and fees (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) incurred by Sellers on account of or arising from any
such claim, demand or suit.

114 The foregoing indemnities shall survive each applicable Closing or earlier termination of this Agreement.
12. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.
12.1. Notices. All written notices or demands of any kind which either party hereto may be required or may desire

to serve on the other in connection with this Agreement shall be served by personal service, recognized overnight courier service
(e.g., Federal Express or UPS) or electronic mail sent prior to 5:00 P.M. (Pacific time) on a business day (provided that in
connection with notice by electronic mail, notice shall also be provided pursuant to one of the other permitted methods for delivery
the following day). Any such notice or demand so to be served by recognized overnight courier service or electronic mail shall be
delivered with all applicable delivery charges thereon fully prepaid and, if the party so to be served by Sellers, addressed to Sellers
as follows:

c/o Saban Real Estate LLC

10100 Santa Monica Blvd., Suite 2600

Los Angeles, CA 90067

Attention: [ Jand [ ]

Telephone: [ ]

Email: [ ] and [ ]_(provided that any notices given to Sellers must simultaneously be sent to notices-
re@saban.com)
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with a copy thereof to:

Paul Hastings LLP

515 S. Flower Street, 25th Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90071
Attention: [ ]

Telephone: [ ]

Email: [ ]

and, if the party so to be served be Purchaser, addressed to Purchaser as follows:

Easterly Government Properties Inc.
2101 L St NW #650

Washington, DC 20037

Attention: [ ]

Telephone: [ ]

Email: [ ]

with a copy thereof to:

Stroock & Stroock & Lavan LLP
1875 K Street, Suite 800
Washington, DC 20036
Attention: [ ]

Telephone: [ ]

Email: [ ]

and, if the party to be served be Escrow Agent, addressed to Escrow Agent as follows:

Chicago Title Insurance Company

1901 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Suite 201
Washington, DC 20006

Attention: [ ]

Telephone: [ ]

Email: [ ]

Service of any such notice or demand so made by personal service, recognized overnight courier or electronic mail shall be deemed
complete upon (i) with respect to personal delivery, upon such delivery, (ii) with respect to deposit with overnight courier, upon one
(1) business day after such deposit, and (iii) with respect to email transmission, upon the date of the email transmission provided
that (x) sender does not receive a return email indicating that the email was undeliverable, and (y) the subject line indicates in
capital letters that such email is a “NOTICE” pursuant to this Agreement). Either party hereto may from time to time, by notice in
writing served upon the other as aforesaid, designate a different mailing address to which or a different person to whose attention
all such notices or demands are thereafter to be addressed. Each party agrees that the attorney for a party shall have the authority to
deliver notices on such party’s behalf to the other parties hereto.
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12.2. Assignment; Binding on Successors and Assigns

. Purchaser may (i) assign this Agreement as to all (but not less than all) of the Properties to any entity controlled by or
under common control with Purchaser; provided that (a) any such assignee must expressly assume all of the duties and obligations
of Purchaser hereunder with respect to the applicable Property, (b) Purchaser must deliver to Seller a copy of the executed
assignment/assumption agreement on or before that date which is five (5) business days prior to the applicable assignment, (c) no
such assignment shall serve to release Purchaser from its duties and obligations hereunder, and (d) Purchaser shall be solely
responsible for the payment of all realty transfer taxes due as a result of any such assignment. Purchaser shall also have the right to
designate one or more entities controlled by or under common control with Purchaser to take title to the applicable Properties (a
“Purchaser Designee”), and shall provide the applicable Seller with written notice of such designation, if any, no later than 5 days
prior to the applicable Closing, provided that Purchaser shall be solely responsible for the payment of all realty transfer taxes due as
a result of Purchaser’s designation of any Purchaser Designee to take title to the applicable Properties. Purchaser shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Seller Indemnified Parties from and against any and all Losses arising out of or resulting from
Purchaser’s failure to pay realty transfer tax in accordance with this Section 12.2. With respect to each Property located in the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Seller understands and agrees that (A) Purchaser is entering into this Agreement for the benefit of
a Purchaser Designee and that prior to the applicable Closing with respect to such Property Purchaser intends to assign to such
Purchaser Designee, for no additional consideration, all of Purchaser’s rights under this Agreement with respect to such Property in
accordance with the foregoing clause (i) above and (B) Purchaser has no intent on obtaining legal or equitable title to any such
Property located in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania . With respect to any Purchaser Designee, from and after each applicable
Closing, Purchaser shall have the right to enforce this Agreement on behalf of such Purchaser Designee as to the Property acquired
thereby. Except as expressly provided herein, Purchaser shall not otherwise assign, transfer or convey its rights or obligations
under this Agreement or with respect to the Properties without the prior written consent of Sellers, which consent Sellers may
withhold in their sole, absolute and subjective discretion. Any attempted assignment without the prior written consent of Sellers
where such consent is required hereunder shall be void and Purchaser shall be deemed in default hereunder. Any permitted
assignments shall not relieve the assigning party from its liability under this Agreement. Subject to the foregoing, and except as
provided to the contrary herein, the terms, covenants, conditions and warranties contained herein and the powers granted hereby
shall inure to the benefit of and bind all parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns or a Purchaser Designee, and all
subsequent owners of the Properties. The indemnity provisions of this Section 12.2 shall survive the Closing or any earlier
termination of this Agreement.

12.3. Work Product. At any applicable Seller’s or Sellers’ Agent’s written request, Purchaser shall promptly
deliver to Sellers’ Agent, without any right of Sellers or Sellers’ Agent to rely or representation or warranty as to their accuracy or
completeness, all reports, plans, studies, documents, written information and the like related to the physical condition of any
Property which has been generated by Purchaser’s (and/or any of its affiliates’) third party consultants (and not generated by
Purchaser in-house), whether prior to the Effective Date or during the pendency of this Agreement in connection with Purchaser’s
proposed acquisition, development, use or sale of any Property (as applicable to any particular Seller, the “Work Product”);
provided that only if any Seller or Sellers’ Agent requests in writing following the
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termination of this Agreement for any reason that Purchaser deliver to Sellers’ or Sellers’ Agent the Work Product, Seller or
Sellers’ Agent shall reimburse Purchaser for the actual cost paid by Purchaser (or its affiliate) for any such reports, plans, studies,
documents, and written information so requested by the applicable Seller or Sellers’ Agent as a condition to its receiving such
information (and, except for Sellers’ obligation to pay Purchaser’s Pursuit Costs to the extent required by Section 10.2,
notwithstanding anything else contained in this Agreement, Sellers shall otherwise have no liability or obligation to reimburse
Purchaser for any Work Product). For the avoidance of doubt, if Purchaser is entitled to be reimbursed for the cost of Work Product
pursuant to Section 10.2 and this Section 12.3, Sellers shall only be required to make a single payment in respect thereof. The
Work Product shall be fully paid for by Purchaser and shall not be subject to any lien, encumbrance or claim of any kind. In the
event of a termination of this Agreement for any reason, promptly following the written request of Sellers’ Agent, Purchaser shall
also either return or destroy (and certify to the destruction) all materials and information (including without limitation the Property
Information) given to it by Sellers or Sellers’ consultants during pendency of this Agreement, subject to and in accordance with
Section 4.6. The terms and provisions of this Section 12.3 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

12.4. Further Assurances. In addition to the acts and deeds recited herein and contemplated to be performed,
executed or delivered by Sellers or Purchaser, Sellers and Purchaser hereby agree to perform, execute and deliver, or cause to be
performed, executed and delivered, on the Closing Date or thereafter any and all such further acts, deeds and assurances as
Purchaser or Sellers, as the case may be, may reasonably require in order to consummate fully the transactions contemplated
hereunder.

12.5. Attorneys’ Fees. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein (including the limitations set
forth in Section 10.1 and Section 10.2) if any legal action or any arbitration or other proceeding is brought or if an attorney is
retained for the enforcement of this Agreement or any portion thereof, or because of any alleged dispute, breach, default or
misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from
the other reimbursement for the reasonable out-of-pocket fees of third party outside attorneys and other costs (including court costs
and witness fees) incurred by it, in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled; provided, however, that if either Sellers
or Purchaser is or becomes liable to the other for attorneys’ fees in connection with this Agreement (pursuant to this Section 12.5 or
otherwise), then such fees shall only include reasonable fees of outside counsel and shall specifically exclude any fees charged by
in house counsel. The term “prevailing party” means the party determined by the court, arbitrator or other competent decision
maker, as applicable, on a matter, to have prevailed on the matter and in whose favor a judgment or award is rendered.

12.6. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the schedules, annexes and exhibits attached hereto,
contains the entire agreement and understanding of the parties in respect to the subject matter hereof, and the parties intend for the
literal words of this Agreement to govern and for all prior negotiations, drafts, and other extrinsic communications, whether oral or
written, to have no significance or evidentiary effect. The parties further intend that neither this Agreement nor any of its
provisions may be changed, amended, discharged, waived or otherwise modified orally except only by an instrument in writing
duly executed by the party to be bound
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thereby. The parties hereto fully understand and acknowledge the importance of the foregoing sentence and are aware that the law
may permit subsequent oral modification of a contract notwithstanding contract language which requires that any such modification
be in writing; but Purchaser and Sellers fully and expressly intend that the foregoing requirements as to a writing be strictly adhered
to and strictly interpreted and enforced by any court which may be asked to decide the question. Each party hereto acknowledges
that this Agreement accurately reflects the agreements and understandings of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter
hereof and hereby waive any claim against the other party which such party may now have or may hereafter acquire to the effect
that the actual agreements and understandings of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof may not be accurately
set forth in this Agreement.

12.7. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware.

12.8. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in one or more counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. A facsimile, “pdf” and/or
electronic copy of a signed original counterpart of this Agreement shall be deemed sufficient to bind the parties, and shall be
deemed an original for all purposes.

12.9. Headings;_Construction. The various headings of this Agreement are included for convenience only and
shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement or any provision hereof. When the context and construction so
require, all words used in the singular herein shall be deemed to have been used in the plural and the masculine shall include the
feminine and the neuter and vice versa. The use in this Agreement of the term “including” and related terms such as “include” shall
in all cases mean “without limitation.” All references to “days” in this Agreement shall be construed to mean calendar days unless
otherwise expressly provided and all references to “business days” shall be construed to mean days other than Saturdays, Sundays
or legal holidays for national banks in the States of California and Washington, D.C.

12.10. Time of Essence. Sellers and Purchaser hereby acknowledge and agree that time is strictly of the essence
with respect to each and every term, condition, obligation and provision hereof and failure to perform timely any of the terms,
conditions, obligations or provisions hereof by either party shall constitute a default under this Agreement by the parties so failing
to perform.

12.11. Partial Validity; Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any
person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of
such term or provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be
affected thereby, and each such term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted
by law.

12.12. No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is for the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties hereto
and their respective permitted successors and assigns, and designees, and no third party is intended to, or shall have, any rights
hereunder.
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12.13. Joint Product of Parties. This Agreement is the result of arms-length negotiations between Sellers and
Purchaser and their respective attorneys. Accordingly, neither party shall be deemed to be the author of this Agreement and this
Agreement shall not be construed against either party.

12.14. Calculation of Time Periods. Unless otherwise specified, in computing any period of time described
herein, the day of the act or event after which the designated period of time begins to run is not to be included and the last day of
the period so computed is to be included at, unless such last day is not a business day, in which event the period shall run until the
end of the next business day. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, the last day of any period of time described herein shall
be deemed to end at 5:00 p.m., Pacific time.

12.15. Procedure for Indemnity. The following provisions govern actions for indemnity under this
Agreement. Promptly after receipt by an indemnitee of notice of any claim, such indemnitee will, if a claim in respect thereof is to
be made against the indemnitor, deliver to the indemnitor written notice thereof and the indemnitor shall have the right to
participate in and, if the indemnitor agrees in writing that it will be responsible for any costs, expenses, judgments, damages, and
losses incurred by the indemnitee with respect to such claim, to assume the defense thereof, with counsel mutually satisfactory to
the parties; provided, however, that an indemnitee shall have the right to retain its own counsel, with the fees and expenses to be
paid by the indemnitor, if the representation of such indemnitee by the counsel retained by the indemnitor would be inappropriate
due to actual materially differing interests between such indemnitee and any other party represented by such counsel in such
proceeding. The failure of indemnitee to deliver written notice to the indemnitor within a reasonable time after indemnitee receives
notice of any such claim shall relieve such indemnitor of any liability to the indemnitee under this indemnity if and to the extent
that such failure is prejudicial to its ability to defend such action, and the omission so to deliver written notice to the indemnitor
will not relieve it of any liability that it may have to any indemnitee other than under this indemnity. If an indemnitee settles a
claim without the prior written consent of the indemnitor, then the indemnitor shall be released from liability with respect to such
claim unless the indemnitor has unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed such consent. Notwithstanding anything in this
Agreement to the contrary, in no event shall any party be liable, by indemnity or otherwise for any consequential, exemplary,
punitive or other special damages, including lost profits.

12.16. Section 1031 Exchange. Sellers and Purchaser may each consummate the transaction contemplated by this
Agreement as part of one or more so-called like kind exchanges (each, an “Exchange”) pursuant to Section 1031 of the Code,
provided that: (a) no Closing shall be delayed (other than delays otherwise expressly contemplated by the terms of this Agreement)
or affected by reason of any Exchange nor shall the consummation or accomplishment of any Exchange be a condition precedent or
condition subsequent to the other party’s obligations under this Agreement, (b) Sellers and Purchaser shall effect each Exchange
through an assignment or partial assignment of its rights under this Agreement to a qualified intermediary, and (c) Sellers and
Purchaser shall not be required to take an assignment of the purchase agreement for the replacement property or be required to
acquire or hold title to any real property other than the Real Properties for purposes of consummating any Exchange. Sellers and
Purchaser shall not by this Agreement or acquiescence to any Exchange, (1) have its rights under this Agreement affected or
diminished in any manner, (2) be responsible for compliance with or be deemed to have warranted that any Exchange in fact
complies with Section 1031 of the Code, (3) incur any additional cost or expense or potential liability as a result of any Exchange
by the other party (other than de minimis costs), or (4) be obligated to execute any agreement to effectuate any Exchange
promulgated by the other party other than an acknowledgment and consent.
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12.17. No Personal Liability. Notwithstanding anything stated to the contrary herein, (i) each Seller’s liability
under this Agreement shall be limited to such Seller’s respective interest in the Property owned thereby and the proceeds thereof,
and (ii) except as expressly provided in the Joinder attached to this Agreement, under no circumstances shall any Seller’s direct or
indirect owners, members, partners, constituent partners, affiliates, any Seller’s asset manager, nor any Seller’s employees or agents
have any personal liability hereunder.

12.18. Waiver. Failure of any Seller, on the one hand, or Purchaser, on the other hand, to complain of any act or
omission on the part of the other party, no matter how long the same may continue, shall not be deemed to be a waiver by such
party to any of its rights hereunder, except to the extent otherwise set forth herein. No waiver by any party at any time, expressed or
implied, of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed a waiver or a breach of any other provision of this
Agreement or a consent to any subsequent breach of the same or any other provision. If any action by any party shall require the
consent or approval of another party, such consent or approval of such action on any one occasion shall not be deemed a consent to
or approval of said action on any subsequent occasion or a consent to or approval of any action on the same or any subsequent
occasion.

12.19. Several Liability. The liability of each Seller hereunder shall be several, but not joint and, accordingly,
each Seller shall be liable only with respect to breaches as to its respective Property and not the Properties owned by the other
Sellers.

12.20. Radon Gas. Radon is a naturally occurring radioactive gas that, when it has accumulated in a building in
sufficient quantities, may present health risks to persons who are exposed to it over a period of time. Additional information
regarding radon and radon testing may be obtained through your county health unit.

12.21. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, THE
PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

12.22. Post Closing Cooperation.

12.22.1 Purchaser has advised Sellers that Purchaser (or its affiliates) may be required to file, in
compliance with certain laws and regulations, audited financial statements, pro forma financial statements and other financial
information related to the Properties for up to three (3) years prior to Closing and any interim period during the fiscal year in which
each Closing occurs (collectively, the “Financial Information”). Following each Closing, Sellers agree to use their commercially
reasonable efforts to cooperate with Purchaser and its representatives and agents in preparation of the Financial Information to the
extent such information is in Sellers’ possession or control; provided, however, that Sellers shall not be required to incur any out-
of-pocket expenses or costs (other than de minimis expenses or costs) unless Purchaser reimburses Sellers for same. Sellers shall
maintain and allow access to, during normal business hours, upon reasonable prior written notice, such books and records of
Sellers, Sellers’ accountants and Sellers’ manager of the Properties reasonably related to the Properties. Further, so long as the
persons in charge of the management of the Properties at the time of
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Closing remain in the employ of Sellers or an affiliate of Sellers, Sellers will make such persons reasonably available for interview.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Sellers shall not be required to provide any information concerning (i) Sellers’ capital structure or
debt or ownership structure, (ii) Sellers’ financial analyses or projections, investment analyses, account summaries or other
documents prepared solely for Sellers’ internal purposes and not directly related to the operation of the Properties, (iii) Sellers’ tax
returns, or (iv) financial statements of Sellers or any affiliate of Sellers (other than Property-level financial statements).

12.22.2 The provisions of this Section 12.22 shall survive the Closing.

12.23. Escrow Provisions. Upon execution of this Agreement, the parties hereto shall deposit an executed
counterpart of this Agreement with the Escrow Agent, and this Agreement shall serve as escrow instructions to the Escrow Agent
as the escrow holder for consummation of the purchase and sale contemplated hereby. Seller and Purchaser agree to execute such
reasonable additional and supplementary escrow instructions as may be appropriate to enable the Escrow Agent to comply with the
terms of this Agreement; provided, however, that in the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and any
supplementary escrow instructions, the terms of this Agreement shall control. The Escrow Agent joins in the execution of this
Agreement to evidence its agreement to hold documents and funds in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement. Further, the following provisions shall control with respect to the rights, duties and liabilities of the Escrow Agent:

12.23.1 The Escrow Agent acts hereunder as a depository only and is not responsible or liable in any
manner whatsoever for the (i) sufficiency, correctness, genuineness or validity of any written instrument, notice or evidence of a
party’s receipt of any instruction or notice which is received by the Escrow Agent, or (ii) identity or authority of any person
executing such instruction notice or evidence.

12.23.2 The Escrow Agent shall have no responsibility hereunder except for the performance by it in
good faith of the acts to be performed by it hereunder, and the Escrow Agent shall have no liability except for its own willful
misconduct or gross negligence.

12.23.3 The Escrow Agent shall be reimbursed on an equal basis by Purchaser and Seller for any
reasonable expenses incurred by the Escrow Agent arising from a dispute with respect to the amount held in escrow, including the
cost of any legal expenses and court costs incurred by the Escrow Agent, should the Escrow Agent deem it necessary to retain an
attorney with respect to the disposition of the amount held in escrow.

12.23.4 In the event of a dispute between the parties hereto with respect to the disposition of the amount
held in escrow, the Escrow Agent shall be entitled, at its own discretion, to deliver such amount to an appropriate court of law
pending resolution of the dispute.
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12.24. STATE-SPECIFIC PROVISIONS.
12.24.1 As to the Dallas SSA Property:

12.24.1.1 It is the express intent of the parties hereto that the provisions of Sections 5.5 and
5.6 above govern the rights of the parties in the event of damage to or condemnation of the Dallas SSA Real Property, and that the
Texas Vendor and Purchaser Risk Act (Section 5.007 of the Texas Property Code) shall not apply to this Agreement.

12.24.1.2 Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7.5 of this Agreement, Purchaser
acknowledges that Dallas SSA Seller may have collected from tenants of the Dallas SSA Real Property, as part of Additional Rents,
funds for the purpose of paying Dallas SSA Seller’s Texas margin tax (the “Texas Margin Tax”) allocable to Dallas SSA Seller’s
ownership of the Dallas SSA Property during the calendar year of Closing. The parties agree that, because the Texas Margin Tax is
charged based on the revenue that an entity receives rather than based on a party’s ownership of the Dallas SSA Property, the
portion of Additional Rents allocable to the Texas Margin Tax will not be prorated like other Additional Rents. In addition, Dallas
SSA Seller will be entitled to retain all payments of Additional Rents allocable to the Texas Margin Tax that Dallas SSA Seller has
received prior to the Closing Date; provided, however, if Dallas SSA Seller has received any payment of Additional Rents allocable
to the Texas Margin Tax attributable for any period from and after the Closing Date, Purchaser shall receive a credit at Closing for
such amount. If Purchaser receives any payment of Additional Rents allocable to the Texas Margin Tax attributable for any period
prior to the Closing Date, such payment shall be handled in the same manner as other uncollected Rents received by Purchaser in
accordance with Section 7.5.1 hereof.

12.24.2 As to any Property located in South Carolina, South Carolina law requires the supervision
and/or involvement of attorneys licensed in South Carolina with respect to certain aspects of conveyances involving South Carolina
real property in order avoid the potential unauthorized practice of law. The applicable Seller, Purchaser, and Escrow Agent agree to
conduct the applicable Closing as to any real property located in South Carolina in such a manner as to comply with South Carolina
law in this regard.

12.24.3 As to the Pittsburgh FBI Property and the Pittsburgh ICE Property (as defined on Exhibit A):

12.24.3.1 solely to the extent required to be disclosed by law (and not intending to be a
representation or warranty of any Seller or cause any liability or responsibility for such/disclosure), the zoning classification of the
Pittsburgh FBI Property is Specially Planned - 5 and the zoning classification of the Pittsburgh ICE Property is General Industrial.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Sellers and Purchaser acknowledge and agree that Purchaser shall make its own determination of
the zoning classification of the Properties and Sellers shall have no liability under this Agreement or otherwise for any failure of the
foregoing statement to be accurate.

57



12.24.3.2 as a condition to closing in favor of Purchaser and Sellers, the Seller(s) of such
Properties shall perform a dye test as required by the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection and the Pittsburgh
Water and Sewer Authority to confirm that the stormwater runoff from such Properties is not improperly connected to the sanitary
sewer system.

12.24.3.3 if such Property constitutes fifty-one percent (51%) or more of the assets of a Seller
located in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, then at least ten (10) days prior to the Closing, Seller shall provide notice of the
sale to the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue and the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry (the “Bulk Sale
Notices”) in connection with the obtaining of Bulk Sale Clearance Certificates (the “PA BSC Certificates”) as required under 43
Pa. C.S.A. § 788.3, 69 Pa. C.S.A. §529, 72 Pa.C.S.A. §1403(a), 72 Pa.C.S.A. §7240 and 72 Pa.C.S.A. §7321.1, and their respective
amendments and any related or similar Pennsylvania law, decision, code, regulation or statute (collectively, “Bulk Sales
Laws”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties further acknowledge that, as a result of procedures for the administration of
applications for such PA BSC Certificates, and anticipated delays therein, Seller will not be able to obtain and deliver such PA BSC
Certificates as of the Closing Date. On or before Closing, Seller shall provide to Purchaser copies of the Bulk Sale Notices. Seller
agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain and deliver to Purchaser (with copies to Title Company) the PA BSC
Certificates following Closing. At Closing, (i) Seller shall provide Title Company an affidavit and indemnity sufficient for Title
Company to issue the Title Policy with respect to such Properties without taking exception for any bulk sales liability and (ii)
continue to diligently pursue the PA BSC Certificates and shall promptly deliver such PA BSC Certificates to Purchaser and Title
Company upon receipt thereof. Seller shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Purchaser or the applicable Purchaser Designee
from and against any and Losses, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by Purchaser or the applicable
Purchaser Designee as a result of Seller’s failure to comply with the obligations referenced in this Section 12.24.3.3. The
provisions of this Section 12.24.3.3 shall survive Closing until the delivery of the PA BSC Certificates.

12.24.4 AS TO ANY PROPERTY LOCATED IN OREGON: THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THIS
INSTRUMENT MAY NOT BE WITHIN A FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT PROTECTING STRUCTURES. THE PROPERTY
IS SUBJECT TO LAND USE LAWS AND REGULATIONS THAT, IN FARM OR FOREST ZONES, MAY NOT AUTHORIZE
CONSTRUCTION OR SITING OF A RESIDENCE AND THAT LIMIT LAWSUITS AGAINST FARMING OR FOREST
PRACTICES, AS DEFINED IN ORS 30.930, IN ALL ZONES. BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT,
THE PERSON TRANSFERRING FEE TITLE SHOULD INQUIRE ABOUT THE PERSON’S RIGHTS, IF ANY, UNDER ORS
195.300, 195.301 AND 195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2
TO 9 AND 17, CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2 TO 7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2010.
BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON ACQUIRING FEE TITLE TO THE PROPERTY
SHOULD CHECK WITH THE APPROPRIATE CITY OR COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT TO VERIFY THAT THE
UNIT OF LAND BEING TRANSFERRED IS A LAWFULLY ESTABLISHED LOT OR PARCEL, AS DEFINED IN ORS
92.010 OR 215.010, TO VERIFY THE APPROVED USES OF THE LOT OR PARCEL, TO VERIFY THE EXISTENCE OF
FIRE PROTECTION FOR STRUCTURES AND TO INQUIRE ABOUT THE RIGHTS OF NEIGHBORING PROPERTY
OWNERS, IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424,
OREGON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 TO 9 AND 17, CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2 TO 7,
CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2010.
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12.24.5 As to any Property located in the State of Maryland:

12.24.5.1 Notice to Purchaser concerning the Chesapeake and Atlantic Coastal Bays Critical
Area. Purchaser is advised that all or a portion of the Real Property may be located in the “critical area” of the Chesapeake and
Atlantic Coastal Bays, and that additional zoning, land use, and resource protection regulations apply in this area. The “critical
area” generally consists of all land and water areas within 1,000 feet beyond the landward boundaries of State or private wetlands,
the Chesapeake Bay, the Atlantic Coastal Bays, and all of their tidal tributaries. The “critical area” also includes the waters of and
lands under the Chesapeake Bay, the Atlantic Coastal Bays, and all of their tidal tributaries to the head of tide. For information as to
whether the Real Property is located within the critical area, Purchaser may contact the local department of planning and zoning,
which maintains maps showing the extent of the critical area in the jurisdiction. Allegany, Carroll, Frederick, Garrett, Howard,
Montgomery, and Washington counties do not include land located in the critical area.” (Md. Code Real Property Art. § 14-
117(d)).

12.24.6 With respect to any Property located in Louisiana, references to Earnest Money in this
Agreement shall be deemed to be references to a “deposit” or “deposits”.

12.24.7 With respect to any Property located in the State of California:

12.24.7.1 The Purchaser’s Closing Documents to be delivered under Section 7.1.2 shall
include a Kern County Preliminary Change of Ownership Report, completed in accordance with the Purchase Price allocation set
forth on Schedule 1.

12.24.7.2 The Sellers’ Closing Documents to be delivered under Section 7.1.1 shall include a
California Form RE-593 duly executed by the applicable Seller.

12.24.7.3 Section 25359.7 of the California Health and Safety Code requires owners of
nonresidential property who know or have reasonable cause to believe that a release of a Hazardous Material has come to be
located on or beneath Real Property described on Exhibit B-1 to provide written notice of that condition to a buyer of the real
property. The only releases of the Hazardous Materials actually known to the applicable Seller, without duty of inquiry or
investigation, are those specifically described as actual releases in the copies of the applicable Seller’s reports provided as Property
Information. Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that Purchaser has been provided with an adequate opportunity to, and
encouraged to, retain its own consultants and experts to conduct its own inspections and examinations of the Real Property
described on Exhibit B-1 and all matters relating to such Real Property. By its execution of this Agreement, Purchaser: (a)
acknowledges its receipt of the foregoing notice given pursuant to Section 25359.7 of the California Health and Safety Code and
that it is aware of the benefits conferred to Purchaser by Section 1542 of the California Civil Code and the risks it assumes by any
waiver of its benefits thereunder; and (b) after receiving advice of its legal counsel, waives any and all rights or remedies
whatsoever, express or implied, Purchaser may have against the applicable Seller and/or the applicable Seller’s representatives,
including remedies for actual damages arising out of or resulting from any unknown, unforeseen or unanticipated presence or
releases of Hazardous Materials from or on the Real Property, including, without limitation, any damages under Section 25359.7 of
the California Health and Safety Code. The provisions of this Section 12.24.7.2 shall not constitute an additional representation or
warranty under the terms of this Agreement and shall survive the applicable Closing and shall not be merged into any closing
documents (including, without limitation, any applicable Deed).
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12.24.7.4 Purchaser and the applicable Seller acknowledge that the applicable Seller may be
required under California law to disclose if the Real Property described on Exhibit B-1 lies within the following natural hazard
areas or zones: (a) a special flood hazard area designated by the Federal Emergency Management Agency; (b) an area of potential
flooding; (c) a very high fire hazard severity zone; (d) a wild land area that may contain substantial forest fire risks and hazards; (e)
an earthquake fault zone; or (f) a seismic hazard zone. Purchaser acknowledges that the applicable Seller will employ the services
of Title Company or another third party selected by the applicable Seller and reasonably acceptable to Purchaser (“Natural Hazard
Expert”) to examine the maps and other information specifically made available to the public by government agencies for the
purposes of enabling the applicable Seller to fulfill its disclosure obligations, and to report the result of the Natural Hazard Expert’s
examination to Purchaser and the applicable Seller in writing. The written reports prepared by the Natural Hazard Expert regarding
the results of the Natural Hazard Expert’s examination fully and completely discharges the applicable Sellers from its disclosure
obligations referred to herein, if and to the extent any such obligations exist, and, for the purpose of this Agreement, the provisions
of Civil Code Section 1103.4 regarding non-liability of the applicable Seller for errors or omissions not within the applicable
Seller’s personal knowledge shall be deemed to apply and the Natural Hazard Expert shall be deemed to be an expert, dealing with
matters within the scope of the Natural Hazard Expert’s expertise with respect to the examination and written report regarding the
natural hazards referred to above.

12.24.8 Notwithstanding anything in Section 7.5 of this Agreement to the contrary, as to any Properties
located in Illinois, Taxes shall be prorated on a cash basis as of the applicable Closing and not on an accrual basis.
12.24.9 As to any Property located in New York:
12.24.9.1 Section 5.5 above is an express agreement to the contrary of Section 5-1311 of the

New York General Obligations Law.

12.24.9.2 Sellers and Purchaser shall join on the Closing Date in completing, executing,
delivering and verifying the returns, affidavits and other documents required in connection with the taxes imposed under Article 31
of the Tax Law of the State of New York, New York City Real Property Transfer Tax Law (Admin. Code Article 21) and any other
tax payable by reason of delivery and/or recording of the documents to be delivered at the Closing (collectively, “Conveyance
Taxes”). The Conveyance Taxes shall be paid in accordance with Schedule 7.3. Sellers shall deliver to the Escrow Agent at the
Closing certified check(s), payable to the order of the appropriate tax collecting agency or official, in the amount of all Conveyance
Taxes (or shall otherwise cause the Escrow Agent to pay Conveyance Taxes at Closing after taking into account Closing
prorations). The provisions of this Section 12.24.9.2 shall survive the Closing.

12.24.9.3 The Sellers’ Closing Documents to be delivered under Section 7.1.1 shall include
(a) a New York State Real Estate Transfer Tax Return and Credit Line Mortgage Certificate with respect to the New York State
Real Estate Transfer Tax (the “Form TP-584"), and (b) a New York State Real Property Transfer Report Form RP-5217 NYC (the
“RP-52177).
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12.24.9.4 The Purchaser’ Closing Documents to be delivered under Section 7.1.2 shall include
the following (a) the Form TP-584, and (b) the RP-5217.

12.24.9.5 With respect to any Property located in the State of Illinois, the applicable Seller
shall deliver to Purchaser at Closing written confirmation from the Illinois Department of Revenue stating that the sale of such
Property to Purchaser is not subject to, and does not subject Purchaser to, liability under, 35 ILCS 5/902(d) of the Illinois Income
Tax Act (the “IL BSC Certificate”). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the failure to deliver the IL. BSC
Certificate shall neither be a default by any Seller nor a Purchaser’s condition to Closing and, in the event that the applicable Seller
fails to deliver to Purchaser at Closing the IL BSC Certificate, then the applicable Seller shall indemnify Purchaser, and hold
Purchaser harmless, from and against any claim, loss or liability which may be asserted by the Illinois Department of Revenue
against Purchaser as a result of the applicable Seller’s not having delivered the IL. BSC Certificate and Seller having liability to the
llinois Department of Revenue as of the date of the Closing. The provisions of this Section 12.24.9.5 shall survive the Closing
until the delivery of the IL BSC Certificate.

12.24.10 The Deed for any Property located in West Virginia shall have appended thereto a completed
State Tax Commissioner of West Virginia Sales Listing Form. In addition, in connection with the Closing for the Property located
in West Virginia, pursuant to the Land Use Covenants and Notice of Restriction applicable thereto, the applicable Seller shall
provide the required notice to the West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection of the transfer of the Property to
Purchaser.

[remainder of page intentionally blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.
"SELLERS"

ACQUEST GOVERNMENT LEASES, LLC, a New York limited liability

company

By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Signatory

CHARLESTON SSA OC, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Signatory

CHARLESTON FEDERAL COURTHOUSE, LLC, a South Carolina limited
liability company

By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Signatory

DALLAS SSA, L.P,, a Texas limited partnership

By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Signatory

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON NEXT PAGE]
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CLARKSBURG GSA, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company

By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Signatory

DEA BAKERSFIELD, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company

By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Signatory

GPT PORTLAND, OR 1201 LLOYD, LLC, an Oregon limited liability

company
By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Signatory

GSA DES PLAINES LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Signatory

LOUDOUN BUILDING, L.L.C., a Virginia limited liability company

By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Signatory

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON NEXT PAGE]
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PARKERSBURG BPD OC, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Signatory

PITTSBURGH FBI-GPT BUSINESS TRUST, a Pennsylvania business trust

By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Signatory

PITTSBURGH USCIS OC, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Signatory

THE RIVERDALE FDA LLC, a Virginia limited liability company

By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Signatory

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON NEXT PAGE]
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VA VENTURE BATON ROUGE, LLC, an Indiana limited liability company

By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Signatory

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON NEXT PAGE]
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"PURCHASER"

EASTERLY GOVERNMENT PROPERTIES LP,
a Delaware limited partnership

By: Easterly Government Properties, Inc.,
a Maryland corporation

By: /s/ William C. Trimble, TIT
Name: William C. Trimble, IIT
Title: Chief Executive Officer and President

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON NEXT PAGE]
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AGREED TO THIS 18th DAY OF JUNE, 2018, AS TO PROVISIONS RELATING TO ESCROW AGENT, AND
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF FULLY-EXECUTED COUNTERPART OF THIS AGREEMENT:

CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY

By: /s/ Debra Bond
Name: Debra Bond
Title: Legal Assistant

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON NEXT PAGE]
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JOINDER BY GUARANTOR

SGSA I LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, joins the execution of this Agreement and agrees that from and after each
Closing, it is jointly and severally liable with each Seller that owned a Property that was the subject of such Closing to Purchaser
for a breach by such Seller of its representations and warranties set forth in Section 8.1 or a breach by such Seller of its post-closing
obligations and covenants set forth in this Agreement subject in all events to the Cap, Floor and Survival Period set forth in Section
8.4.1 other than as set forth in Section 8.4.2. For the avoidance of doubt, except as set forth in Section 8.4.2, in no event shall
SGSA I LLC’s liability under this Agreement, the Sellers’ Closing Documents or the transactions contemplated therein exceed
$5,375,000.00 in the aggregate and in no event shall SGSA I LLC be liable under Section 8.4.1 for any liability satisfied by any
Seller or any third party (other than Purchaser, a Purchaser’s Designee or an affiliate thereof).

SGSA ILLC, a Delaware limited liability company

By: /s/ Adam Chesnoff
Name: Adam Chesnoff
Title: Authorized Representative
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EXHIBIT F
FORM OF ASSIGNMENT OF LEASES AND CONTRACTS AND BILL OF SALE

This Assignment of Leases and Contracts and Bill of Sale (this "Assignment") is executed and delivered as of the

day of , 2018 (the "Closing Date"), pursuant to that certain Purchase and Sale Agreement and Escrow Instructions
("Agreement") dated , 2018, by and between a ("Seller"), and certain other
sellers, and a ("Contract Purchaser"), coverlng the real property described in Exhibit A

attached hereto ("Property")

1. Sale of Personalty. For good and valuable consideration, Seller hereby sells, transfers, sets over and conveys
to ("Purchaser") the following (the "Personal Property"):
(a) Tangible Personalty. All of Seller’s right, title and interest in and to all furniture, fixtures,

equipment, and other tangible personal property listed on Exhibit B attached hereto, or otherwise located in or on the Property, in
each case to the extent owned by such Seller, excluding the Excluded Property (as defined in the Agreement); and

(b) Intangible Personalty. All of Seller’s right, title and interest in and to any intangible property used
in connection with the foregoing, including without limitation all contract rights, warranties, guaranties, licenses, permits,
entitlements, governmental approvals and certificates of occupancy which benefit such Property, excluding the Excluded Property
(as defined in the Agreement).

3. Assignment of I.eases and Contracts. For good and valuable consideration, Seller hereby assigns, transfers,
sets over and conveys to Purchaser, and Purchaser hereby accepts the following:

(a) Leases. All of the Seller's interest in and to all leases and guaranties relating to the Property,
including without limitation the tenant leases listed in Exhibit B attached hereto ("Leases");

(b) Contracts. Seller's right, title and interest in and to the contracts described in Exhibit C attached
hereto (the "Contracts").

4. Assumption. Purchaser hereby assumes the obligations of Seller applicable to the period from and after the
Closing Date under (a) the Leases listed on Exhibit B attached hereto and (b) the Contracts listed on Exhibit C attached
hereto. Purchaser shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Seller from and against any liability, damages, causes of
action, expenses, and reasonable attorneys' fees arising as a result of or with respect to the Leases and the Contracts that
are attributable to the period from and after the Closing Date. Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 8.4 of the
Agreement, Seller shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Purchaser from and against any liability, damages, causes
of action, expenses, and reasonable attorneys' fees arising as a result of or with respect to the Leases or the Contracts that
are attributable to the period prior to the Closing Date.
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Agreement Applies. Except as may otherwise be provided in the Agreement, the Contracts and Leases are
being assigned and transferred, and the Personal Property is being transferred, to Purchaser on an "as is," and "where is"
basis, with all faults, and without any representation or warranty, all of which Seller hereby disclaims, all as more
particularly set forth in the Agreement, which disclaimers shall be, and hereby are, incorporated herein by reference.

Counterparts. This Assignment may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument, with the same effect as if all
parties had signed the same signature page.

Attorneys' Fees. In any action between the parties to enforce any of the terms or provisions of this
Assignment, the prevailing party in the action shall be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party, in addition to
damages, injunctive relief or other relief, and its reasonable costs and expenses, including without limitation costs and
reasonable attorneys' fees (including on appeal).

Merger. This Assignment and the Agreement contain the entire understanding between the parties relating to
their subject matter. All prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings, whether oral or written, are
superseded by this Assignment and the Agreement. This Assignment may only be modified in writing executed by both
Purchaser and Seller. Nothing contained in this Assignment is intended to terminate or affect the validity of any of the
representations or warranties contained in the Agreement.

Miscellaneous. This Assignment shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their
heirs, executors, administrators, successor-in-interest and assigns. If any term or provision of this Assignment shall be
held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Assignment shall not be affected. This Assignment shall be
construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State in which the Property is located. Nothing in this
Assignment shall impair, limit or lessen any of the rights of the parties with respect to the provisions of the Agreement
which were intended to survive the Closing Date. Nothing in this Assignment, express or implied, is intended to confer
upon any person or entity, other than the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns, any rights or
remedies. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, THE PARTIES HEREBY
WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR
RELATING TO THIS ASSIGNMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this instrument to be executed as of the date written above.

"SELLER"

By:

Name:
Title:

"PURCHASER"

By:

Name:
Title:

TO BE ATTACHED:

EXHIBIT A - LEGAL DESCRIPTION
EXHIBIT B- LIST OF LEASES
EXHIBIT C- LIST OF CONTRACT
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EXHIBIT G
FORM OF FIRPTA CERTIFICATE
To inform a (the "Transferee")m that withholding of tax under Section 1445 of

the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ("Code") will not be required by ,a (the
"Transferor"), the undersigned hereby certifies the following on behalf of the Transferor:

1. The Transferor is not a foreign corporation, foreign partnership, foreign trust, foreign estate or foreign person
(as those terms are defined in the Code and the Income Tax Regulations promulgated thereunder);

2. The Transferor's U.S. employer or tax (social security) identification number is
3. The address of Seller is [®].
4, Seller is not a disregarded entity as defined in §1.1445-2(b)(2)(iii) of the Income Tax Regulations.

The Transferor understands that this Certification may be disclosed to the Internal Revenue Service by the Transferee and
that any false statement contained herein could be punished by fine, imprisonment, or both.

Under penalty of perjury I declare that I have examined this Certification and to the best of my knowledge and belief it is
true, correct and complete, and I further declare that I have authority to sign this document on behalf of the Transferor.

, d

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT H
FORM OF NOVATION AGREEMENT

NOVATION AGREEMENT

a (the “Transferor”), a

(the “Transferee), and the United States of America (“Government”) enter into this Novation

Agreement (this “Agreement”) as of [ ].

The parties agree to the following facts:

1.

6.

7.

The Government has entered into that certain Lease for Real Property classified as Lease No. [ ] with the
Transferor. The term “the Lease,” as used in this Agreement, means the Lease, including all modifications, made
between the Government and the Transferor before the effective date of this Agreement (whether or not performance and
payment have been completed and releases executed if the Government or the Transferor has any remaining rights,
duties, or obligations under these contracts and purchase orders). Included in the term “the Lease” is also all
modifications made under the terms and conditions of Lease between the Government and the Transferee, on or after the
effective date of this Agreement.

As of [], the Transferor has transferred to the Transferee the entire portion of the assets involved in performing the Lease
by virtue of a [Deed and Assignment of Leases] between the Transferor and the Transferee, a copy of which is attached
hereto as Exhibit A.

The Transferee has acquired the entire portion of the assets involved in performing the Lease by virtue of the above
transfer.

From and after [ ], the Transferee has assumed all obligations and liabilities of the Transferor under the Lease
by virtue of the above transfer.

The Transferee is in a position to fully perform all obligations that may exist under the Lease.
It is consistent with the Government’s interest to recognize the Transferee as the successor party to the Lease.

Evidence of the above transfer has been filed with the Government.

In consideration of these facts, the parties agree that by this Agreement:
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The Transferor confirms the transfer to the Transferee, and waives any claims and rights against the Government that it
now has or may have in the future in connection with the Lease.

From and after [ ], the Transferee agrees to be bound by and to perform each contract in accordance with the
conditions contained in the Lease. The Transferee also assumes all obligations and liabilities of, and all claims against,
the Transferor under the Lease as if the Transferee were the original party to the Lease.

The Transferee ratifies all previous actions taken by the Transferor with respect to the Lease, with the same force and
effect as if the action had been taken by the Transferee.

The Government recognizes the Transferee as the Transferor’s successor in interest in and to the Lease. The Transferee
by this Agreement becomes entitled to all rights, titles, and interests of the Transferor in and to the Lease as if the
Transferee were the original party to the Lease. Following the effective date of this Agreement, the term “Contractor or
Lessor” as used in the Lease, shall refer to the Transferee.

Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, nothing in it shall be construed as a waiver of any rights of the
Government against the Transferor.

All payments and reimbursements previously made by the Government to the Transferor, and all other previous actions
taken by the Government under the Lease, shall be considered to have discharged those parts of the Government’s
obligations under the Lease. All payments and reimbursements made by the Government after the date of this Agreement
in the name of or to the Transferor shall have the same force and effect as if made to the Transferee, and shall constitute a
complete discharge of the Government’s obligations under the Lease, to the extent of the amounts paid or reimbursed.

The Transferor and the Transferee agree that the Government is not obligated to pay or reimburse either of them for, or
otherwise give effect to, any costs, taxes, or other expenses, or any related increases, directly or indirectly arising out of
or resulting from the transfer or this Agreement, other than those that the Government in the absence of this transfer or
Agreement would have been obligated to pay or reimburse under the terms of the Lease.

The Lease shall remain in full force and effect, except as modified by this Agreement.

As between the Transferor and Transferee only, their respective obligations and liabilities one to the other shall continue
to be as set forth in private sector documents, executed between Transferor and Transferee.

[Signatures are set forth on the following page]

Exhibit H
Page 2



Each party has executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

TRANSFEROR:

,a
By:
Name: [ ]
Its: [ ]
TRANSFEREE:

,a
By:
Name: [ ]
Its: [ 1

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

By:

Name: [ 1

Its: [ ]
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Page 3



EXHIBIT 1
FORM OF OWNER’S AFFIDAVIT

OWNER/SELLER TITLE AFFIDAVIT

State of )

) to wit:

County of )

[ 1, an individual (“Affiant”), being duly sworn according to law, deposes and says:

1. I am of (the "Owner") which is the owner of all that certain property (the "Property") described in Chicago
Title Insurance Company's (the “Company”) Commitment for Title Insurance No. (the "Commitment").

2. In my capacity as such, I am personally familiar with the ownership of the Property.

3. To my actual knowledge, Owner's enjoyment of the Property has been peaceful and undisturbed and the title to the Property
has never been disputed or questioned, nor do I know of any facts (other than those set forth in the Commitment) by reason of
which title to, or possession of the Property might be disputed, or by reason of which any claim to the Property or any portion
thereof might be asserted adversely to such title or possession.

4. To my actual knowledge, a complete list of all leases affecting the Property is attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part
hereof.

5. To my actual knowledge, at no time during the past 36 months has there been any proceeding in bankruptcy instituted by or

against the Owner (and if a partnership, against the general partner(s) thereof), nor has the owner ever made an assignment
for the benefit of creditors.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

To my actual knowledge, there exists no action or proceeding relating to the Property in any State or Federal court in the
United States nor do I know of any State or Federal judgment or any Federal lien of any kind or nature whatever which now
constitutes a lien or charge upon the Property.

To my actual knowledge, there are no unrecorded documents affecting title to the Property.

To my actual knowledge, Owner has not received notice of any taxes and/or special assessments, for the year 2018 or any
subsequent years, affecting the Property other than those shown on the Commitment.

Other than those shown on the Commitment, to my actual knowledge, there are no unpaid charges for taxes, water and/or
sewer services, or other utility charges, or unpaid special assessments, for the year 2018 or any subsequent years, for items
such as improvements for sidewalks, curbs, gutters, sewers, or storm water assessments not shown as existing liens in the
public records.

To my actual knowledge, there are no unpaid bills or claim for labor or services performed or materials furnished or delivered
to the Property and requested by Owner during the last 150 days for alterations, repair, work, or new construction on the
Property not otherwise done in the ordinary course of business, except: (if none, state "NONE") [NTD: TO BE REVISED
FOR EACH SPECIFIC PROPERTY].

To my actual knowledge, Owner has not executed or entered into any contract for the making of repairs or improvements on
the Property entered into in the last 150 days, other than routine maintenance and other repairs made in the ordinary course of
business, except as follows: (if none, state "NONE") [NTD: TO BE REVISED FOR EACH SPECIFIC PROPERTY].

To my actual knowledge, except as set forth in that certain Purchase Agreement dated as of [--], by and between Owner,
Easterly Government Properties, L.P, and the other parties thereto (as may be amended, modified and restated from time to
time), Owner has not executed any instruments or taken any actions which would create an interest in or affect the title to the
Property or any portion thereof which remain unrecorded as of the date hereof, and will not execute any such instruments or
take any such actions prior to recording of the instrument to be insured pursuant to the Commitment. [NTD: ANY
APPLICABLE ROFOs OR ROFRs (AND THE APPLICABLE WAIVERS) TO BE REFERENCED HERE]

To my actual knowledge there are no present material violations on the Property of any enforceable covenants, conditions or
restrictions set forth on the Commitment.

This affidavit is given to induce the Company to issue the Title Policy (as defined below) to (“Purchaser”) with full

knowledge that it will be relying upon the accuracy of same.
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The Owner hereby requests that the Company issue its Policy of Title Insurance upon the Property without General Exceptions to
Purchaser shown in the Commitment (the “Title Policy”). Owner does hereby agree to indemnify and hold the Company harmless of
and from all actual, out-of-pocket loss, cost, damage and expense of every kind, including reasonable out of pocket attorneys' fees,
which the Company shall sustain or become liable for under the Title Policy on account of reliance on the express statements made by
Affiant herein.

In consideration of the Company issuing the Title Policy effective as of the date of hereof without making exception therein of matters
which may arise between the date hereof and the date documents creating the interest being insured pursuant to the Title Policy (the
“Closing Instrument”) have been filed for record and which matters may constitute an encumbrance on or affect the title, Owner hereby
agrees to promptly defend, remove, bond or otherwise dispose of any encumbrance, lien or objectionable matter which may arise or be
filed, as the case may be, against the Property as a result of any affirmative act of Owner during the period of time between the date
hereof and the date of recording of the Closing Instrument (not to exceed three (3) business days), and to hold the Company harmless of
and from all actual, out-of-pocket loss, cost, damage and expense of every kind, including reasonable out of pocket attorneys' fees,
which the Company shall sustain or become liable for under the Title Policy which may arise out of Owner’s failure to so remove, bond
or otherwise dispose of any such liens, encumbrances or objectionable matters that result from affirmative acts of Owner.

Company agrees that it does not have, will not have, and hereby waives any claims and causes of action it has or may have against
Affiant, any officer, director, employee, agent, trustee, shareholder, partner, member, manager, principal, parent, subsidiary or other
affiliate of Owner arising out of or in connection with this Owner/Seller Title Affidavit and will look solely to Owner.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this

day of

My Commission expires:

, 20
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EXHIBIT A

LEASES
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EXHIBIT J
TENANT INDUCEMENT COSTS

Pittsburgh FBI-GPT Business Trust

1. Tenant Improvement Allowance
a. Tenant Improvement Allowance of $10.97/ABOA SF for a total amount of $1,000,650.49.

2. Gates & Barriers Allowance
a. Lessor will contribute up to $200,000.00 towards the replacement cost of all parking gates and
barriers.

3. Carpet
a.  Seller shall contribute $300,000.00 towards the replacement cost of carpet.
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EXHIBIT K-1

FORM OF STATEMENT OF LEASE

[ADDRESS OF LESSOR]

Re: -GS dated

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This statement of lease is issued subject to the conditions stated in paragraph [_] of GSA Form 3517, General Clauses, of the
Lease. The undersigned, a Contracting Officer of the United States of America, hereby confirms and represents, to the best of
his/her knowledge and belief, the following as of the above date:

1. Lease No. between the United States of America, by and through its agent, the
(“Lessee”) and , a , (“Lessor”) dated , as amended by that
certain [list of amendments attached] , (as amended, the “Lease”), for a total of approximately

net rentable square feet and parking spaces. The term of the Lease is for years firm.

2. Neither the Lessee nor the Lessor is in default under the performance of any of the obligations, terms, covenants or
conditions of the Lease and neither party has issued any notice of default under the Lease that has not been cured as of
the date hereof.

3. The current annual rent is $ , payable monthly in arrears at a rate of $
4. No advance payments under the Lease have been or will be paid.
5. The Lease is in full force and effect, and has not been modified, supplemented, canceled or amended except as set forth
therein.
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6. The balance of any “tenant improvement allowance” remaining due and unpaid under the Lease is $

7. An inspection of the Premises has not been conducted for the purpose of this statement of lease. This statement of lease
shall not be construed as a waiver of any of the Lessee’s rights as a sovereign, or any rights, benefits or interests that the
Lessee has under the terms and provisions of the Lease.

The undersigned is authorized to execute this statement of lease on behalf of the Lessee.

Sincerely,

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT K-2

FORM OF ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE

Pursuant to that certain lease (the “Lease”) dated [ ] as amended by [LIST ANY AMENDMENTS], the undersigned
(“Tenant”) has leased from [ ] (“Landlord”), the leased premises designated as [Suite/Floor] [ ]
consisting of [ ] rentable square feet (the “Leased Premises”) at [ ] (the “Building”), as more

particularly defined and described in the Lease. Landlord, as owner of the Building of which the Leased Premises is a part, intends
to sell the Building to [ 1 (“Purchaser”).

Tenant hereby certifies as follows:

1. The Lease has not been amended, modified or supplemented (except as set forth above), is in full force and
effect, and represents the entire agreement between Landlord and Tenant as to Tenant’s interest in the Building and the Leased
Premises.

2. The Lease is [ ] or is not [ ] guaranteed. If guaranteed, the Lease has been guaranteed by [INSERT
NAME AND ADDRESS OF GUARANTOR] and such guaranty is in full force and effect.

3. The commencement date for the Lease occurred on , and the scheduled expiration date for the
Lease is

4. The fixed annual rent currently payable under the Lease is $ per annum ($ per
month).

5. All rents and additional rents payable by Tenant under the Lease has been paid through , 2018,
except as follows: .

6. No rents, additional rents, or other similar sums or charges have been paid more than one (1) month in advance.

7. Landlord holds a security deposit pursuant to the Lease in the amount of $ . No portion of the

security deposit has been applied by Landlord which has not been restored by Tenant.

8. Tenant’s current share of common expenses is: %.
9. Tenant has not sublet or assigned any portion of the Leased Premises except as
follows:
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10. Under the Lease [or insert Name of Parking Agreement, between Tenant and Landlord], Tenant has the right to
use parking spaces, at a cost of $ per parking space per month, for a total of $ per month.

11. To Tenant’s knowledge, Tenant is not in default under the Lease and has not, at any time prior to the date
hereof, received written notice from Landlord stating that Tenant is in default under the Lease which default remains uncured,
except as follows:

12. Tenant has not asserted any claim that Landlord is in default of any material obligations under the Lease, and
to Tenant’s knowledge, Landlord is not in default under the Lease.

13. Tenant has no offsets, defenses, claims, or counterclaims to the payment of rent or other sums, or the
performance of any of Tenant’s other obligations, under the Lease.

14. All payments due to Tenant under the Lease as a landlord contribution, allowance or otherwise towards
Tenant’s work have been paid in full except as follows:

15. Tenant has no option to extend the term of the Lease except as expressly set forth in the Lease.

16. Tenant has none of the following rights except as expressly set forth in the Lease: right to expand the Leased
Premises, right to relocate the Leased Premises, right of first refusal (offer) with respect to other space in the Building, or option or
right of first refusal to purchase the Building.

17. There are no pending actions, voluntary or involuntary, against Tenant under federal or state bankruptcy or
insolvency laws.

18. This certificate has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Tenant.

Tenant acknowledges and agrees that this certificate may be relied upon by, and shall inure to the benefit of, Landlord,
Purchaser, any other purchaser of the Building, any lenders to Purchaser or any other purchaser of the Building, and/or the
successors and/or assigns of any of the foregoing.

Dated:

[TENANT]

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT L-1

FORM OF DEED FOR CALIFORNIA PROPERTIES
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RECORDING REQUESTED BY and
WHEN RECORDED RETURN IT
AND ALL TAX STATEMENTS TO:

APN: SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE

GRANT DEED

The undersigned grantor declares under penalty of perjury that the following is true and correct:

DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX: $ , City Transfer Tax is [ ]; Survey Monument Fee is [ ]
X) computed on full value of property conveyed, or
() computed on full value less value of liens and encumbrances remaining at time of sale.
() Unincorporated area: or (X) City of Bakersfield.
() There is no Documentary Transfer Tax due (state reason and give Code § or Ordinance
Number): .
FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
a , hereby grants unto

certain real property situated in the State of California, County of Kern, more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto
and incorporated herein by this reference, and subject specifically to all matters of record as of the date hereof.

[signature on following page]
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GRANTOR:

By:

Name

Title
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT

/A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed
the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA } ss:
ICOUNTY OF

On before me,

(insert name and title of the officer)

Ipersonally appeared

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence
|to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed

the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the
entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.
WITNESS my hand and official seal.
Signature (Seal)
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EXHIBIT L-2

FORM OF DEED FOR ILLINOIS PROPERTIES

[Final deed to have a 3x5 inch margin]

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED
(Illinois)

After Recording, Please Return To:

[ ]
[
[ ]
ATTN: [ ]

Send Subsequent Tax Bills To:

[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
ATTN: [ ]

Above Space for Recorder’s Use Only
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THE GRANTOR, [ l,al ] (“Grantor”), for and in consideration of TEN AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($10.00)
and other good and valuable consideration in hand paid, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, and pursuant to the authority
of the undersigned,

CONVEYS AND WARRANTS to [ ], al ] (“Grantee”), the following described land together with all
appurtenances thereto and all improvements situated thereon (the “Real Estate”) situated in the County of [ ] in the State
of Illinois, to wit:

See Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof for legal description,

Subject to those exceptions set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part hereof.

Permanent Real Estate Index Numbers: [ ]

Address of Real Estate: [ ]

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Real Estate to Grantee, its successors and assigns, forever. Grantor hereby agrees to warrant and
defend the Property, the whole or any part thereof, to Grantee, its successors and assigns, against all claims and demands
whatsoever, brought by any person or persons lawfully claiming, by, through or under Grantor but not otherwise, subject, however,
to those matters described in Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part hereof.

[Signature Pages Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has executed the foregoing instrument as of the ___ day of
, 2018.

GRANTOR:

[ lal 1

By:Name:Title:

Stateof ___ )
sS.
County of )

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public for and for in said County, in the State aforesaid, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY that , personally known to me to be a
of , a , appeared before me this
day in person, and acknowledged that he signed, sealed and delivered the said instrument as his free and
voluntary act and as the free and voluntary act of said entity, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

Given under my hand and official seal, this day of ,2018.
My Commission expires:
Notary Public
This instrument was prepared by: [ ]
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EXHIBIT A TO DEED

Legal Description
[To be inserted]
P.I.N.: [To be inserted]
Address: [To be inserted]
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EXHIBIT B TO DEED

Permitted Exceptions

1. TAXES FOR THE [SECOND INSTALLMENT OF YEAR 2017] / [YEAR 2018] AND SUBSEQUENT YEARS, A
LIEN NOT YET DUE AND PAYABLE.

2. [To be inserted]
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EXHIBIT L-3

FORM OF DEED FOR LOUISIANA PROPERTY

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
ACT OF CASH SALE
STATE OF
BY
PARISH/COUNTY OF
IN FAVOR OF
BE IT KNOWN, that effective on this day of , (the “Effective Date™);

BEFORE US, the undersigned Notaries Public, duly commissioned and qualified, in and for the
Counties/Parishes and States described below, and in the presence of the undersigned competent witnesses:

PERSONALLY CAME AND APPEARED:

, a (Federal Taxpayer I.D. No. XX-XXX ) with its
mailing address at ,
appearing herein by and through , duly authorized to appear herein on its behalf
by virtue of a [Resolution of the Board of Directors of said corporation, a certified copy of][name other
authorizing document]which is annexed hereto as Exhibit “A”;

hereinafter, whether one or more, referred to as Vendor, who declared that said Vendor does by these presents grant, bargain, sell,
convey, transfer, assign, set over, abandon, and deliver without any warranty of title except as to Vendor’s own acts and deeds, but
with full substitution and subrogation in and to all the rights and actions of warranty which said Vendor has or may have against all
preceding owners and vendors, unto:

, a (Federal Taxpayer I.D. No. XX-XXX ) with its
mailing address at ,
appearing herein by and through , duly authorized to appear herein on its behalf
by virtue of a [Resolution of the Board of Directors of said corporation, a certified copy of][name other
authorizing document]which is annexed hereto as Exhibit “B”;
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hereinafter, whether one or more, referred to as Purchaser, here present accepting, and purchasing for Purchaser, the Purchaser’s
successors, heirs and assigns and acknowledging due delivery and possession thereof, all and singular the property more fully
described on Exhibit “C” attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Property”). Vendor further assigns to Purchaser any and all
rights, claims or causes of action, it may have, if any, as to any damages caused to the Property by any person or entity.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described property unto the said Purchaser and Purchaser’s successors,
heirs and assigns forever.

This sale is made and accepted for and in consideration of the price and sum of
$ ) DOLLARS CASH, in ready and current money paid this day
by Purchaser to the Vendor, who hereby acknowledges the receipt thereof and grants full acquittance and discharge therefor.

[The parties to this act acknowledge that the Property being conveyed is subject to and affected by those
matters set forth in Exhibit “D” (the “Permitted Exceptions”), and the parties the Property is being conveyed to and accept by
Purchaser subject to the Permitted Exceptions.]

The parties to this act have waived the production of mortgage, conveyance, tax, and any and all other
certificates in connection herewith, and the parties hereto do accordingly agree to relieve and release me, Notary, from all
responsibilities and liabilities in connection therewith.

[Purchaser and Vendor expressly agree that the Property conveyed herein is being sold “as is, where is,” with
limited warranty as to merchantability of title as set forth above but without any warranty whatsoever with respect to the
condition of the Property or any of its components or parts or contents, and without any warranty whatsoever with respect to the
fitness of the Property for any particular or general use or purpose. Purchaser has fully inspected the Property and its component
parts and is completely satisfied with its current condition. Purchaser expressly acknowledges the foregoing and waives any right
or cause of action which Purchaser has or may have to rescind or resolve the sale or to demand a reduction in purchase price based
upon the existence of any redhibitory or other vices or defects or based upon the unsuitability of the Property or any of its
components or parts for Purchaser’s intended use or any other use. Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that the foregoing
disclaimer and waiver of warranties have been fully explained to Purchaser and that Purchaser understands the same. Purchaser
and Vendor jointly acknowledge and agree that the foregoing waivers and disclaimers are of the essence of this transaction and the
same would not otherwise have been entered into or consummated. ]

The parties hereby agree and acknowledge that the Notary hereto has not been required to examine title to the
Property, or render an opinion of title with respect thereto, and the parties hereby relieve and release the Notary hereto from any
and all responsibility and/or liability in connection therewith.
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Property taxes for the year [year taxes last paid] have been paid. Taxes for the current year have been
prorated between Vendor and Purchaser.

Notice to Tax Assessor: The person responsible for all property taxes and assessments and the address to
which the property tax and assessment notices are to be mailed as follows::

[Name]
[Address]

[SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW]
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THUS DONE AND PASSED in my office on the

the Effective Date, in the City of

, County/Parish of

day of

, 20

, but effective as of

, State of

, in the

presence of the undersigned competent witnesses who hereunto sign their names with said Vendor and me, Notary, after due

reading of the whole.

WITNESSES:

Printed Name:

Printed Name:

VENDOR:
[NAME]
By:
Name:
Title:
NOTARY PUBLIC
Printed Name:
Notary/Bar Roll No.:
My Commission Expires:
[SEAL]
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THUS DONE AND PASSED in my office on the day of , 20 , but effective as of
the Effective Date, in the City of , County/Parish of , State of , in the
presence of the undersigned competent witnesses who hereunto sign their names with said Purchaser and me, Notary, after due
reading of the whole.

WITNESSES: PURCHASER:
[INAME]
By:

Printed Name: Name:
Title:

Printed Name:

NOTARY PUBLIC

Printed Name:
Notary/Bar Roll No.:
My Commission Expires:
[SEAL]
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EXHIBIT “A”
[RESOLUTION/CONSENT OF VENDOR]
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EXHIBIT “B”
[RESOLUTION/CONSENT OF PURCHASER]
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EXHIBIT “C”
[LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY]
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EXHIBIT “D”
[PERMITTED EXCEPTIONS]
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EXHIBIT L-4
FORM OF DEED FOR MARYLAND PROPERTIES

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO:

SPECIAL. WARRANTY DEED
THIS SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED (this “Deed”) is made as of ,20 from
,a , having an office at (“Grantor”), to and for the benefit of ,a , having an
office at (“Grantee”).
WITNESSETH:
For and in consideration of the sum of DOLLARS ($ ), and other good and valuable consideration, the

receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by Grantor, Grantor by these presents does hereby grant, bargain, sell
and convey unto Grantee, its successors and assigns, the real property lying and situate in County, Maryland which is
legally and more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, together with all
tenements, hereditaments, easements, rights-of-way, appurtenances, and rights in any land in the bed of any streets, or alleys,
existing or on paper, belonging or in any way pertaining to such real property, and all improvements located on such real
property (the real property and improvements are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Property”);

TOGETHER WITH all of the ways, easements, rights, privileges and appurtenances to the same belonging or in any
way appertaining; all rights of the Grantor in and to any privately owned water or sewer lines servicing the Property and any and
all easements, rights-of-way, covenants, benefits, agreements, rights and appurtenances enjoyed by and/or benefiting the
Property; and all of the estate, right, title, interest and claim, either in law or in equity or otherwise, of the Grantor of, in, to or
out of the Property;

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property, together with all and singular the aforesaid rights and appurtenances
pertaining thereto, subject to all matters of record, unto Grantee and Grantee’s successors and assigns in fee simple forever.

SUBJECT TO all matters of record, Grantor covenants that Grantor will warrant to Grantee, its successors and assigns
specially the Property hereby conveyed, against any person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part
thereof by, through or under Grantor, but not otherwise, and that Grantor will execute such further assurances of said Property as
may be requisite.

[Signatures appear on the following page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has signed, sealed and delivered this Special Warranty Deed as of the day and
year first above written.

GRANTOR:
WITNESS: > d
By: (SEAL)
Name:
Title:
STATE OF MARYLAND )
)
COUNTY/CITY OF )
On this day of , 20 , before me, the under-signed officer, personally appeared
, as of , a , and that he, as such , being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument

for the purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the corporation by himself as

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Name:
Notary Public

My commission expires

[Notary Seal]

[Special Warranty Deed - Signature Page]
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MARYI.AND ATTORNEY’S CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify that the annexed instrument was prepared by or under the supervision of the undersigned, an attorney
duly admitted to practice before the Court of Appeals of Maryland
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EXHIBIT A
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EXHIBIT L-5

FORM OF DEED FOR NEW YORK PROPERTY

BARGAIN AND SALE DEED WITHOUT
COVENANT AGAINST GRANTOR'S ACTS

THIS INDENTURE, dated as of [ 1, 20__, between [ 1, a
[ ], having an office at [ ] (“Granter”), and [ 1,
[ 1, having an office at [ 1 (“Grantee”).

WITNESSETH, that Grantor in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00), and other good and valuable
consideration paid by Grantee, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by Grantor, does hereby grant and
release and assign forever unto Grantee, and the heirs or successors and assigns of Grantee, all those certain plots, pieces or parcels
of land commonly known as [INSERT STREET ADDRESS] and located in the City of [INSERT CITY], County of [INSERT
COUNTY] and State of New York, as more particularly bounded and described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part
hereof (the “Land”);

TOGETHER with the building(s) now located or hereafter erected on the Land (the “Building”) and any and all
other fixtures and improvements now located or hereafter erected on the Land (the Building and such other fixtures and improvements
being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Improvements”);

TOGETHER with all right, title and interest, if any, of Grantor in and to the land lying in the bed of any street,
highway, road or avenue, opened or proposed, public or private, in front of or adjoining the Land, to the center line thereof, any rights
of way, appendages, appurtenances, easements, sidewalks, alleys, gores or strips of land adjoining or appurtenant to the L.and and used
in conjunction therewith, any development rights appurtenant to the Land and any award or payment made or to be made in lieu of any
of the foregoing or any portion thereof and any unpaid award for damage to the Land or any of the Improvements by reason of change
of grade or closing of any street, road or avenue, (the foregoing rights, together with the Land and the Improvements being hereinafter
referred to, collectively, as the “Premises”);

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Premises herein granted, or mentioned and intended so to be, unto Grantee,
and the heirs, successors and assigns of Grantee, forever.

AND Grantor, in compliance with Section 13 of the Lien Law, covenants that Grantor will receive the
consideration for this conveyance and will hold the right to receive such consideration as a trust fund to be applied first for the
purpose of paying the cost of improvements and will apply the same first to the payment of the cost of improvements before using
any part of the total of the same or any other purpose.

Exhibit L-5
Page 1



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has duly executed this deed the day and year first above written.

GRANTOR:

[INSERT GRANTOR NAME],
al ]

By:

Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT A

Legal Description
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ACKNOWIL EDGMENT

Within New York:
STATE OF NEW YORK )
)ss.:
COUNTY OF )
On the ___ day of in the year 20__ before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said State,
personally appeared , personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the

individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that she/he executed the same in her/his
capacity, and that by her/his signature on the instrument, the individual, or the person upon behalf of which the individual acted,
executed the instrument.

Notary Public (SEAL)
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BARGAIN AND SALE DEED
WITHOUT COVENANT AGAINST GRANTOR'S ACTS

TO
[ 1
Block:
Lot:
County: New York Address:
RECORD AND RETURN TO:
Exhibit L-5
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EXHIBIT L-6
FORM OF DEED FOR OREGON PROPERTY

After Recording Return To:

Unless a change is requested all tax statements
shall be sent to:

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

a(n) ("Grantor"), conveys and specially warrants to , a(n)
(“Grantee"), the real property located in Multnomah County, State of Oregon, and legally described on Exhibit
A attached hereto and incorporated by reference, free of encumbrances created or suffered by Grantor, except as specifically set
forth on Exhibit B attached hereto.

The true and actual consideration paid in the amount of $ consists of or includes other property or other value given or
promised, which is a part of the consideration.

BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON TRANSFERRING FEE TITLE SHOULD
INQUIRE ABOUT THE PERSON’S RIGHTS, IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 195.305 TO 195.336 AND
SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 TO 9 AND 17, CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS
2009, AND SECTIONS 2 TO 7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2010. THIS INSTRUMENT DOES NOT ALLOW USE OF THE
PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THIS INSTRUMENT IN VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE LAND USE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS. BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON ACQUIRING FEE TITLE TO
THE PROPERTY SHOULD CHECK WITH THE APPROPRIATE CITY OR COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT TO
VERIFY THAT THE UNIT OF LAND BEING TRANSFERRED IS A LAWFULLY ESTABLISHED LOT OR PARCEL, AS
DEFINED IN ORS 92.010 OR 215.010, TO VERIFY THE APPROVED USES OF THE LOT OR PARCEL, TO DETERMINE
ANY LIMITS ON LAWSUITS AGAINST FARMING OR FOREST PRACTICES, AS DEFINED IN ORS 30.930, AND TO
INQUIRE ABOUT THE RIGHTS OF NEIGHBORING PROPERTY OWNERS, IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND
195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 TO 9 AND 17,
CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2 TO 7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2010.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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Dated this day of ,201

GRANTOR: ,a(n)

By:
Name:
Title:

State of )

)
County of )
On before me, , personally appeared

, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose
name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same as the

of , and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of that the foregoing paragraph is true and
correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature (Seal)
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EXHIBIT A
Legal Description
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EXHIBIT B
Permitted Encumbrances

Exhibit L-6
Page 4



EXHIBIT L-7

FORM OF DEED FOR PENNSYLVANIA PROPERTIES

This Instrument Was Prepared By:

Record and Return To:

Tax Parcel No.:

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

THIS SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED is made this day of , 20, and effective as of the
day of , 20 , by , a (the
“Grantor”), with an address of to , a

(the “Grantee™), with an address of

WITNESSETH:

WITNESSETH, that Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of TEN DOLLARS ($10.00) and other good and
valuable consideration, to Grantor in hand paid by Grantee, the receipt and sufficiency whereof is hereby acknowledged, does
hereby GRANT, BARGAIN, SELL, CONVEY, RELEASE AND CONFIRM unto Grantee all that certain real property more
particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference for all purposes, together with all and
singular the buildings and improvements situated thereon, and together with all right, title and interest of Grantor in and to (i) all
streets, roads, driveways, alleys, rights-of-way, waters, water-courses, easements, strips and gores of land, (ii) all rights, liberties,
privileges, hereditaments and appurtenances, whatsoever unto the hereby granted premises belonging, or in any wise appertaining,
and (iii) the reversions and remainders, rents, issues, and profits thereof (collectively, the “Property”).

UNDER AND SUBJECT to covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, rights of way and reservations of record.
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TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property unto the said Grantee, its successors and assigns forever, and Grantor does
hereby bind itself, and its successors to WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND all and singular, excepting permitted exceptions,
the said Property unto the said Grantee, its successors and assigns, against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim
the same or any part thereof, by, through or under Grantor, but not otherwise.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has caused this Special Warranty Deed to be executed on the day and year first above
written.

[GRANTOR]

By:
Name:
Title:

I do hereby certify that the Tax Billing Address of the within I do hereby certify that the Owner Mailing Address of the

named grantee/s is: within named grantee/s is:

Name or Mortgage Company Name or Mortgage Company

Address Address

City, State and Zip Code City, State and Zip Code

On behalf of the Grantee On behalf of the Grantee

STATE OF )

)SS:
COUNTY OF )
ON THIS, the day of , 20 , before me, the undersigned officer, personally appeared

who acknowledged himself/herself to be the of , a
, and that he/she as such officer, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the

purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the by himself/herself as said officer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:
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Exhibit “A”

Legal Description
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EXHIBIT L-8
FORM OF DEED FOR SOUTH CAROLINA PROPERTIES
Form of Limited Warranty Deed

After recording, return to:

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) TITLE TO REAL ESTATE
COUNTY OF ) (Limited Warranty)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that [NAME OF GRANTOR], a [Grantor State of Formation] limited
liability company (“Grantor”), in the State aforesaid, for and in consideration of the sum of and ___ /100
Dollars ($ .__) to Grantor in hand paid at and before the sealing of these Presents by [GRANTEE NAME], a [Grantee
State of Formation] limited liability company (“Grantee”), in the State aforesaid, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, has
granted, bargained, sold and released, and by these Presents does grant, bargain, sell, and release unto the said Grantee, the
following described property (the “Property”), to-wit:

SEE “Exhibit A” ATTACHED HERETO
AND INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE FOR LEGAL DESCRIPTION
Address of Grantee:

TOGETHER WITH, all and singular, the rights, members, hereditaments and appurtenances to the Property belonging or
in any way incident or appertaining, including but not limited to, all improvements of any nature located on the Property and all
easements and rights-of-way appurtenant thereto.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, subject to the matters (the “Permitted Matters™) set forth on “Exhibit B” attached hereto,
the said Property before mentioned unto the said Grantee, its successors and assigns, forever.

AND, subject to the Permitted Matters, Grantor hereby bind Grantor and Grantor’s successors and assigns to warrant and
forever defend, all and singular, the Property before mentioned unto the said Grantee, its successors and assigns, against itself and
its successors and assigns, and against all persons claiming through or under the Grantors, or to claim, the same or any part thereof.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has caused the within instrument to be executed and delivered in Grantor’s name
[and the Grantor’s seal to be affixed hereto], this day of , 20_.

Signed, sealed and delivered
in the presence of:

GRANTOR NAME[SEAL]

By:
Witness #1 Name:

Title:
Witness #2
STATE OF )

) ACKNOWLEDGMENT
COUNTY OF )
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of , 2018, by
, of [NAME OF GRANTOR],
(name of officer or agent) (title of officer or agent)

a [State of Formation] limited liability company, on behalf of the limited liability company.

(SEAL)

Signature of Notary
Printed Name:

Notary Public for

My commission expires:
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“Exhibit A”

[Insert legal description here]
Derivation: This being [the same][a portion of] the property conveyed to Grantor herein by deed of [Grantor’s grantor] dated

, and recorded , in the Office of the Register of Deeds for County, South Carolina in Deed
Book , at Page .

TMS Number: [Portion of]
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“Exhibit B”

Permitted Encumbrances

Exhibit L-8
Page 4



EXHIBIT L-9
FORM OF DEED FOR TEXAS PROPERTIES

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE
ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM ANY INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN
INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL
SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER’S LICENSE NUMBER.

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED
THE STATE OF TEXAS 8
8 KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
COUNTY OF DALLAS 8
That (“Grantor”), for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) and
other valuable consideration to the undersigned paid by (“Grantee”) whose address is

, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has GRANTED, SOLD, CONVEYED AND
ASSIGNED, and by these presents does GRANT, SELL, CONVEY AND ASSIGN unto the Grantee all of that certain real
property in Dallas County, Texas, described in the attached Exhibit A and Grantor’s right, title and interest in and to all
improvements thereon and appurtenances thereto (collectively, the “Property”), subject to the items described in the attached
Exhibit B (“Permitted Exceptions”).

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property, together with all and singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in anywise
belonging, unto Grantee, and Grantee’s respective successors and assigns forever; and Grantor does hereby bind itself, its
successors and assigns to WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND, all and singular, the Property unto Grantee, and Grantee’s
respective successors and assigns, against every person whosoever lawfully claiming or to claim the Property or any part thereof
by, through or under Grantor, but not otherwise.

For the same consideration, Grantor grants, sells, conveys and assigns, without warranty, whether express, implied,
statutory or otherwise, all of Grantor’s right, title and interest, if any, in and to (a) strips or gores, if any, between the Property and
abutting properties and (b) any land lying in or under the bed of any street, alley, road or right-of-way, opened or proposed, abutting
or adjacent to the Property, together with all and singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in any way belonging, to have and to
hold it to Grantee and Grantee’s respective heirs, successors and assigns, subject to the Permitted Exceptions.
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Grantee hereby assumes payment for all ad valorem taxes for calendar year 2018 and subsequent years.

[Grantor signature on following page.]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Special Warranty Deed has been executed by Grantor to be effective as of the

day of ,2018.
GRANTOR:
[ ]
By:
Name:
Title:
THE STATE OF TEXAS 8§
§
COUNTY OF 8
This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2018, by
the of , on behalf of said

Notary Public for the State of Texas

Printed/Typed Name of Notary

My Commission Expires:
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Exhibit “A”: Property Description
Exhibit “B”: Permitted Exceptions
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EXHIBIT A

Property Description

[To be inserted]

ExuiBiT A
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EXHIBIT B

Permitted Exceptions

[To be inserted.]
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EXHIBIT L-10
FORM OF DEED FOR VIRGINIA PROPERTIES

This instrument was prepared by:

Bar Number:

Tax Parcel No.:

Consideration: $

Total Assessed Value: $

Grantee’s Address:

Property Address:

Title Ins. File No:

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED
THIS DEED is made effective as of , 201___, by and between , a____, herein referred to as
“Grantor”  (index as Grantor), and ,a , herein referred to as “Grantee” (index as Grantee).
WITNESSETH:

THAT for and in consideration of the premises and the sum of TEN DOLLARS ($10.00), cash in hand paid, and other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Grantor does hereby grant,
transfer and convey with SPECIAL WARRANTY OF TITLE, in fee simple, unto Grantee, all of Grantor’s right, title and
interest in and to that certain lot or parcel of land, together with all buildings, fixtures, parking areas and other improvements
thereon and all rights, privileges, easements, benefits and agreements appurtenant thereto, situate, lying and being in the
[City/County/Town] of___, Commonwealth of Virginia, more particularly described as follows (the “Property”):

[INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION]

AND BEING the same property conveyed to Grantor by Deed recorded among the aforesaid land records
[in Deed Book , at Page /as Instrument Number 1.

The above-described Property is conveyed subject only to the easements, rights-of-way, covenants, conditions,
restrictions and agreements recorded among the said land records which lawfully apply to the Property or any portion thereof.
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property to the Grantee, its successors and assigns, forever.
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

Exhibit L-10
Page 1



WITNESS the following signature and seal:

a
By: (SEAL)
Name:
Title:
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA,
CITY/COUNTY OF , to-wit:
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of ,
201 , by , as of
,a .
WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal.
Notary Public
My Commission Expires: Notary Registration No.:
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EXHIBIT L-11

FORM OF DEED FOR WEST VIRGINIA PROPERTIES

THIS DEED, is made as of the day of , 2018, by and between
,a limited liability company, party of the first
part, and ,a party of the second part.

WITNESSETH that for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and 00/100 Dollars ($10.00), and for other good and
valuable consideration, cash in hand paid by the party of the second part to the party of the first part, the receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, the said party of the first part does hereby grant and convey, unto the party of the second part, all of the following
described real estate, together with the buildings and improvements thereon and the appurtenances thereunto belonging, situate,

lying and being in District, County, West Virginia, more particularly bounded and described as
follows:
INSERT DESCRIPTION
And being [part of] the same tract or parcel of land conveyed unto , by
by deed dated , , and of record in the
Office of the Clerk of the County Commission of County, West Virginia, in Deed Book No. , at page

This deed is made subject to all valid reservations, restrictions, exceptions, easements, rights-of-way, covenants,
conditions, licenses and other servitudes contained or referred to in prior deeds or other instruments of record affecting or
pertaining to the property hereby conveyed.

Subject to the foregoing and to the lien of real estate taxes for the year 2018, which shall be prorated on a calendar year
basis as of the date of delivery of the deed, and the lien of the 2019 real estate taxes, which taxes are not yet due and payable, the
payment of which is assumed by the party of the second part, the party of the first part hereby WARRANTS SPECIALLY the title
to the property hereby conveyed.

The undersigned party of the first part hereby declares that the total consideration paid for the property herein conveyed
is § . The undersigned certifies under penalty of perjury that no withholding for tax on West Virginia income
pursuant to West Virginia Code § 11-21-71b is required because the undersigned transferor is a resident entity as defined in such
Code section.

[TO BE INCLUDED AS TO PARKERSBURG PROPERTY ONLY: Pursuant to Chapter 22, Article 18, Section 21 of
the West Virginia Code, the party of the first part hereby discloses that the property hereby conveyed was used for the storage,
treatment or disposal of hazardous waste at a time prior to the date hereof.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the party of the first part has caused its company name to be signed by its proper agent
thereunto duly authorized, as of the day and year first hereinabove written.

[INSERT NAME OF LLC],

a limited
liability company

By:
Its:
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STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA,

COUNTY OF

This record was acknowledged before me on , 2018, by

of ,a limited liability company.

My commission expires:

[NOTARIAL STAMP]

Notary Public
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This instrument prepared by:

Randall C. Light, Esq.
Steptoe & Johnson PLLC
400 White Oaks Boulevard

Bridgeport, WV 26330
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EXHIBIT M-1
FORM OF TENANT NOTICE
FOR NON-GSA TENANTS

[CLOSING DATE]

[NAME]

[TENANT]

[ADDRESS]

[SUITE]

[CITY]
Re:Lease Agreement dated [LEASE DATE], by and between
(“Landlord"), and [TENANT] ("Tenant") (as may have been modified and amended) (collectively, the
"Lease") for [SQUARE FEET] rentable square feet of space located at the property known as

(the "Property")

Dear [NAME]:

Please note that from and after the date hereof, please make rental and other payments under the Lease to the following
account, at the address below:

c/o

Attn:

With respect to any rental or other payments you make, please indicate the amount relating to the period incurred before
the date of this letter (the “Cutoff Date”) and the amount relating to the period after the Cutoff Date.

All future inquiries regarding security deposits, and any other inquiries regarding the Lease and management of your
premises, should hereafter be directed to:

c/o

Attn:

Very truly yours,
SELLER
INSERT SIGNATURE BLOCK
PURCHASER:
INSERT SIGNATURE BLOCK
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EXHIBIT M-2

FORM OF VENDOR NOTICE LETTER

[NAME]
[VENDOR]
[ADDRESS]
[CITY]

Re: Notice of (the “Property”)
Dear [NAME]:

Please be notified that, as of the date hereof (the “Closing Date”), [PURCHASER], a (“Purchaser”), purchased the
Property.

Accordingly, please send all future bills for services rendered in connection with the Property to Purchaser, at the following
address:

Attn:

For all bills seeking payment for services which were provided both before and after the Closing Date, please be certain that such
bills clearly indicate the amount of the charges incurred before the Closing Date and those charges incurred after the Closing
Date. Thank you.

Very truly yours,
SELLER
INSERT SIGNATURE BLOCK
PURCHASER:
INSERT SIGNATURE BLOCK
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer

I, William C. Trimble, III, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Easterly Government Properties, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

(@)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(@)  Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: August 7, 2018

/s/ William C. Trimble, III

William C. Trimble, IIT

Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer

I, Meghan G. Baivier, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Easterly Government Properties, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

(@)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(@)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: August 7, 2018

/s/ Meghan G. Baivier

Meghan G. Baivier

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Operating Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

Certification
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

The undersigned officers, who are the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Easterly Government Properties, Inc. (the “Company”), each
hereby certifies to the best of his or her knowledge, that the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to which this certification is attached (the “Report”),
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ William C. Trimble, III /s/ Meghan G. Baivier
William C. Trimble, IIT Meghan G. Baivier
Chief Executive Officer and President Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief

Operating Officer

August 7, 2018 August 7, 2018



